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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 

May 27, 2021 
1:30 P.M., Philippine Time 

8th Floor, Two World Square, McKinley Hill, 
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634, Philippines 

(via Remote Communication)  
 
 You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, 
INC. (the “Company”) which will be held virtually on May 27, 2021 (Thursday) at 1:30 p.m., Philippine 
time. The Chairman of the Annual Meeting shall call and preside the meeting in Metro Manila which is 
the place where the principal office of the Company is located. The Agenda of the meeting is as follows: 
 
 1. Call to Order 

2. Proof of Notice and Determination of quorum  
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
4. Operations Report 
5. Election of Directors 
6. Ratification of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the Board, Committees 

and Management since the last Annual Shareholders' meeting 
7. Appointment of External Auditor for 2021 
8. Other Matters 
9. Adjournment 

 
 These items are fully discussed in the Information Statement, published in the Company’s 
website at www.holcim.ph, and on PSE EDGE.  
 

Given the current circumstances and taking into consideration the safety of everyone, 
stockholders may only attend the meeting via remote communication. Only stockholders of record in the 
books of the Company at the close of business on April 27, 2021 will be entitled to notice of, participation 
via remote communication, and voting in absentia at such meeting and any adjournment thereof.  

 
Stockholders who intend to participate in the meeting via remote communication and to exercise 

their vote in absentia must register at www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM. Online registration will be open 
from May 4, 2021 at 8:00 A.M. to May 20, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. All information submitted will be subject to 
verification and validation by the Corporate Secretary and the Stock Transfer Agent. 

 
Stockholders who wish to appoint a proxy should send a scanned copy of a duly accomplished 

proxy form, together with other supporting documents, via email to HPI-Investor-
Relations@lafargeholcim.com not later than May 20, 2021. The proxy form may be downloaded at 
www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM. A hard copy of the Proxy Form should be delivered to The Corporate 
Secretary, 7th Floor, Two World Square, McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City within five days after 
the proxy form has been sent via e-mail. Alternatively, should you wish to appoint the Chairman of the 
meeting as proxy, you may use the digital proxy form available at www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM. 
Please note that we are not soliciting proxies.  

 
Stockholders who have successfully registered can cast their votes and will be provided access 

to the live streaming of the meeting. The procedures for attending the meeting via remote communication 
and for casting votes in absentia are explained further in the “Requirements and Procedure for 
Registration, Participation and Voting in Absentia” appended to the Information Statement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

For complete information on the annual meeting, please visit www.holcim.ph. 
 

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. 
 

       By:                
 

 
Belinda E. Dugan 
Corporate Secretary  
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
 

SEC FORM 20-IS 
 

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20 
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE 

 
1. Check the appropriate box: 
 
 [   ] Preliminary Information Statement  
 [ü] Definitive Information Statement 
 
2.       Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: Holcim Philippines, Inc. 
   
3.       Province, country or other jurisdiction of  
 incorporation or organization:    Manila, Philippines 
 
4. SEC Identification Number:   026126    
 
5. BIR Tax Identification Code:    000-121-507-000  
 
6. Address of Principal Office/Postal Code:  7th Floor, Two World Square  
       McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio 
       Taguig City 1634, Philippines  
7. Registrant’s telephone number,  
 including area code:    (632) 8581 1511   
 
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders: 
 

May 27, 2021, Thursday, at 1:30 P.M. 
8th Floor, Three World Square, McKinley Hill,  
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634, Philippines 

(via Remote Communication)  
 

9. Approximate date on which the  
 Information Statement is first to be sent  
 or given to security holders:    May 4, 2021   
    
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code or 

Sections 4 and 8 of the Revised Securities Act (information on number of shares and 
amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants): 

 
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock 

Outstanding or Amount of Debt 
Outstanding 

Common Shares 
 

6,452,099,144 
 
11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange? 
 
 Yes ___x____      No _______ 
 

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein: 
Philippine Stock Exchange – Common Shares   
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. 
 
 

INFORMATION STATEMENT 
 
 

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND  
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY. 

   
 
A.   GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
ITEM 1.   DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF ANNUAL MEETING  

OF SECURITY HOLDERS (THE ANNUAL MEETING) 
 
(a) Date:   May 27, 2021, Thursday 
  

Time:   1:30 p.m. 
  

Place:                             8th Floor, Three World Square, McKinley Hill, Fort   
Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634, Philippines  

                                       via Remote Communication 
 
 Principal office:  7th Floor, Two World Square  
    McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio 
    Taguig City 1634, Philippines  
 
(b) Approximate date on which copies of the Information Statement are first to be sent or 

given to Security Holders: 
 
 May 4, 2021 
 
 
ITEM 2. DISSENTERS’ RIGHT OF APPRAISAL 
 
Pursuant to Section 80 of the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines (the Revised 
Corporation Code), (1) in case of amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect 
of changing or restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing 
preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending 
or shortening the term of corporate existence, (2) in case of lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, 
pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate property and assets as 
provided in the Revised Corporation Code, (3) in case of merger or consolidation, and (4) in 
case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the primary purpose of the 
Company, any stockholder of Holcim Philippines, Inc. (the Company or HPI) shall have the right 
to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares.   
 
As provided in Section 81 of the Revised Corporation Code, this appraisal right may be exercised 
by any stockholder who shall have dissented to such corporate action, by making a written 
demand on the Company within 30 days after the date on which the vote was taken, for payment 
of the fair value of his shares. Failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed 
a waiver of the appraisal right.  
 
Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder shall submit 
to the Company the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares for notation thereon that such 
shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shall, at the option of the Company, terminate 
his appraisal rights. No demand for payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the dissenting 
stockholder unless the Company consents thereto.  
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If the corporate action is implemented, the Company shall pay to the stockholder, upon surrender 
of the certificate or certificates of stock representing the stockholder’s shares, the fair value 
thereof as of the day before the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in 
anticipation of such corporate action. 
 
If within a period of 60 days from the date the corporate action was approved by the stockholders, 
the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the shares, it 
shall be determined and appraised by three disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named 
by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two thus chosen. The findings 
of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Company 
within 30 days after such award is made. No payment shall be made to any dissenting 
stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such 
payment. Upon payment by the Company of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall 
forthwith transfer his shares to the Company. 
 
No matter will be presented for stockholders’ approval during the Annual Meeting that 
may give rise to the exercise of a right of appraisal.  

 
 

ITEM 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON 
 

No director or officer of the Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year, or any nominee 
for election as director, or any of their associates, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, 
by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting, other 
than election to office. 
 
No director of the Company has informed the Company in writing that he intends to oppose any 
action to be taken by the Company at the Annual Meeting. 

 
 

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 
 
 
ITEM 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF  
 
(a) Voting securities entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting 
 
As of March 31, 2021, there are 6,452,099,144 shares of the Company’s common stock 
outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. One share is equivalent to one vote 
except in the election of directors where one share is entitled to as many votes as there are 
directors to be elected.   
  
(b) Record Date 
 
All stockholders of record at the close of business on April 27, 2021 (the Record Date) are 
entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting.  
 
(c) Election of directors and voting rights (Cumulative Voting) 
 
Cumulative voting is allowed for election of members of the Board. Please refer to Item 19(b).  

 
(d) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management 
 

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners 
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The table below shows persons or groups known to the Company as of March 31, 2021 
to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company’s 
voting securities:  
 

Title of 
Class 

Name, Address, 
Citizenship of Record 

Owners and 
Relationship with Issuer  

Name of 
Beneficial 
Owner and 

Relationship 
with Record 

Owner  

No. of Shares 
Held 

% of 
Ownership 

Common Union Cement Holdings 
Corporation (“UCHC”) 

7th Floor, Two World 
Square, McKinley Hill, 
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City  
Filipino 

Stockholder 

Union Cement 
Holdings Corp. 

(same as record 
owner) 
 

3,906,425,506 60.55% 

Common Holderfin B.V. 
(“Holderfin”) 

De Lairessestraat 129Hs 
1075 HJ Amsterdam  

The Netherlands  
(Dutch) 

Stockholder 

Holderfin B.V. 

(same as record 
owner) 
 

 
 

1,168,450,996 18.11% 

Common Sumitomo Osaka Cement 
Co., Ltd. (“Sumitomo”) 

Sumitomo Osaka Cement 
Co., Ltd. 
6-28, Rokubancho, 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 102-
8465 Japan 

Japanese 

Stockholder  

Sumitomo Osaka 
Cement Co., Ltd.   

(same as record 
owner) 
 

 
 

594,952,725 9.22% 

Common Cemco Holdings, Inc. 
(“Cemco”) 
815/816 Tower One & 
Exchange Plaza, Ayala 
Avenue, Makati City 

Filipino 
Stockholder 

Cemco Holdings, 
Inc. 
(same as record 
owner) 

 

456,689,560 7.08% 

 
The respective Board of Directors of each of UCHC, Holderfin, Sumitomo and Cemco has 
the power to decide how their shares in the Company are to be voted. The following are 
the natural persons authorized to vote the shares of the foregoing record and beneficial 
owners upon the direction of their respective Board of Directors: 
 

   Authorized Representative 
UCHC       Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas 
Holderfin         Horia- Ciprian Adrian 
Sumitomo             Yoshinori Manabe 
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Cemco       Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas 
 
The Company only has common shares outstanding. As of March 31, 2021, the 
Company’s foreign stockholders hold 28.83% of the common shares. 
 
 (2) Security Ownership of Management  

 
The table below shows the securities beneficially owned by all directors and executive 
officers of the Company as of March 31, 2021: 
 

Title of 
Class 

Name of Beneficial 
Owner 

Amount & 
Nature of 
Beneficial 
Ownership 

Citizenship 
Registered 

(R) or 
Beneficial 

(B) 

% of 
Owners

hip 
Common Tomas I. Alcantara 1(D) Filipino R 0.00% 
Common Martin Kriegner 1(D) Austrian R 0.00% 
Common Horia-Ciprian Adrian 1(D) Romanian R 0.00% 
Common Leandro David Javier 1(D) Filipino R 0.00% 
Common Thomas G. Aquino 1(D) Filipino R 0.00% 
Common Tan Then Hwee 1(D) Singaporean R 0.00% 
Common Medel T. Nera  1(D) Filipino R 0.00% 
Common Bobby Garza 3,000(D) Filipino R 0.00% 
Common Erano Santos 3,000(D) Filipino R 0.00% 

 Total 6,007   0.00% 
 

Directors and officers as a group hold a total of 6,007 common shares, equivalent to 
approximately 0.00% of the Company’s issued and outstanding capital stock. 

 
(e) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more 

 
No person holds 5% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of stock of the Company 
under a voting trust or similar agreement. 

 
(f) Changes in Control 
 
There were no material changes in the control of the Company since the beginning of the 
Company’s last calendar year. UCHC still holds the controlling interest in the Company.  
 
On May 10, 2019, a Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) for the sale and purchase of shares 
in the Company was executed by Holderfin, First Stronghold Cement Industries, Inc., San Miguel 
Corporation and Lafargeholcim Ltd. Subject to the prior written approval of the Philippine 
Competition Commission and fulfillment of customary closing conditions, it was agreed that 
Holderfin shall sell its shares in the Company and shall procure Cemco and UCC to likewise sell 
their shares in the Company to First Stronghold Cement Industries, Inc.  
 
The SPA has lapsed on May 10, 2020. Thus, UCHC still holds the controlling interest in the 
Company. 
 
None of the items for approval will result in a change in control of the Company. 

 
 
ITEM 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS  
 
 (a) The Board of Directors 

 
The Board is responsible for the overall management and direction of the Company. The Board 
meets regularly every quarter, or as often as required, to review and monitor the Company’s 
financial position and operations. Each Board member serves for a term of one year or until his 
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successor is duly elected and qualified. None of the members of the Board owns more than 2% 
of the total outstanding shares of the Company. 
 
The following are the current members of the Board: 

 
 

Office Name Citizenship 

Chairman Tomas I. Alcantara Filipino 

Vice Chairman  Martin Kriegner Austrian 

Director Horia-Ciprian Adrian Romanian 

Director Tan Then Hwee Singaporean 

Independent Director  Leandro David Javier Filipino 

Independent Director Thomas G. Aquino Filipino 

Independent Director Medel T. Nera Filipino 
 

Set forth below are the business experience of the Board during the last five years:  
 
Tomas I. Alcantara, 73, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from Ateneo 
de Manila University, a Master’s in Business Administration degree from Columbia 
University, USA and attended the Advance Management Program of the Harvard 
Business School. He is presently the Chairman and President of Alsons Consolidated 
Resources, Inc., and of several power and property development companies in the 
Alcantara Group. He is Chairman of the Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, Inc. and 
Philweb Corporation. Mr. Alcantara was Undersecretary for the Industry & Investment 
Group of the Department of Trade and Industry and the Vice Chairman and Managing 
Head of the Board of Investments from July 1986 to March 1995. He was also Special 
Envoy of the Philippine President to APEC in 1996. He was elected Director of the 
Company on July 4, 2003. 
 
Martin Kriegner, 59, holds an MBA from the University of Economics in Vienna 
and a Doctorate degree from Vienna University Law Centre. He joined the Lafarge 
Group in 1990. In 1995, Mr. Kriegner was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of 
Lafarge Perlmooser AG, Austria. He served as Country CEO of Lafarge Austria from 
1998 to 2001 and Lafarge India from 2002 to 2005 and 2012 to 2015. Mr. Kriegner was 
Lafarge Regional President, Asia and South West Asia, and was a member of the 
Lafarge Executive Committee from 2005 to 2012. Mr. Kriegner served as LafargeHolcim 
Area Manager for Central Europe from 2015 to 2016. He is presently LafargeHolcim 
Group’s Head of India and South East Asia and a member of the LafargeHolcim Group 
Executive Committee. He was elected as director of the Company on August 18, 2016. 

 
Horia-Ciprian Adrian, 51, holds an MBA from the Ajou University in South Korea and a 
Master of Mechanical Engineering degree from University “Dunarea de Jos” in Romania. 
He is the former CEO of Holcim Romania and Head of Market for Serbia, Azerbaijan, 
Moldova & Bulgaria of LafargeHolcim. He joined LafargeHolcim in 2000 and has 
successfully held various management roles in the Group, including CEO roles for 
Russia, Eastern Europe & CIS and Middle East. He also managed the LafargeHolcim 
Group’s Business Transformation. He became a member of the Board effective March 
1, 2021. 
 
Tan Then Hwee, 48, holds an MBA and BBA in marketing from Wichita State University, 
Kansas , USA. She has over 20 years of human resources management experience in an 
international business environment across Asia Pacific. She is currently the Vice 
President HR, Global Head Learning & Development of Lafargeholcim Ltd. and 
concurrently a director of Ambuja Cements Ltd, India. Prior to joining Lafargeholcim in 
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2019, Ms. Tan was the Vice President HR, Asia Pacific of Singapore from April 2007 to 
March 2019. She was elected as director of the Company on September 17, 2020. 
 
Leandro David Javier, 68, has 20 years of experience in the cement industry. From 
1983 to 1986, Mr. Javier worked for Iligan Cement Corporation (ICC) as Assistant Vice-
President for Finance. He was assigned to "Holderbank" Switzerland to represent ICC in 
the Technical Center for the development of technical and financial feasibility studies 
involving plant rehabilitation and capacity expansion plans, and assist "HOFI's Regional 
Manager in the management of its investments in Asia.  
 
He assumed the position of Executive Vice-President & General Manager in 1986, and 
served in the same position in Alsons Cement Corporation, after the acquisition of Floro 
Cement Corporation. He also served in similar senior executive positions in the various 
companies engaged in the related companies involved in domestic shipping and product 
distribution, bulk terminals, and aggregates. Mr Javier left Alsons Cement Corporation 
and its related companies in 1998. Since 2013, Mr. Javier is a Management Consultant 
of Rapid Forming Corporation.  
 
He was elected as independent director of the Company on May 24, 2019. 
 
Thomas G. Aquino, 71, holds a Doctorate degree in Management from IESE Business 
School, University of Navarre (Spain), Master of Science in Industrial Economics from the 
University of Asia and the Pacific, and Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University 
of the Philippines. In 2000, he served at the Department of Trade and Industry as acting 
Secretary and as Senior undersecretary overseeing the country’s international trade 
promotions with trading partners and policy negotiations at the World Trade Organization 
and in the ASEAN Economic Community. Dr. Aquino is the recipient of the Presidential 
Service Award for extraordinary contribution of national impact on public interest, security 
and patrimony, Gawad Mabini Award and the Philippines-Japan Society Medal of Honor.  
 
Dr. Aquino is currently the Chairman of NOW CORPORATION, Member of the Board of 
Directors and President of NOW Telecom Company, Inc. (formerly Next Mobile, Inc.) and 
an Independent Director of ACR Corporation and A Brown Company, Inc.  
 
He was elected as independent director of the Company on May 24, 2019. 
 
Medel T. Nera, 65, is presently a director and a member of the Audit Committees of House 
of Investments, Inc., iPeople, Inc., EEI Corporation, and Seafront Resources Corporation. 
He is also an independent director of the National Reinsurance Corporation of the 
Philippines, Ionics, Inc., Actimed, Inc., Erikagen, Inc., Pharm Gen Ventures Corp., and 
Novelis Solutions, Inc. He was also a director of the Rizal Commercial Banking 
Corporation for 5 years, from 2011 to 2016. He was formerly a Senior Partner of SyCip 
Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV), where he had about 35 years of experience in professional 
services. He served as Markets leader and Financial Services Practice Head at SGV. 
From 2008 – 2010, he served as Assurance Leader for the Financial Services Assurance 
practice of Ernst & Young in the Far East covering China, Taiwan, Hongkong, Korea, 
Singapore, Philippines and Vietnam. Mr. Nera was a partner of SGV for 22 years and had 
served in various other leadership positions. He received an undergraduate degree from 
Far Eastern University and an MBA from the Leonard N. Stern School of Business, New 
York University. 
 
He was elected as independent director of the Company on January 15, 2021. 
 

Directorships in other reporting companies 
 
The following are directorships held by the Company’s directors in other reporting companies 
during the past five years: 
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Name of Director Name of Reporting Company 
 

Tomas I. Alcantara Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc.  

 
Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, Inc.  
 

     Thomas Aquino       Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc. 
A Brown Company 
NOW Corporation 
 

     Medel T. Nera       House of Investments, Inc.,  
      iPeople, Inc.,  
      EEI Corporation,  
      Seafront Resources Corporation 
      National Reinsurance Corporation of the Philippines 
      Ionics, Inc. 
 

 
Nomination of Directors for 2021-2022 

 
The directors of the Company elected at the Annual Meeting shall hold office for one year and 
until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. 
 
The following are the nominees to the Board of Directors:  
 

1. Tomas I. Alcantara 
2. Martin Kriegner 
3. Horia-Ciprian Adrian 
4. Tan Then Hwee 
5. Thomas Aquino (Independent Director) 
6. Leandro Javier (Independent Director) 
7. Medel T. Nera (Independent Director) 

  
The Company has no reason to believe that any nominees to the Board of Directors will be 
unwilling or unable to serve if elected as a director.   

 
The nominees for independent directors possess the qualifications and none of the 
disqualifications of independent directors under relevant rules of the Securities Regulation Code 
(the SRC) and its implementing rules and regulations (the SRC Rules). 
 
Copies of the Certifications of the above-named nominees for independent directors, in 
accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, Series of 2017, are attached as Annexes 
A, A-1 and A-2. 

 
The matter of the nomination and election of Independent Directors form part of a set of 
guidelines from the Corporate Governance Committee. These guidelines define the 
qualifications, disqualifications, and procedures for the screening and short listing of candidates 
nominated to the Board.   
 
The members of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:  
 

1. Martin Kriegner  - Chairman 
2.    Tomas I. Alcantara - Member 
3. Leandro Javier  - Member (Independent Director) 
4. Thomas Aquino  - Member (Independent Director) 
5. Medel T. Nera  - Member (Independent Director) 

 
For this Annual Meeting, the Corporate Governance Committee shall screen and evaluate the 
candidates for Independent Directors, using the committee’s guidelines, pertinent provisions of 
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the Company’s Manual on Good Corporate Governance, its By-Laws and relevant issuances 
under the SRC and the SRC Rules. 
 
On June 15, 2012, the SEC approved the amendments to the Company’s By-laws incorporating 
the procedures for the nomination and election of independent directors in accordance with SRC 
Rule 38, as amended. 
 
The Company recognizes the importance of a regular performance assessment of its Board, 
individually and collectively as part of the Board’s accountability. Based on the Charter of the 
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company effective June 1, 2017, the Corporate 
Governance Committee primarily assists the Board in the performance of its responsibilities in 
(i) corporate governance, (ii) nomination of directors and officers, and (iii) 
compensation/remuneration. Part of its duties is to oversee the periodic performance evaluation 
of the Board and its committees as well as executive management, and conduct an annual self-
evaluation of its performance. The Corporate Governance Committee also ensures that the 
results of the Board evaluation are shared, discussed, and that concrete action plans are 
developed and implemented to address the identified areas for improvement. From these 
assessments, the Committee proposes and plans relevant trainings or the members of the 
Board, and recommends continuing education/training programs for directors, assignment of 
tasks/projects to board committees, succession plan for the board members and senior officers, 
and remuneration packages for corporate and individual performance. 

 
(b) The Executive Officers  
 
The Company’s executive officers are likewise elected annually by the Board and serve for one 
year and until their respective successors have been elected. None of the officers of the 
Company own more than 2% of the total outstanding shares of the Company. 

 
The Company’s executive officers are set forth below:  
 

Position Name Citizenship 

President/ Chief Executive Officer Horia-Ciprian Adrian Romanian 

SVP, Chief Financial Officer/ Treasurer Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas Filipino 

SVP, Head of Sales William C. Sumalinog Filipino 

SVP, Head of Cement Industrial 
Performance 

Eung Rae Kim Korean 

SVP, Head of Marketing Ramakrishna Maganti Indian 

SVP, Head of Organization and Human 
Resources 

Bernadette L. Tansingco Filipino 

SVP, Head of Logistics Edwin Villas Filipino 

VP, Head of Corporate Communications Ann Claire M. Ramirez Filipino 

VP, Head of Health, Safety & Security Richard C. Cruz Filipino 

VP - Head of Strategy Zoe Verna M. Sibala Filipino 

VP, General Counsel/ Corporate 
Secretary/ Compliance Officer 

Belinda E. Dugan Filipino 

VP, Head of Geocycle and Head of 
CAPEX 

Frederic Vallat French 

VP, Plant Manager – Lugait  Arnold Pepino Filipino 

VP, Plant Manager – Davao Samuel O. Manlosa, Jr. Filipino 
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Position Name Citizenship 

VP, Plant Manager – La Union Eraño Santos Filipino 

VP, Plant Manager – Bulacan Bobby Garza Filipino 

VP, Head of Sales Northern Philippines 
Region 

Albert Leoveras Filipino 

VP, Regional Head of Sales Visayas, 
Mindanao and Offshore Region 

Ernesto Paulo Tan Filipino 

VP, Head of Procurement Ike C. Tan Filipino 
 
The business experience of Mr. Horia-Ciprian Adrian during the last five years is provided 
above. Below sets forth the business experience of the Company’s other executive 
officers during the last five years:  
 
Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas, 54, is the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. She holds 
a degree in Accounting from Xavier University and obtained her Master’s degree in 
Development Finance and Banking from American University in Washington, DC as a 
Fullbright-Humphrey Fellow. Ms. Rojas is a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified 
Management Accountant. She held various positions in Finance in Del Monte Pacific Ltd 
from 2003 to 2007. Ms. Rojas then served as Chief Financial Officer of S&W Fine Foods 
International Ltd. from 2008 to 2010. Prior to joining the Company in September 2016, 
she also served as Chief Financial Officer of Del Monte Philippines, Inc. 
 
William C. Sumalinog, 51, is the Senior Vice President, Head of Sales. He holds a 
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering from the University of Cebu 
where he graduated with leadership honors in 1992. Prior to his current role, Mr. 
Sumalinog was the Company’s Regional Operating Head for various areas in Mindanao 
and Visayas. He joined Alsons Cement Corporation in 1998 where he occupied various 
key positions in sales. 
 
Eung Rae Kim, 60, is the Senior Vice President, Head of Cement Industrial 
Performance. Mr. Kim holds a degree in Electrical Engineering and Masteral in Electrical 
Engineering from Hoseo University in Korea. He has 33 years of experience in cement 
plant operation having joined the cement industry since 1987. He has held various 
leadership roles within the LafargeHolcim Group in South Korea, Malaysia, Regional 
(IPC Asia) and Bangladesh. Prior to joining Holcim Philippines, Inc. Mr. Kim was the 
Industrial Director of LafargeHolcim Bangladesh Ltd. Since October 2015.  
 
Ramakrishna Maganti, 51, is the Senior Vice President, Head for Marketing & 
Innovation. He holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering, MBA in Marketing from the 
Indian Institute of Management and a degree in Strategic Marketing Management from 
Harvard Business School. Mr. Maganti brings more than 20 years of combined 
experience in global marketing, brand development, digital transformation, and project 
management. Prior to joining the Company, he held various leadership and management 
positions in LafargeHolcim India, Malaysia, France and the most recently in Singapore as 
Head of Sales and Marketing for Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Maganti worked for Philips NV 
a global consumer lifestyle and healthcare firm before joining the LafargeHolcim Group 
in 2006. 
 
Bernadette Tansingco, 46, is the Senior Vice President, Head of Organization and 
Human Resources. She has 25 years of experience in the Company’s human resources 
division with key roles heading talent management and organization development. In 2014, 
she helped in transforming the Company’s business support functions into the Holcim East 
Asia Business Service Centre, LafargeHolcim Asia Pacific's shared services where she 
was appointed human resource head. Ms. Tansingco holds a Psychology degree from the 
De La Salle University and has completed leadership and management programs from the 
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IMD Business School of Switzerland, Penn State University in the USA and the Asian 
Institute of Management.  
 
Edwin Villas, 47, is the Senior Vice President, Head of Logistics. He joined the Company 
in September 1997 as Strategic Sourcing Specialist. He served as the Company’s 
Procurement Manager from October 2007 to August 2010 and was laterally transferred 
as Area Sales Manager for South Luzon in August 2011. Prior to his appointment as SVP, 
he served as the Company’s VP, Head of Sales for the Greater Manila Region, He is a 
certified Information Systems Auditor and a certified Professional for Supply Management. 
He has a degree in Computer Science from the Philippine Christian University. 
 
Ann Claire M. Ramirez, 46, is the Vice President, Head of Corporate Communications. 
She was the Head for Marketing when she joined the Company in January 2015. She first 
joined a local food company, SAFI-UFC (now known as NutriAsia) in 1999, focusing on 
brand management of catsup brands. Prior to joining the Company, she worked for 
Energizer Philippines, Inc. where she managed the Company’s Marketing 
Department.  Ms. Ramirez has a degree of Bachelor of Science in Economics from the 
University of the Philippines, Diliman. 
 
Richard C. Cruz, 38, is the Vice President, Head of Health & Safety. Mr. Richard Cruz 
joined Holcim Philippines, Inc. in May 2008 as Laboratory Engineer for AFR. In March 
2010 he was appointed as Safety Officer responsible for delivering and maintaining safety 
systems and initiatives across all plants. From 2010 until his nomination for appointment 
as Head of Corporate Occupational Health and Safety, he served as Safety Manager for 
the Company’s Commercial and Other Sites. 
 
Zoe Verna M. Sibala, 46, is the Vice President, Head of Strategy. Ms. Sibala holds a 
master’s degree in Business Administration from the Graduate School of Business, De 
la Salle University and a degree in Economics from the University of the Philippines. In 
January 2010, she joined Lafarge as a Finance Manager of Batong Angono Aggregates 
Corporation and later on became the commercial controller of the Lafarge’s cement 
product line – Lafarge Cement Service Philippines, Inc. Prior to being appointed as Head 
of Strategy of the Company, she served Lafarge Republic Aggregates, Inc. as Project 
Manager from July 2014 to December 2014 and as Strategy and Business Development 
Manager from January to December 2015.  
 
Belinda E. Dugan, 53, is the Vice President for Legal Affairs, General Counsel, 
Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. She obtained her Juris 
Doctor degree from Ateneo Law School and has over 23 years of experience with various 
multinational firms and a consulting company. Prior to joining the Company, she was Vice 
President for Legal Management Services of Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. from October 
2015 to October 2017. She served as Assistant Vice-President for Legal and Compliance 
of SN Aboitiz Power from May 2009 to October 2015. 
 
Frederic Vallat, 61, has vast experience in business development and waste 
management. He joined Lafarge Chongqing – People’s Republic of China in June 2006 
and served as the China-Japan-Korea Industrial Ecology Vice President until April 2011.  
From April 2011 to December 2012, he served as Industry Ecology Technical Director of 
Lafarge Shui On, People’s Republic of China and as West Asia and South East Asia 
Industrial Ecology Technical Director of Lafarge Asia, Malaysia from January 2013 to 
October 2015 where he supported the business development of seven countries. Prior to 
joining the Company, he served as Geocycle APAC Head of Investment and Operation of 
LafargeHolcim – Singapore. 
 
Arnold Pepino, 49, Filipino, is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Lugait Plant.  Prior 
to being appointed as such, Mr. Pepino was the Production Manager of Lugait Plant. He 
is well-versed in the Company’s plant operations having served the Company as early as 
1996. He held the positions of Cadet Engineer, Production Engineer II, Shift Operations 
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Manager, manufacturing Excellence Coach and Process Manager. As Production 
Manager of the Lugait Plant, he has achieved 18 months kiln run campaign without 
schedule plant shutdown that saved the Company refractory cost amounting to Php 61 
Million and produced an additional clinker of 71,747 tons in 2016 and 16,740 in 2018.  
 
Samuel O. Manlosa, Jr., 38 is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Davao. Mr. Manlosa 
is a licensed Chemical Engineer and placed 7th in the November 2004 Chemical 
Engineering Board Examinations. He joined the Company in June 2010 as Senior Process 
Engineer. In January 2016, he was engaged as Process and Automation Expert in Holcim 
Singapore where he supported 7 LafargeHolcim plants in the Southeast Asian region to 
resolve operational and efficiency issues in raw mean and cement grinding and to 
implement critical equipment modifications to drive process improvements.  Prior to being 
appointed as Vice President, Mr. Manlosa held the position of Industrial Transformation 
and Operational Excellence Manager since November 2018.  
 
Eraño Santos, 57, is the Vice President, Plant Manager of La Union Plant. Mr. Santos 
served in various leadership capacities across several Company facilities. He joined the 
Company in November 1987 as Superintendent-Electrical. In September 2008, he was 
promoted as a manager and served as such until his promotion as Plant Manager of the 
La Union Plant. 
 
Bobby Garza, 63, is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Norzagaray, Bulacan. Prior to 
being appointed as Plant Manager in 2012, he previously served as production manager 
of the Holcim La Union plant from 2010 and Area Coach for Manufacturing Excellence of 
the Bulacan plant. He joined the Company in 1995 as Quarry Manager of La Union plant. 
Mr. Garza is a registered Mining Engineer and a graduate of the Mapua Institute of 
Technology, Manila. 
 
Albert Leoveras, 47, is the Vice President, Head of Sales Northern Philippines Region. 
He has 15 years of experience in managing Sales Team, Distributors and key accounts 
sales.  Prior to joining the Company, he was the Field Operations Manager and Regional 
Manager of Japan Tobacco International from 2012 to August 2015 and Sales Division 
Head of the Non-food Division of Wills International Sales Corporation. 
 
Ernesto Paulo Tan, 44, is the Vice President, Head of Sales Visayas, Mindanao and 
Offshore Region. He joined the Company in December 2015 as Head-Regional 
Commercial Sales of North Luzon.  He served as the Zone Manager of JT International 
Philippines, Inc. from February 2012 to November 2015 where he was responsible for 
overall Luzon general trade performance, and as Sales and Marketing Head and Acting 
Market Manager from January 2011 to December 2011.He holds a Bachelor of Science 
in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines. 
 
Ike C. Tan, 60, joined the Company in 2011 as Solid and Liquid Fuels Manager. He held 
various positions in the Procurement / Supply Chain of the Company prior to his 
appointment as Head of Procurement in January 2017. His close to 25 years of 
procurement experience started during his employment with Philippine Airlines which 
included a stint as the airlines' Procurement Manager, Americas based in San Francisco, 
CA, U.S.A. Ike holds a degree of B. S. in Aeronautical Engineering, placed 6th in the 
Board and is an MBA candidate at the Ateneo Graduate School.   
  

(c) Significant Employees 
 
The Company’s executive officers are enumerated under Item 5 (b). The Company has no 
employee who is not an executive officer expected to make a significant contribution to the 
Company’s business. 
 
(d) Family Relationships 
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None of the incumbent members of the Board of Directors, the nominees for independent 
director, nor any Executive Officer of the Company is related by affinity or consanguinity. 
 
(e) Independent Directors 
 
Messrs. Leandro David Javier, Thomas G. Aquino and Medel T. Nera are the Company’s 
Independent Directors. They are neither officers nor substantial shareholders of the Company. 
 
(f) Warrants and Options Outstanding 
 
There are no warrants or options granted by the Company to any of its directors or executive 
officers. 
 
(g) Involvement of Directors and Officers in Legal Proceedings 
 
To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the present members of and the nominees 
to the Board of Directors or the Executive Officers are not, presently, or during the last five years, 
involved or have been involved in criminal, bankruptcy or insolvency investigations or 
proceedings, except for the pending legal proceedings described in Annex C hereof. 
 
(h) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 
For a detailed discussion of other material related party transactions, please see Note 31 – 
Related Party Transactions to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 11. 
 
Except for the transactions discussed in Note 31 – Related Party Transactions to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 11, there were no other material 
related party transactions during the last three financial  years, nor are there any material 
transactions currently proposed between the Company and any: (i) director, officer, direct or 
indirect owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares in the Company; (ii) close family 
member of such director, officer or owner; (iii) associates of the Company; (iv) enterprises 
controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Company; or (v) enterprises in 
which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by any 
director, officer or owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares in the Company or 
any close family member of such director, key officer or owner, or collectively, the Related 
Parties.  
 
For the period ended March 31, 2021, there were no self-dealings or related party transactions 
by any director which require disclosure.  

 
There was no outstanding indebtedness at any time during the last three financial years that 
was owed to the Company and/or its subsidiaries by any Related Party. 
 
None of the directors or officers are connected with any government agency or its 
instrumentality. A Certification to this effect is attached herein as Annex B. 

 
(i) Disagreement with a Director  
 
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board since the date of the 
last annual stockholders’ meeting because of a disagreement with the Company on any matter 
relating to the Company’s operations, policies or practices. 
 

 
ITEM 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS   

 
The Company has local and expatriate executives. Expatriates are holding positions that are 
technical and advisory in nature. The compensation of local executives is benchmarked against 
the established Focus Group (FG*). At 100% performance attainment of the Company’s financial 
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and business goals, the executive compensation is targeted to be at median (P50) of the FG 
and at the 3rd quartile for performance attainment of 110% and above. Expatriates are paid in 
accordance with the International Assignment compensation guidelines of LafargeHolcim.   
 
The compensation received by the Executive Officers represents salaries, bonuses and benefits. 
 
* The Company’s Focus Group (FG) is composed of local and multi-national companies with 
annual gross revenues of PHP 5 - 50 billion and 500 to 5,000 employees.  
 
The following table shows the compensation of the Company’s Executive Officers serving as of 
December 31, 2020. 

 
Executive Compensation (in Php)  

 
Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Benefits 

The CEO and five (5) most highly 
compensated Executive Officers: 
1. John William Stull – President and 

Chief Executive Officer 
(resignation effective March 1, 
2021) 

2. Niels Ledinek – SVP – Head, 
Cement Industrial Performance 
(CIP) 

3. Ramakrishna Maganti – SVP – 
Head, Marketing & Innovations 

4. Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas – SVP 
– Head, Chief Finance Officer 

5. William C. Sumalinog – SVP – 
Head, Sales 

6. Frederic Vallat – VP – Head, 
Geocycle 

2021* 81,254,363 35,161,212 74,587,381 

2020 81,254,363 35,161,212 74,587,381 

2019 86,961,274 20,104,726 
 

71,959,081 
 

2018 60,553,915 6,738,560 59,810,061 

All other Executive Officers and 
Directors as a group unnamed 

2021* 68,707,768 18,800,253 23,320,930 

2020** 68,707,768 18,800,253 23,320,930 

2019*** 79,113,370 19,907,071 47,082,597 

2018**** 97,153,715 14,794,950 112,184,355 
Benefits of the CEO and five most highly compensated Executive Officers include retirement service cost with one (1) 
expatriate repatriated to home country 
All other Executive Officers and Directors as a group unnamed in 2020 include all incumbents in the Leadership Team 
with the rank of Vice President. This also includes the pro-rate salaries, bonuses and benefits of other repatriated 
expatriates. 
2021* estimated compensation of executive officers for the ensuing year is assumed to approximate the 2020 level. 
Bonuses given are driven by actual performance of the company; hence, estimate may vary from actual.   
2020** benefits of All Other Executive Officers and Directors include two (2) expatriates repatriated to home country. 
2019*** benefits of All Other Executive Officers and Directors include one (1) expatriate repatriated to home country. 
2018**** benefits of All Other Executive Officers and Directors include four (4) expatriates repatriated to home countries. 
 
Other than directors’ per diem, the directors of the Company do not receive any other 
compensation from the Company, including any of the following arrangements:  
 
a.  Standard arrangement and any other material arrangements; 
b.  Employment contract (between the Company and named executive officers); 
c.  Compensatory plan or arrangement; 
d.  Outstanding warrants or options; and 
e. Adjustments or amendments on the price of stock warrants or options. 
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Below is a summary of the per diem given to the directors of the Corporation as a group:  
 
 Year Ended 31 December 

(in PhP) 
 2020 2019 
Per diem to the Board of 
Directors as a group 

12,800,000.00 11,200,000.00 

 
 

ITEM 7.  INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
For year 2021, the accounting firm of Navarro, Amper & Co. (Deloitte) is being recommended 
for reappointment by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. Deloitte has accepted the 
Company’s invitation to stand for appointment this year. 
 
Deloitte has been the Company’s independent public accountant/external auditor for starting 
2017. Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. They will 
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available 
to respond to appropriate questions.  
 
The Company complies with SRC Rule 68, Part I, Item 3(B)(iv)(ix) on the five-year rotation of 
the External Auditor and the two-year cooling-off period on the re-engagement of the same 
signing partner or individual auditor. The Company engaged Deloitte for the examination of the 
Company’s financial statements starting the year 2017. Previously, the Company engaged Mr. 
Gemilo San Pedro of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) for the examination of the Company’s 
financial statements for the years 2009 to 2011. He was replaced by Ms. Catherine E. Lopez, 
for the years 2012 to 2015, and, Mr. Roel E. Lucas, for the year 2016.  
 
Audit and Audit-Related Fees  
 
The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Deloitte in 2020 and 2019 were  
PhP6.671 million and PhP8.4 million, respectively. These fees, inclusive of out-of-pocket 
expenses, cover services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the financial statements 
of the Company and other services in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for years 
2020 and 2019. 

 
Tax Fees & Other Fees  

 
The Company did not engage Deloitte for tax and other services in 2020 and 2019. 

 
There was no event in the past five years where Deloitte or its predecessor, SGV, and the 
Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or 
practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure. 
 
The audit findings are presented to the Company’s Audit Committee, which reviews and makes 
recommendations to the Board on actions to be taken thereon. The Board passes upon and 
approves the Audit Committee’s recommendations. 
 
The members of the Audit Committee of the Company are as follows:  
 

1. Medel T. Nera           - Chairman (Independent Director) 
2. Leandro Javier   - Member (Independent Director) 
3. Tan Then Hwee                       - Member   
 

ITEM 8. COMPENSATION PLANS  
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No action is to be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash 
compensation may be paid or distributed.  
 
 
C.  ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES 
 

 
ITEM 9.    AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
ITEM 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
ITEM 11.  FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 
The consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the period ended December 
31, 2020 is attached as Annex D. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations are incorporated in the Management Report. 
 
Representatives of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte, are expected to be present at the 
Annual Meeting, and they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so 
and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions from the stockholders. The 
Company has had no material disagreement with Deloitte on any matter of accounting principle 
or practices or disclosures in the Company’s financial statements. 

 
 

ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SIMILAR MATTERS 
 
On November 19, 2020, the Board of Directors of Holcim Philippines, Inc. approved the upstream 
merger of Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation and 
Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. into Holcim Philippines, Inc. The stockholders likewise approved the 
upstream merger in a special meeting held on January 15, 2021.  
 
For the Annual Meeting, the Company is not taking any action, relating to a merger, 
consolidation, acquisition or other similar matters. 

 
 
ITEM 13. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
The Company is not taking any action, which involves the restatement of any of its assets, capital 
or surplus account.   
 
 
D. OTHER MATTERS 
 
 
ITEM 15.  ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS AND OTHER PROPOSED ACTION 
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There is no action to be taken with respect to any report of the Company or of its directors, 
officers or committees, except the approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders’ 
meeting held on July 22, 2020 and the minutes of the special stockholders’ meeting held on 
January 15, 2021, copies of which are attached hereto as Annex E and Annex E-1, and the 
Annual Report of the Company for 2020.   
 
Other proposed actions include ratification of all acts, investments, proceedings and resolutions 
of the Board, the Board Committees and the acts of the officers and management since the date 
of the last annual meeting. The matters for stockholders’ ratification are acts of the Board, the 
Board Committees, officers and management from the previous stockholders’ meeting up to the 
date of the Annual Meeting which were entered into or made in the ordinary course of business 
and transactions and the following transactions, covered by appropriate disclosures with the 
Philippine Stock Exchange and the Securities and Exchange Commission:  
 

Date of Disclosure Subject 

June 26, 2020 
 

An advisory on the resignation of Mr. Niel Ledinek as Senior Vice 
President, Head of Cement Industrial Performance.  

July 22, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s outlook amidst the COVID-19 
situation. 

July 22, 2020 An advisory on the results of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and 
the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors both held on 
July 22, 2020. 

July 23, 2020 A reply to PSE’s request for clarification with respect to news articles 
published in various newspapers on July 23, 2020, in particular, the 
news article entitled “Holcim decides to stay in PH” posted in 
Inquirer.net. 

July 30, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s financial performance and key 
developments as of date. 

August 10, 2020 An advisory on the change in the Corporation’s contact details. 

August 20, 2020 An advisory on the results of the regular Board meeting held on 
August 20, 2020, approving the change in designation of (i) Mr. Ike 
C. Tan from Head of Procurement to Vice President, Head of 
Procurement and (ii) Ms. Victoria T. Tomelden from Chief Audit 
Executive to Vice President, Chief Audit Executive 

September 14, 2020 An update on the Company’s disclosure made on October 18, 2018 
regarding the dispute with Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc.  

September 14, 2020 An advisory on the resignation of Ms. Rajani Kesari as Director and 
Member of the Audit Committee. 

September 17, 2020 An advisory on the election of Ms. Tan Then Hwee as director and 
appointment as member of the Audit Committee of the Company, to 
serve for the unexpired portion of the term of Ms. Rajani Kesari and 
until her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. 

October 30, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s financial performance and key 
developments for the 3rd quarter of 2020. 

November 19, 2020 An advisory on the following results of meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on November 19, 2020: 

a. Approval of the proposed merger of the Company with its 
subsidiaries, Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, 
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation and Bulkcem Philippines, 
Inc. 
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Date of Disclosure Subject 
b. Approval of the dissolution of the following subsidiaries of 

the Company: (i) HuBB Stores and Services, Inc., (ii) Holcim 
Philippines Business Service Center, Inc., and (iii) Wellborne 
International Group Limited 

c. Approval of the holding of a Special Stockholders’ Meeting 
on January 15, 2021 

December 3, 2020  An advisory on the retirement of the Company’s Vice President, 
Chief Audit Executive, Atty. Victoria Tomelden effective January 1, 
2021. 

December 28, 2020 Submission pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 28, Series 
of 2020 

January 5, 2021 An advisory regarding the launch of Holcim Multifix, a new mortar 
product to improve the quality of walls, floors, and tile installation. 

January 13, 2021 An advisory on the Company’s investment on new alternative fuel 
processing facility to improve waste management and promote use 
of alternative fuel. 

January 15, 2021 An advisory on the results of the special stockholders’ meeting and 
Board of Directors’ Meeting separately held on January 15, 2021 
which include the following: 

a. Election of Mr. Medel Nera as Independent Director 
b. Approval of the proposed merger of Holcim Philippines, Inc, 

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, Mabini 
Grinding Mill Corporation and Bulkcem Philippines, Inc with 
Holcim Philippines, Inc. as the surviving entity 

c. Approval of dissolution of HuBB Stores and Services, Inc, 
Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc and 
Wellborne International Group Limited 

d. Approval of the resignation of Dr. Thomas Aquino as 
Chairman of the Audit Committee  

e. Appointment of Mr. Medel Nera as the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee 

f. Appointment of Mr. Medel Nera as member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee 

February 16, 2021 An advisory on the postponement of the Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting to May 27, 2021 to be conducted via Remote 
Communication. 

February 22, 2021 An advisory on the results of the special Board meeting held on 
February 22, 2021 which include the following: 

a. Acceptance of the resignation of Mr. John William Stull as 
member of the Board, President and CEO of the Company 
effective March 1, 2021 

b. Election of Mr. Horia-Ciprian Adrian as member of the 
Board, President and CEO of the Company effective March 
1, 2021, to serve the unexpired portion of the term of Mr. 
Stull, and to serve as such until his successor shall have 
been duly elected and qualified 

c. Appointment of Mr. Albert Leoveras as Vice President, Head 
of Geocycle to replace Mr. Frederic Vallat effective July 1, 
2021 

d. Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial 
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Date of Disclosure Subject 
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2020 

e. Approval of the appointment of Navarro Amper & Co., as the 
Company’s external auditor for the year 2021, subject to the 
approval of the stockholders 

February 22, 2021 An advisory on the appointment of Mr. Horia Adrian as the new 
President and CEO of the Company effective March 1, 2021. 

March 1, 2021 An advisory on the financial performance and key developments of 
the Company for 2020. 

March 2, 2021 An advisory on the order received by the Company on March 1, 
2021 from the Pollution Adjudication Board of the Environmental 
Management Bureau directing the Company to a pay a fine of Php 
400,000.00 for violation of Republic Act No. 9275 and its IRR in 
connection with the oil spill incident at the Holcim La Union Plant 
which occurred on July 4, 2020. 

April 15, 2021 An advisory on the launching of Holcim Aqua X, a new product 
designed to protect structures such as homes from damage and 
deterioration caused by water. 

April 23, 2021 An advisory on the financial performance and key developments of 
the Company for the first quarter of 2021. 

April 23, 2021 An advisory of the results of the special meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on April 22, 2021 in which the Board approved the 
temporary suspension of operations of the HPI grinding facility 
located in Mabini, Batangas effective May 1, 2021 to mitigate the 
negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic and to address escalating 
production costs. 

 
The approval of the minutes, Annual Report and audited financial statements for the period 
ended December 31, 2020, and ratification of all acts, proceedings and resolutions of the Board, 
the Board Committees and the acts of the officers and management since the date of the last 
annual meeting require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting 
by the stockholders entitled to vote.  

 
 
ITEM 16.   MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED 
 
There is no action to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted 
to a vote of security holders.  
 
 
ITEM 17. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
No action will be presented for shareholders’ approval at the annual meeting which involves the 
amendment of charter, by-laws or other documents of the Company.  
 
 
ITEM 18. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION 
 
The following actions are also proposed to be taken up during the Annual Meeting: 
 
1. Election of directors for 2021-2022; and 
2. Appointment of external auditor. 
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ITEM 19. VOTING PROCEDURES 
 
(a) Matters for Stockholders’ Approval 
  
As provided in Article I, Section 4 of the Amended By-laws, a quorum at any meeting of 
stockholders shall consist of a majority of the entire subscribed capital stock of the Company 
represented in person or by proxy, and a majority of such quorum shall decide any question that 
may come before the meeting, except the matters in which Philippine laws require the affirmative 
vote of a greater proportion. A majority of the quorum at the Annual Meeting shall decide the 
matters to be taken up at the meeting.  

 
(b) Election of directors 
 
Pursuant to Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code, every stockholder entitled to vote shall 
have the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares of stock standing, as of the 
record date, in his own name in the stock and transfer book of the Company; and said 
stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be 
elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number 
of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares owned, or he may distribute 
them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided, that the 
total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown 
in the books of the Company multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. By way of 
illustration, the formula may be stated as follows: 
 
 Number of shares held on record x 7    =   Total votes that may be cast. 

 
Stockholders of record are entitled to one vote per share. Voting may be done viva voce, by 
show of hands or by balloting.  

 
In accordance with Article I, Section 5 of the Amended By-laws, stockholders may vote at all 
meetings the number of shares registered in their respective names, either in person or by proxy 
duly given in writing and duly presented to the Corporate Secretary for inspection and recorded 
at or prior to the opening of said meeting. No proxy bearing a signature which is not legally 
acknowledged shall be recognized at any meeting unless such signature is known and 
recognized by the Secretary of the meeting. 
 
All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the stockholders and filed in the office of the Corporate 
Secretary at least five (5) days before the meeting. 
 
Sections 23, 49 and 57 of the Revised Corporation Code provide that the Company may also 
allow a stockholder to participate in the meeting via remote communication and to cast his vote 
in absentia via modes which the Company shall establish taking into account the company’s 
scale, number of shareholders or members, structure and other factors consistent with the basic 
right of corporate suffrage. 

 
The method of counting of votes shall be in accordance with the general provisions of the 
Revised Corporation Code. The counting of votes shall be done by the office of the Corporate 
Secretary.  
 
(c) Participation of Shareholders by Remote Communication 
 
In view of the Government’s imposition of a community quarantine and taking in consideration 
the health and welfare of its stockholders, directors, officers, and employees, the Annual Meeting 
will be conducted virtually and there will be no physical venue for the meeting. The Chairman of 
the Annual Meeting shall call and preside the meeting in Metro Manila which is the place where 
the principal office of the Company is located. The Company approved a resolution allowing 
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stockholders to participate in the meeting via remote communication and to vote in absentia in 
the Annual Meeting. 
 
To enable the Company to perform validation procedures, identify the stockholders participating 
by remote communication and record their presence for purpose of quorum, stockholders as of 
Record Date who wish to participate in the meeting by remote communication and to vote in 
absentia shall register by filling up the form that can be found at 
www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM (the “ASM Portal”). Online registration will be open from 
May 4, 2021 at 8:00 A.M. to May 20, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
Stockholders as of Record Date who have successfully manifested their intention to participate 
in the Annual Meeting via remote communication, duly verified and validated by the Company, 
shall receive an email confirmation with the link to log in and participate in the Annual Meeting. 
 
Upon successful validation of registration, stockholders will be notified by email that they can 
proceed to cast their vote via the ASM portal. Registered stockholders shall have until 5:00 PM 
of May 20, 2021 to cast their votes. Stockholders may also vote by proxy by sending a scanned 
copy of a duly accomplished Proxy Form by email to HPI-Investor-
Relations@lafargeholcim.com not later than May 20, 2021. The Proxy Form is in the form 
provided in Annex F and may be downloaded at www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM. A hard 
copy of the Proxy Form should be delivered to The Corporate Secretary, 7th Floor, Two World 
Square, McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City within five (5) days after proxy form was sent 
via e-mail. Alternatively, should the stockholder of record wish to appoint the Chairman of the 
meeting as  proxy, a digital proxy shall be available at www.conveneagm.com/ph/HLCM. 
Please note that we are not soliciting proxies.  
 
Please refer to Annex G for the detailed guidelines for participation via remote communication 
and the procedures for registration and casting votes in absentia.  

 
The agenda for the Annual Meeting is as follows: 

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Proof of Notice and Determination of quorum  
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
4. Operations Report 
5. Election of Directors 
6. Ratification of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the Board, 

Committees and Management since the last Annual Shareholders' meeting 
7. Appointment of External Auditor for 2021 
8. Other Matters 
9. Adjournment 
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
I. CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Annex D) 
of Holcim Philippines, Inc. (HPI or the Company) and its subsidiaries’ (collectively, the Group) 
attached to the Information Statement is incorporated herein by reference.   
 
 
II. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS  

ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 
There was no event in the past five years where Navarro Amper & Co. (Deloitte) or its 
predecessor, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., and the Group had any disagreement with regard to 
any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing 
scope or procedure. 
 
 
III. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS BASED ON THE CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 

 
Review of CY 2020 Operations vs. CY 2019 
 
Philippines’ Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by negative 9.5%*, lower than the 5.9% growth 
registered in the prior year.  
 
Revenue generated for the year was Php26.0billion, lower compared to Php33.5billion reported 
in the same period last year mainly due to lower volumes in both cement and aggregates 
businesses due to pandemic outbreak. Sustaining our net selling prices was a challenge in the 
year from intensified market competition in a generally soft demand coupled with shift to more 
pick-up sales to counter the supply interruptions brought by local quarantine. Aggressive cost 
reductions in production, distribution and support process costs partially mitigated the topline 
decline. The Group achieved total EBITDA after lease of Php4.7billion, 29% lower than the same 
period last year.  
 
The Group managed to incur lower financial expenses related to its short-term loans due to full 
settlement of third party loans during the year. Net income after tax stood at Php2.1billion giving 
earnings per share of Php0.32. 
 
*Source: Philippine Statistics Authority 

 
 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
The comparative financial KPIs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

Financial KPI Definition For the Period 
ended September 30 
2020 2019 

    
Profitability    

    

Return on Assets (ROA) Net Income 4.8% 7.9% Ave. Total Assets 
    

  Return on Equity (ROE) Net Income 7.2% 13.5% 
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Financial KPI Definition For the Period 
ended September 30 
2020 2019 

Ave. Total Equity 
 
    

Operating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA 18.2% 20.0% Net Sales 
     
 
Liquidity    

   Gearing Ratio Net Financial Debt -6.0% 4.7% Total Equity 
    

EBITDA Net Interest Cover 
(times) 

Operating EBITDA 
23.8 25.5 Net Interest 

 
    

 
Profitability and Efficiency 
 
Profitability indicators have decreased as compared to the same period of last year due to lower 
income and higher equity from additional income generated within the year, while efficiency 
indicators were lower than the same period of last year due to lower income generated from 
operations.  
 
Liquidity 
 
The Group’s liquidity position remains strong evidenced by higher cash balance.  

 
Significant Disclosures  

 
Significant disclosures with the Philippine Stock Exchange and the Securities and Exchange 
Commission made by the Company from the previous annual stockholders’ meeting up to the 
date of the Annual Meeting are as follows: 
 

Date of Disclosure Subject 

June 26, 2020 An advisory on the resignation of Mr. Niel Ledinek as Senior Vice 
President, Head of Cement Industrial Performance.  

July 22, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s outlook amidst the COVID-19 situation. 

July 22, 2020 An advisory on the results of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and 
the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors both held on July 
22, 2020. 

July 23, 2020 A reply to PSE’s request for clarification with respect to news articles 
published in various newspapers on July 23, 2020, in particular, the 
news article entitled “Holcim decides to stay in PH” posted in 
Inquirer.net. 

July 30, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s financial performance and key 
developments as of date. 

August 10, 2020 An advisory on the change in the Corporation’s contact details. 

August 20, 2020 An advisory on the results of the regular Board meeting held on 
August 20, 2020, approving the change in designation of (i) Mr. Ike C. 
Tan from Head of Procurement to Vice President, Head of 
Procurement and (ii) Ms. Victoria T. Tomelden from Chief Audit 
Executive to Vice President, Chief Audit Executive 
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Date of Disclosure Subject 

September 14, 2020 An update on the Company’s disclosure made on October 18, 2018 
regarding the dispute with Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc.  

September 14, 2020 An advisory on the resignation of Ms. Rajani Kesari as Director and 
Member of the Audit Committee. 

September 17, 2020 An advisory on the election of Ms. Tan Then Hwee as director and 
appointment as member of the Audit Committee of the Company, to 
serve for the unexpired portion of the term of Ms. Rajani Kesari and 
until her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. 

October 30, 2020 An advisory on the Company’s financial performance and key 
developments for the 3rd quarter of 2020. 

November 19, 2020 An advisory on the following results of meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on November 19, 2020: 

a. Approval of the proposed merger of the Company with its 
subsidiaries, Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, 
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation and Bulkcem Philippines, 
Inc. 

b. Approval of the dissolution of the following subsidiaries of the 
Company: (i) HuBB Stores and Services, Inc., (ii) Holcim 
Philippines Business Service Center, Inc., and (iii) Wellborne 
International Group Limited 

c. Approval of the holding of a Special Stockholders’ Meeting on 
January 15, 2021 

December 3, 2020 An advisory on the retirement of the Company’s Vice President, Chief 
Audit Executive, Atty. Victoria Tomelden effective January 1, 2021. 

December 28, 2020 Submission pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 28, Series of 
2020 

January 5, 2021 An advisory regarding the launch of Holcim Multifix, a new mortar 
product to improve the quality of walls, floors, and tile installation. 

January 13, 2021 An advisory on the Company’s investment on new alternative fuel 
processing facility to improve waste management and promote use of 
alternative fuel. 

January 15, 2021 An advisory on the results of the special stockholders’ meeting and 
Board of Directors’ meeting separately held on January 15, 2021 
which include the following: 

a. Election of Mr. Medel Nera as Independent Director 
b. Approval of the proposed merger of Holcim Philippines, Inc, 

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, Mabini 
Grinding Mill Corporation and Bulkcem Philippines, Inc with 
Holcim Philippines, Inc. as the surviving entity 

c. Approval of dissolution of HuBB Stores and Services, Inc, 
Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc and 
Wellbourne International Group Limited 

d. Approval of the resignation of Dr. Thomas Aquino as 
Chairman of the Audit Committee  

e. Appointment of Mr. Medel Nera as the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee 

f. Appointment of Mr. Medel Nera as member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee 

February 16, 2021 An advisory on the postponement of the Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting to May 27, 2021 to be conducted via Remote 
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Date of Disclosure Subject 
Communication. 

February 22, 2021 An advisory on the results of the special Board meeting held on 
February 22, 2021 which include the following: 

a. Acceptance of the resignation of Mr. John William Stull as 
member of the Board, President and CEO of the Company 
effective March 1, 2021 

b. Election of Mr. Horia-Ciprian Adrian as member of the Board, 
President and CEO of the Company effective March 1, 2021, 
to serve the unexpired portion of the term of Mr. Stull, and to 
serve as such until his successor shall have been duly elected 
and qualified 

c. Appointment of Mr. Albert Leoveras as Vice President, Head 
of Geocycle to replace Mr. Frederic Vallat effective July 1, 
2021 

d. Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 
2020 

e. Approval of the appointment of Navarro Amper & Co., as the 
Company’s external auditor for the year 2021, subject to the 
approval of the stockholders 

February 22, 2021 An advisory on the appointment of Mr. Horia Adrian as the new 
President and CEO of the Company effective March 1, 2021. 

March 1, 2021 An advisory on the financial performance and key developments of 
the Company for 2020. 

March 2, 2021 An advisory on the order received by the Company on March 1, 2021 
from the Pollution Adjudication Board of the Environmental 
Management Bureau directing the Company to a pay a fine of Php 
400,000.00 for violation of Republic Act No. 9275 and its IRR in 
connection with the oil spill incident at the Holcim La Union Plant 
which occurred on July 4, 2020. 

April 15, 2021 An advisory on the launching of Holcim Aqua X, a new product 
designed to protect structures such as homes from damage and 
deterioration caused by water. 

April 23, 2021 An advisory on the financial performance and key developments of 
the Company for the first quarter of 2021. 

April 23, 2021 An advisory of the results of the special meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on April 22, 2021 in which the Board approved the 
temporary suspension of operations of the HPI grinding facility 
located in Mabini, Batangas effective May 1, 2021 to mitigate the 
negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic and to address escalating 
production costs. 

 
Other than those mentioned above, the Company is not aware of the following: 
 

1. Unusual items that materially affect the Company’s consolidated assets, liabilities, 
equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents. 

 
2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current 

financial year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial years that have 
a material effect in the current period. 

 
3. Issuances and repurchase of equity securities. 
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4. Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual 
balance sheet date. 
 

5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are 
material to an understanding of the current period.  

 
6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will result in or 

likely decrease its liquidity in a material way.  The Company does not anticipate 
having within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it 
anticipate any default or breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other 
indebtedness or financial arrangements requiring it to make payments.  With the 
improvement in the Company’s operating performance, it expects to meet all 
financial loan covenants for the next interim period. 

 
7. Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the 

Company. 
 

8. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or 
contingent), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or 
other persons created during the year. 

 
9. Material commitments for capital expenditures. 

 
10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected 

to have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net income from 
continuing operations. 

 
11. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s 

continuing operations. 
 

12. Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been 
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Accounting Policies and Principles 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated 
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the consolidated 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of 
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2020 have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting policies are 
disclosed in Note 5 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Seasonality Aspects of the Business 

 

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Group are affected by 
seasonality. Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to May and lower during 
the rainy months of June to November. Low sales are also experienced during December due to 
holidays until early January. Unpredictable weather could also significantly affect sales and 
profitability compared to previous periods coupled with any unforeseen circumstances like 
disruptions in productions. 

 

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

 

General Risk Management Approach 
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The Group is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in debt 
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s 
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 
to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group 
does not enter into other derivative or financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating 
business as a risk-averse approach is pursued.  
 
Financial risk management of the Group is governed by policies approved by management. It 
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas 
such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, and use of derivative financial 
instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements.  
 
The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash 
equivalents and loans payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds 
for the Group’s operations. The Group also has various other financial assets and liabilities such 
as trade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted cash and 
trade and other payables which arise directly from operations.  
 
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risks (which include 
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors 
(BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are 
summarized below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial instruments are set 
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Market Risks 
 
The Group is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency and interest rate risks. To 
manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Group enters into derivative financial 
instruments, when necessary. The Group’s objective is to reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations 
in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity 
price.  
 
Foreign Currency Risk  
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  
 
The Group has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods and 
services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso that leads 
to currency translation effects. Of the Company’s revenues, approximately nil and 0.02% were 
denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2020 and 2019.  
 
Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However, income may 
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital 
expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the Group may enter into 
derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges 
or fair value hedges, as appropriate.  
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Group had minimal assets and liabilities exposed to foreign 
currency risks.  
 
Interest Rate Risk  
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest 
rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.  
 
The Group is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its debt 
portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate exposure is mainly 
addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix, the 
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Group may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
the Group has minimal exposure to interest rate risk.  
 
Credit Risk  
 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To 
manage this risk, the Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers.  
 
The Group constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial instruments 
consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Group does not expect any 
counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings. In addition, the 
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of 
counterparties.  
 
The maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 
each financial asset.  
 
The Group trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all 
third party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification 
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the 
Group’s exposure to bad debts to minimum.  
 
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which consist of 
due from related parties, advances to employees, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, and 
guarantee and refundable deposits, the Group’s exposures arise from default of the counterparty, 
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.  
 
The Company’s exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is disclosed in 
Note 19 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

 
Liquidity Risk  
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its 
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the 
Group to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in payment defaults of financial 
commitments. The Group monitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool 
considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash flows from operations. The 
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through 
the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. It is responsible for its 
own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and 
guidelines approved by management and, in certain cases, at the BOD level.  
 
The Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term in 
nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements at all times. In addition, the strong 
credit worthiness of the Group allows it to make efficient use of the financial markets for financing 
purposes. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has unutilized credit facilities of 
PhP12.0 billion and PhP13.6 billion, respectively. 
 
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are disclosed 
in Note 19 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Capital Management Policy  
 
The Group considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its 
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the Group’s ongoing 
financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater for its growth targets in order 
to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost- 
efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.  
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The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the changes in 
economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.  

The Group monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is calculated 
as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance sheets as shown in 
the table below: 

         2020 2019 
Loans payable - Group P=               -  P=3,925,849 
Customers’ deposits 296,600 345,915 
Financial debt   296,600 4,271,764 
Less cash and cash equivalents 2,080,791 2,961,897 
Net financial debt (1,784,191) 1,309,867 
Total equity 29,632,055  27,769,609 
Gearing ratio -6.0% 4.7% 

 
The Company’s target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent. Total 
equity grew by 6.7% in 2020 as a result of increase in retained earnings coming from income 
from operations. 
 

Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Decrease was mainly due to settlement of third party and related party loans coupled with lower 
cash generated from operations. 
 
Trade and other receivables - net 
 
Decrease was primarily due to lower credit sales coupled with higher customer collections from 
resolute collection efforts. 
 
Inventories 
 
Decrease was due to consumption of own clinker and cement coupled with rationalization of 
purchase plan. 
 

Other current assets 
 
Decrease was largely attributable to lower input value added taxes brought by lower purchases 
/ expenses as compared to prior year and lower advances to supplier caused by utilization / 
application of services. 
 

Investments 
 
Movement was due to the dividends received net of share from unrealized income from 
associates. 
 
Property, plant and equipment – net 
 
Decrease pertains to the depreciation, net of CAPEX additions and new and renewed lease 
contracts. 
 
Right-of-Use Assets 
 
Decrease was mainly due to the depreciation expense recognized for the period. 
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Retirement Benefit Assets - net 
 
The decrease was due to recognized loss from re-measurement of retirement fund asset. 
 
Other Non-current Asset 
 
Increase pertains to movement in long-term prepaid assets pertaining to recognition of stranded 
cost for development. 
 
Intangibles Assets - net 
 
 Decrease was mainly due to the amortization expense recognized for the period. 
 
Loan payables 
 
Decrease was due to the full settlement of loan extended by third parties and full settlement for 
related party loans. 
 
Trade and other payables 
 
Lower payables from the application of advances received from customers to their cement 
purchases, accrued rebates and settlement of amounts owed to related parties. 
 
Income tax payable 
 
Decrease was mainly due to payment for income taxes, net of lower income tax expense due to 
lower income generated for the period. 
 
Provisions 
 
Decrease in provisions was mainly due to amortization relating to stranded cost. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities - net 
 
Movement was driven by the tax effect on the remeasurement of retirement fund. 
 
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits 
 
The decrease was due to the recognized loss in remeasurement of plan assets due to changes 
in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments. 
 

Retained Earnings 
 
Increase was due to net profit recognized for the period 

 

Non-controlling Interest 
 
Movement in the balance sheet was driven by income recognized for the period. 
  
 

Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts 
 

Revenue 
 
Decrease was mainly due to lower volumes sold from the interruption in the sales operations as 
a result of the lockdown implemented by the government. 
 
Cost of goods sold 
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Decrease was mainly attributable to lower volumes produced due to stoppage of operations 
during from March to May. Other than lower volumes (sold, transported and produced) cost of 
goods sold was lower driven by lower fixed cost, lower raw material and fuel prices, lower energy 
cost, as well as lower distribution costs from savings in maintenance and third party services. 
 
General and Administrative Expenses 
 
The movement was due to lower third party/outside service costs; net of higher personnel and 
taxes and licenses expense. 
 
Selling Expenses 
 
The decrease was due to lower third party / outside service costs, personnel expenses, and 
transportation and communication costs. 
 
Interest and Financing Charges 
 
The decrease was due to full settlement of a loan from a third party. 
 
Interest and Other Financial Income 
 
The decrease was due to lower net interest on net defined benefit asset. 
 
Foreign Exchange Gains (Losses) - net 
 
Decrease was due to decrease in foreign currency denominated assets which were revalued at 
year-end. 
 
Provision for income tax 
 
Decrease was due to lower taxable income as of the current period. 
 

 
 
 
Review of CY 2019 Operations vs. CY 2018 
 
Philippines’ Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 5.9%*, lower than the 6.2% growth 
registered in the prior year.  
 
Revenue generated for the year was Php33.5 bio, lower compared to Php35.6 bio reported in 
the same period last year mainly due to lower volumes affected by external factors particularly 
tempered public government spending. The strong start in the year was later negated by slow 
two consecutive quarters from the tepid public infrastructure spending despite the growth of 
private development. 
 
The Group achieved total EBITDA of Php6.7 bio, 37% better than the same period last year from 
sustained focus on operational efficiencies and cost management across all despite the demand 
challenges. Production cost was favorable from lower electricity expenses, better fuel mix and 
fixed cost management. Distribution cost was also better from logistics efficiencies, improved 
delivery and packaging mixes. The Group incurred higher financial expenses due to its short-
term loans used to finance strategic capital expenditures and lease liabilities. Net income after 
tax stood at Php3.6 bio resulting in earnings per share of Php0.56.  
 
*Source: Philippine Statistics Authority 
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”) 

 
The comparative financial KPI for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as 

follows: 
 

Financial KPI Definition 
For the Calendar Year 
ended December 31 
2019 2018 

        
Profitability       

    

Return on Assets (ROA) Net Income 7.9% 6.5% 
Ave. Total Assets 

    

Return on Equity (ROE) Net Income 13.5% 10.7% 
Ave. Total Equity 

    

Operating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA 20.0% 13.7% 
Net Sales 

      
Liquidity     

   Gearing Ratio Net Financial Debt 4.7% 16.7% 
Total Equity 

      

EBITDA Net Interest Cover 
(times) 

Operating EBITDA 
25.5 17.6 Net Interest 

 
        

 
Profitability 
 
Higher indicators compared with 2018 mainly from higher income generated despite lower sales.  
 
Liquidity 
 
The Company’s liquidity position remained strong as evidenced by significant cash balance.  

 
 

Significant Disclosures  
 

Please refer to the Annual Report for 2019 for the significant disclosures made by the Company 
during the year. Other than those mentioned in the Annual Report, the Company is not aware of 
the following: 
 

1. Unusual items that materially affect the Company’s consolidated assets, liabilities, 
equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents. 

2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial 
year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial years that have a material 
effect in the current period. 

 
3. Issuances and repurchase of equity securities. 

 
4. Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual 

balance sheet date. 
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5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to 

an understanding of the current period.  
 

6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will result in or 
likely decrease its liquidity in a material way. The Company does not anticipate having 
within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any 
default or breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or 
financial arrangements requiring it to make payments.  With the improvement in the 
Company’s operating performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the 
next interim period. 

 
7. Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the Company. 

 
8. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or contingent), 

and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons 
created during the year. 

 
9. Material commitments for capital expenditures. 

 
10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to 

have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net income from continuing 
operations. 

 
11. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing 

operations. 
 

12. Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected 
in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Accounting Policies and Principles 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated 
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and the consolidated 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of 
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2019 have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting policies are 
disclosed in Note 5 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Seasonality Aspects of the Business 

 

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Group are affected by 
seasonality.  Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to May and lower during 
the rainy months of June to November.  Low sales are also experienced during December due 
to holidays until early January.  Unpredictable weather could also significantly affect sales and 
profitability compared to previous periods coupled with any unforeseen circumstances like 
disruptions in productions. 

 

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

 

General Risk Management Approach 
 
The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in debt 
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.  The 
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Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the 
Company. The Company does not enter into other derivative or financial transactions which are 
unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse approach is pursued. 
 
Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by management.  
It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas 
such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements. 

 
The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash 
equivalents and loans payable.  The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds 
for the Company’s operations.  The Company also has various other financial assets and 
liabilities such as trade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, 
restricted cash and trade and other payables which arise directly from operations. 

 
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks (which include 
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.  The BOD reviews and 
approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.  The 
Company’s accounting policies in relation to financial instruments are set out in Note 5 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Market Risks 
 
The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and equity price 
risks. To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters into derivative 
financial instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to reduce, where 
appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, 
interest rate and equity price. 

 
Foreign Currency Risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 
The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods and 
services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso that leads 
to currency translation effects. Of the Company’s revenues, approximately 0.2% and nil were 
denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2019 and 2018, respectively.  

 
Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited.  However, income may 
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital 
expenditures may be in foreign currencies.  As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter 
into derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow 
hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate. 
 
As of December 31, 2019, the Company had minimal assets and liabilities exposed to foreign 
currency risks. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest 
rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 
 
The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its 
debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate exposure 
is mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net debt.  To manage this 
mix, the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, the Company had minimal exposure to interest rate risk. 



 

14 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed.  To 
manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers. 
 
The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial 
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions.  The Company does not 
expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings.  In 
addition, the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty 
or group of counterparties. 
 
The maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 
each financial asset. 
 
The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties.  It is the Company’s policy 
that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification 
procedures.  In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the 
Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal. 
 
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which consist 
of due from related parties, advances to employees, AFS financial assets, and guarantee and 
refundable deposits, the Company’s exposures arise from default of the counterparty, with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 

 
The Company’s exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is disclosed in 
Note 19 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its 
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the 
Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in payment defaults of 
financial commitments. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool.  
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash flows from 
operations. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. It is 
responsible for its own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to 
policies and guidelines approved by management and in certain cases at the BOD level. 

 
The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term 
in nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements at all times. In addition, the 
strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make efficient use of the financial markets 
for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has unutilized credit 
facilities of PhP9.9 billion and PhP9.5 billion, respectively. 

 
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are disclosed 
in Note 19 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Capital Management Policy 
 
The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its 
capital. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company’s ongoing 
financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater to its growth targets to provide 
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient and 
risk-optimized capital structure. 
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The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the changes 
in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
 
The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio.  Gearing is 
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance sheets as 
shown in the table below: 

 2019 2018 
Loans payable – Third party P=              - P=5,200,000 
Loans payable - Group 3,925,849 3,925,850 
Customers’ deposits 345,915 496,305 
Financial debt 4,271,764 9,622,155 
Less cash and cash equivalents 2,961,897 5,399,853 
Net financial debt (asset) 1,309,867 4,222,302 
Total equity 27,769,609 25,273,162 
Gearing ratio 4.7% 16.7% 

 
The Company’s target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100%.   
 
Total equity grew by 9.9% in 2019 as a result of increase in retained income coming from income 
from operations. 
 

Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to net of higher cash generated from 
operations, higher spending in capital expenditures and settlement of third party loans.  
 
Trade and other receivables  

 
Decrease was mainly due to improved collections despite lower sales outstanding.  
 
Inventories  
 
Significant decrease was mainly due to improved inventory management resulting in lower fuel 
and goods in process inventories.  
 
Other current assets 
 
Increase was mainly attributable to higher input VAT recognized for the year.  
 
Investments  
 
Increase was mainly due to the dividends received net of share from unrealized income from 
HMDC group.  
 
Property, Plant and Equipment - net 
 
Due to additional capital expenditures, net of depreciation recognized during the year.  
 
Right-of-Use Assets 
 
Recognized due to application of new accounting standard for leases, PFRS16.  
 
Retirement benefit assets – net 
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The decrease was due to recognized loss from re-measurement of retirement fund asset.  
 
Other Non-Current Assets  
 
Decrease was primarily due to reclassification from long-term to short-term financial receivable 
from a related party.  
 
Intangibles assets – net 
 
Net decrease was mainly due to amortization recognized for the year.  
 
Loans Payable 
 
Decrease was due to full settlement of third party loans during the year.  
 
Trade and Other Payables  
 
Decrease in trade and other payables was mainly driven by lower trade payables and advances 
from customers and amounts owed to related parties. 
 
Income Tax Payable 
 
Increase was due to higher taxable income for the year. 
 
Provisions 
 
Decrease in provisions was mainly due to amortization relating to stranded cost. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities 
 
Movement was driven by the tax effect on the remeasurement of retirement fund.  
 
Re-measurement gain on retirement benefits – net  
 
The increase was due to recognized loss from additional retirement fund asset, updated actuarial 
assumptions and adjustments which were considered in the retirement liability calculation. 
 
Retained Earnings 
 
Increase was due to higher net income realized for the year.  
 
Non-controlling interests 
 
Decrease was due to lower profit of subsidiary compared with last year.  
 
 

Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts 
 
Revenues  
 
Lower revenue earned for the year was mainly attributable to lower volume due to delayed 
government projects and temporary closure of Mabini Plant.  
 
Cost of Sales  
 
Decrease was mainly due to favorable distribution costs from lower outbound costs due to lesser 
delivered volumes coupled with better fixed costs from improved management of third party 
services. Lower production cost, on the other hand, was driven by favorable electricity and fuel 
mix.  
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General and administrative expenses  
 
Movement was mainly due to lower software implementation costs, third party / outside services 
costs and personnel expenses.  
 
Selling Expenses  
 
The decrease was mainly due to lower third party costs, advertising expenses and personnel 
expenses.  
 
Interest and Financing Charges  
 
Mainly due to higher finance charges recognized during the year from existing short-term loan 
payables and lease interest expense from the recognized lease liabilities.  
 
Interest and other financial income  
 
Significant increase in interest and other financial income from cash in banks and retirement fund 
assets.  
 
Foreign Exchange Gains (Losses) – net  
 
Decrease was due to decrease in foreign currency denominated assets which were revalued at 
year-end.  
 
Provision for Income Tax 
 
The increase was mainly due to higher taxable income for the year.  
 
Review of CY 2018 Operations vs. CY 2017 
 
In 2018, the Country’s GDP grew by 6.2%*, lower than the 6.7% growth in 2017.  Among the 
major economic sectors, Industry had the fastest growth while Services decelerated as compared 
from prior year and Agriculture sector further declined.  
 
The Company’s revenue increased to PhP35.6 billion or 2.54% higher compared to 2017 arising 
from the combined effect of higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on increasing demand 
from public and private infrastructure projects amidst the tighter market competition.  Sales 
performance was affected by soft market demand particularly the first three quarters of the year 
although volumes started to pick-up towards the end of the year.  Although the Company was 
able to mitigate some of higher production costs through business efficiencies and productivity 
measures, consolidated Operating EBITDA declined to PhP4.9 billion from PhP5.4 billion.  With 
higher interest expenses from short-term loans related to capital expenditures especially from 
expansion projects. Net income after tax stood at PhP2.5 billion compared with PhP2.7 billion of 
the previous year.  Despite this, the Company continued to ramp up and upgrade its facilities 
particularly its cement and clinker production capacities to sustain its investment and expansion 
plans in the country coupled with various cost improvement initiatives to mitigate impact of higher 
costs.  
 
*Source: Philippine Statistics Authority 

 
Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”) 

 
The comparative financial KPI for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 
 

Financial KPI Definition 
For the Calendar Year 
ended December 31 
2018 2017 

        
Profitability       
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Return on Assets (ROA) Net Income 6.5% 7.8% Ave. Total Assets 
    

  Return on Equity (ROE) Net Income 10.7% 11.1% Ave. Total Equity 
    

Operating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA 13.7% 15.7% Net Sales 
      
Liquidity     

   Gearing Ratio Net Financial Debt 16.7% 12.2% Total Equity 
      

EBITDA Net Interest Cover 
(times) 

Operating EBITDA 
17.6 63.5 Net Interest 

 
        

 
Profitability 
 
Compared with the previous year, the profitability indicators remain to be at good levels remaining 
positive. 

 
Liquidity 
 
The Company’s liquidity position remained strong evidenced by significant cash balance.  
 

Significant Disclosures  
 

Please refer to the Annual Report for 2018 for the significant disclosures made by the Company 
during the year.  Other than those mentioned in Annual Report, the Company is not aware of the 
following: 
 

1. Unusual items that materially affect the Company’s consolidated assets, liabilities, 
equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents. 
 

2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial 
year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial years that have a material 
effect in the current period. 
 

3. Issuances and repurchase of equity securities. 
 

4. Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual 
balance sheet date. 
 

5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to 
an understanding of the current period.  
 

6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will result in or 
likely decrease its liquidity in a material way.  The Company does not anticipate having 
within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any 
default or breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or 
financial arrangements requiring it to make payments.  With the improvement in the 
Company’s operating performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the 
next interim period. 
 

7. Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the Company. 
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8. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or contingent), 
and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons 
created during the year. 
 

9. Material commitments for capital expenditures. 
 

10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to 
have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net income from continuing 
operations. 
 

11. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing 
operations. 
 

12. Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected 
in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Accounting Policies and Principles 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated 
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the consolidated 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of 
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2018 have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting policies are 
disclosed in Note 5 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Seasonality Aspects of the Business 

 

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Group are affected by 
seasonality. Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to May and lower during 
the rainy months of June to November. Low sales are also experienced during December due to 
holidays until early January. Unpredictable weather could also significantly affect sales and 
profitability compared to previous periods coupled with any unforeseen circumstances like 
disruptions in productions. 

 

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

 

General Risk Management Approach 
 
The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in debt 
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The 
Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the 
Company. The Company does not enter into other derivative or financial transactions which are 
unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse approach is pursued. 
 
Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by management.  
It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas 
such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements. 

 
The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash 
equivalents and loans payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds 
for the Company’s operations. The Company also has various other financial assets and liabilities 
such as trade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted cash 
and trade and other payables which arise directly from operations. 
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The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks (which include 
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD reviews and 
approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. The 
Company’s accounting policies in relation to financial instruments are set out in Note 5 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Market Risks 
 
The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and equity price 
risks. To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters into derivative 
financial instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to reduce, where 
appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, 
interest rate and equity price. 

 
Foreign Currency Risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 
The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods and 
services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso that leads 
to currency translation effects.  Of the Company’s revenues, approximately nil and 0.03% were 
denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2018 and 2017, respectively.  

 
Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited.  However, income may 
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital 
expenditures may be in foreign currencies.  As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter 
into derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow 
hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate. 
 
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had minimal assets and liabilities exposed to foreign 
currency risks. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest 
rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 
 
The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its 
debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates.  The Company’s interest rate exposure 
is mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net debt.  To manage this 
mix, the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate.  As at December 31, 
2018 and 2017, the Company had minimal exposure to interest rate risk. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed.  To 
manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers. 
 
The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial 
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions.  The Company does not 
expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings.  In 
addition, the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty 
or group of counterparties. 
 
The maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 
each financial asset. 
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The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties.  It is the Company’s policy 
that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification 
procedures.  In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the 
Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal. 
 
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which consist 
of due from related parties, advances to employees, AFS financial assets, and guarantee and 
refundable deposits, the Company’s exposures arise from default of the counterparty, with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 

 
The Company’s exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is disclosed in 
Note 18 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its 
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the 
Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in payment defaults of 
financial commitments.  The Company monitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool.  
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash flows from 
operations.  The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts.  It is 
responsible for its own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to 
policies and guidelines approved by management and in certain cases at the BOD level. 
 
The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term 
in nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements at all times.  In addition, the 
strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make efficient use of the financial markets 
for financing purposes.  As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has unutilized credit 
facilities of PhP9.5 billion and PhP9.4 billion, respectively. 

 
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are disclosed 
in Note 18 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
 
Capital Management Policy 
 
The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its 
capital.  The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company’s ongoing 
financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater to its growth targets to provide 
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient and 
risk-optimized capital structure. 

 
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the changes 
in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
 
The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio.  Gearing is 
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance sheets as 
shown in the table below: 
 

 2018 2017 
Loans payable - Third party P=5,200,000 P=               - 
Loans payable - Group 3,925,850 4,177,902 
Customers’ deposits 496,305 497,035 
Financial debt 9,622,155 4,674,937 
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 2018 2017 
Less cash and cash equivalents 5,399,853 1,945,797 
Net financial debt 4,222,302 2,729,140 
Total equity 25,273,162 22,354,748 
Gearing ratio 16.7% 12.2% 

 
The Company’s target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent. Total 
equity grew by 12.5% in 2018 as a result of increase in other comprehensive income 
 
 

Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to higher cash flow from operations and 
proceeds from short-term loans used for capital expenditures spending.  
 
Trade and other receivables  

 
Receivables increased mainly due to from higher due from related parties compared to previous 
year. 
 
Other current assets 
 
Decrease was mainly attributable to decrease in advances to suppliers and amortization of 
prepaid expenses.  
 
Investments 
 
Decrease was mainly due to the dividends received net of share from unrealized income from 
HMDC group.  
 
Property, Plant and Equipment - net 
 
Increase was mainly from additional capital expenditures net of disposal of assets from ECLI and 
HUBB. 
 
Retirement benefit assets – net 
 
Increase from gain / recognition of additional retirement fund assets this year net of present value 
of defined benefit obligations.  
 
Other Non-Current Assets 
 
Increase was mainly due to additional deposit for future obligation, re-class from short to long-
term financial receivable from a related party, and higher guarantee deposits to suppliers.  
 
Intangibles assets – net 
 
Decrease was mainly due to amortization recognized for the year. No additional intangible assets 
recorded within the year.  
 
Loans Payable 
 
Decrease was mainly due to additional loan from external and related parties net of settlements 
/ payments made within the year.  
 
Trade and Other Payables 
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Increase in trade and other payables were mainly driven by higher trade payables and advances 
from customers.  
 
Income Tax Payable 
 
Increase was due to higher taxable income by reason of increase in non-deductible expenses for 
the year ended December 2018 as compared to year ended December 2017. 
 
Provisions 
 
Decrease in provisions was mainly due to settlement of tax provisions during the period 
 
Deferred tax liabilities 
 
Mainly attributable to recognized gain from additional retirement fund asset, collection of foreign 
currency-denominated receivables resulting to unrealized foreign exchange gain, and 
amortization of deferred tax on revalued property. 
 
Reserves 
 
Decrease is mainly due to accrual of share-based remuneration for the year. 
 
Re-measurement gain on retirement benefits – net 
 
The increase was due to recognized gain from additional retirement fund asset, updated actuarial 
assumptions and adjustments which were considered in the retirement liability calculation. 
 
Retained Earnings 
 
Decrease was due to lower net income realized for the year.  
 
Non-controlling interests 
 
Increase was mainly due to share from remeasurement gains on retirement benefits of HPMC. 
 

 
Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts 

 
Revenues 
 
Higher revenue mainly driven by higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on increasing 
demand from public and private infrastructure projects amidst the tighter market competition. 
 
Cost of Sales 
 
Increase was mainly due to higher production volumes and input costs particularly usage of 
imported coal, clinker and cement to support volume sold net of implemented operational 
efficiencies and margin optimization initiatives.   
 
General and administrative expenses 
 
Decrease was mainly due to lower third party / outside services costs net of higher personnel 
costs from restructuring and various cost savings initiatives across all functions.  
 
Selling Expenses 

 
The decrease was mainly due to lower third-party costs net of higher personnel expenses from 
Commercial transformation initiative. 
 
Interest and Financing Charges 
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The increase was due to interest expense from short-term external and intercompany loans to 
support capital expenditures spending.   
 
Other income – net 
 
Decrease was due to absence of one-time gain from the disposal of assets recognized last year.  
 
Foreign Exchange Gains (Losses) – net 
 
Decrease was due to decrease in foreign currency denominated assets which were revalued at 
year-end. 
 
Provision for Income Tax 
 
The decrease was mainly due to lower taxable income for the year. 
 
 
IV. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE GENERAL NATURE  

AND SCOPE OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
Item 1. Business 
   
HPI is one of the premier cement manufacturers in the Philippines and is a member of the 
LafargeHolcim Group, one of the world’s leading suppliers of cement, aggregates, concrete and 
construction-related services. HPI is mainly engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution 
of cement and cementitious products and the provision of technical support on various 
construction-related quality control, optimization, solutions development and skills upgrade. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries own four cement production facilities, one cement grinding 
mill, five ports, as well as multiple storage and distribution points across the country. 
 
The consolidated operations of the four cement production facilities have fortified HPI’s 
premier position in the Philippine cement industry with a total installed clinker production 
capacity of 5.2 million metric tons per year (MTPY) and cement production capacity of 9.4 million 
MTPY. 
 
HPI was the first in the Philippine cement industry to receive ISO 9002 certification (Quality 
Management System Standards) from the International Organization for Standardization (ISO). 
Additionally, all four plants are ISO 14001 certified (Environment Management System 
Standards) and OH&S 18001 (Occupational Health & Safety Management) certified. 
 
“Holcim” is one of the top selling brands and quality leaders in the Philippines. 
 
(1) History and Business Development 
 
HPI was incorporated and registered with the Philippines Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) on November 12, 1964 under the name Hi-Cement Corporation (HCC). 
 
On February 8, 2000, the SEC approved the merger of HCC, Davao Union Cement Corporation, 
and Bacnotan Cement Corporation, with HCC as the surviving entity. Simultaneously, the SEC 
also approved the request for a change of corporate name from HCC to Union Cement 
Corporation (UCC). 
 
On January 11, 2001, the SEC approved the merger of Atlas Cement Marketing Corporation, 
Davao Union Marketing Corporation and Bacnotan Marketing Corporation into UCC. 
 
On July 17, 2002, the Board of Directors of UCC approved the acquisition of 88% of the issued 
and outstanding common shares of Alsons Cement Corporation (ACC) from Cemco Holdings, 
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Inc. (Cemco). In consideration of such shares, new shares of UCC were issued to Cemco, at the 
exchange ratio of one (1) UCC share for every 3.7 ACC shares owned by Cemco, thus, making 
ACC a subsidiary of UCC. 
 
Pursuant to the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) and its implementing rules and regulations, 
HPI undertook a tender offer in favor of the remaining 12% non-controlling shareholders of ACC 
to exchange their holdings in ACC for new shares of UCC at the same exchange ratio, with the 
option to accept cash at a price of PhP0.28 per ACC share, in lieu of HPI shares. The foregoing 
transactions were approved by shareholders of UCC on September 4, 2002. The Company 
acquired additional ACC shares representing 0.02% equity interest in ACC after the end of the 
tender offer period. 
 
On September 19, 2002, the Board of Directors of ACC approved a resolution for the delisting of 
the shares of stocks of the Company from the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The PSE 
approved the resolution for the delisting on December 15, 2002. 
 
On August 17, 2004, the SEC approved ACC’s reverse stock split, increasing the par value of 
ACC’s shares to PhP1,000.00 per share from PhP0.50 per share. As a result of additional 
purchases from the remaining non-controlling shareholders of ACC in 2004 and the effect of the 
reverse stock split, UCC equity interest in ACC increased from 98.74% to 99.6%. 
 
On November 30, 2004, the SEC approved the request for change in corporate name from UCC 
to HPI. On January 19, 2005, the SEC also approved the change in corporate name of ACC to 
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp. (HPMC). 
 
On March 6, 2014, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of Holcim Mining 
and Development Corporation (HMDC) (formerly Sulu Resources Development Corp., later 
renamed Holcim Aggregates Corporation) to make way for additional subscription by HPI and 
HPMC, in consideration of properties such as parcels of land, mining claims and foreshore leases. 
On March 18, 2016, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of HMDC to make 
way for subscription by the Holcim Philippines, Inc. Retirement Fund of 60% of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of HMDC. Today, HMDC is an associate company of HPI, providing 
most of the Company’s raw materials from the quarries of HMDC and its subsidiaries in La Union, 
Bulacan, Lugait and Davao. HMDC and its subsidiaries also leases to the Company parcels of 
land and foreshore leases for the latter’s operations. 
 
As of December 31, 2020, HPI is 60.55% owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation (UCHC), 
18.11% owned by Holderfin B.V. (Holderfin), and 7.08% owned by Cemco while the remainder 
of its shares is owned by the public. HPI common shares are listed in the PSE. 
 
The Company’s Subsidiaries  
 
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation  
 
HPMC was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 7, 1968 under the name of 
Victory Cement Corporation.  

 
HPMC has 1.5 million MTPY line that was successfully commissioned in 1998 and started 
commercial operation in January 1999. HPMC’s terminal located in Calaca, Batangas, which had 
been idle for several years, was rehabilitated in 2010 and resumed operations in January 2011. 
Today, substantially all of HPMC’s cement manufacturing assets are being leased by HPI. 
 
In January 2019, HPMC renewed the bareboat agreement with HPI for the latter’s vessel 
requirements to transport cement to various destinations within the Philippines.  

 
HPMC’s subsidiary, Calamba Aggregates Company, Inc. (CACI), was incorporated and 
registered with the SEC on October 15, 1992, that operated an aggregates plant in Laguna. CACI 
ceased operations effective December 31, 2013.  
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HPMC’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. (BPI), was incorporated and 
registered with the SEC on April 5, 1995. Today, BPI owns a bulk terminal located in Iloilo which 
is currently being leased by HPI. 
 
Alsons Construction Chemicals, Inc. (ALCHEM), another subsidiary, owned a cement and 
mineral admixture plant in Lugait, Misamis Oriental, was incorporated in the Philippines and was 
registered with the SEC on December 23, 1996. The operation of ALCHEM was discontinued 
since July 1999. ALCHEM filed an affidavit of non-operation with the SEC and is now going 
through the process of dissolution. 

 
Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. (ECLI) 
 
ECLI was incorporated and registered with the SEC on August 9, 2012. On January 1, 2013, 
ECLI started its full operation servicing the distribution, transport and placing of concrete, as 
well as transport of cement and specialty products. On November 29, 2018, the Board of 
Directors of HPI approved the closure and dissolution of ECLI. On January 28, 2020, the SEC 
approved ECLI‟s application for amendment of ECLI‟s Articles of Incorporation to shorten its 
corporate term up to January 31, 2021. 
 
Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc. (HPBSCI) 
 
HPBSCI was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 4, 2014.  HPBSCI was set up 
to engage in the business of providing business process outsourcing and other information 
technology-enabled services to the Holcim Group. On February 13, 2015, HPBSCI transferred and 
sold its intellectual property rights and leasehold improvements to Holcim East Asia Business 
Service Centre B.V. – Philippine ROHQ. The Board of Directors and the stockholders of the 
Company approved the dissolution of HPBSCI on November 19, 2020 and January 15, 2020, 
respectively. 
 
HuBB Stores and Services Inc. (HSSI) 
 
HSSI was incorporated and registered with the SEC on June 2, 2014. HSSI was set up to engage 
in the business of buying, selling and distributing construction and building materials, and to 
operate, maintain and franchise stores for the sale and distribution of said materials. HSSI ceased 
its business operations in August 2020. The Board of Directors and the stockholders of the 
Company approved the dissolution of HSSI on November 19, 2020 and January 15, 2020, 
respectively. 
 
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation (MGMC) 
 
MGMC was incorporated and registered with the SEC on September 29, 1999.  In August 2013, 
the rehabilitation of MGMC’s grinding station in Mabini, Batangas was completed.  HPI is leasing 
and operating the said grinding station.  
 

Bankruptcy Proceedings 
 
The Company is not a party to any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings. 
 
Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation  
 
On November 19, 2020, the Board of Directors of Holcim Philippines, Inc. approved the upstream 
merger of Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation and 
Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. into Holcim Philippines, Inc. The stockholders likewise approved the 
upstream merger in a special meeting held on 15 January 2021. 
 
In May 2019, the Company’s major stockholders, namely Holderfin, Cemco and UCHC entered 
into an agreement for the sale and purchase of shares in the Company subject to the approval 
of the Philippine Competition Commission and customary transaction closing conditions. The 
SPA has lapsed on May 10, 2020 and UCHC still holds the controlling interest in the Company. 
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(2) General Business Description   
 
HPI is engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution of cement, dry mix mortar products, 
clinker and aggregates. It also offers construction-related trainings, consultancies, testing and 
other technical services to its customers.  With the Company’s production facilities, ports, storage 
& distribution terminals, sales offices and channel partners, HPI has an extensive sales and 
distribution footprint due to its strategically located plants and terminals in the Philippines.   

 
The Company has a deep portfolio of innovative solutions fostered by a wide range of building 
products and solutions. Its portfolio of cement, aggregates, finishing and concrete solutions can 
help local builders execute a wide range of projects with high performance and efficiency, from 
massive infrastructures to simple home repairs. The Company’s product quality and operational 
capability are geared toward meeting the customers’ building needs. 

  
(a) Product Lines 

 
HPI manufactures five (5) main cement product brands namely: Holcim 4X (Type 1 high 
performance Portland cement), Holcim Premium (Type 1 Portland cement), Holcim 
Solido (Type IP Blended cement), Holcim Excel (Type 1P Blended cement), and Holcim 
WallRight (Type S Masonry cement).  
 
Its products are sold mostly in bags except for Holcim Premium (in bulk) and Holcim 4X 
(bulk). Other packaging formats include tonner, jumbo bags and bulk. HPI also sells to 
cement producers a semi-finished product called clinker, which is sold only in bulk.  
 
The company has also in its portfolio aggregates and dry mix mortar products. Dry Mix 
mortar products are Holcim Tile Adhesive and Holcim Skim Coat and the recently 
launched Holcim Multifix, an all-in-one mortar for plastering, floor screed and thick bed 
tile installation. 
 
All HPI products meet the Philippine National Standards (PNS) and the American Society 
for Testing and Materials (ASTM) product quality standards.  
 
The Business continues to serve SF Crete as a one-day concrete solution for road 
application in line with the Conditional Approval awarded by DPWH for this technology. 
 
Below is a brief description of HPI’s various products: 
 
Holcim 4X 
 
Holcim 4X is an ASTM C150 high performance Portland cement. It is specially formulated 
for ready mix concrete applications. It has high compressive strength, high workability 
and is compatible with commonly available admixtures. Supplied in bulk, Holcim 4X is 
mainly used for high-rise buildings and vertical structures that require high-strength 
cement. It is ideal for construction that requires optimized concrete mix designs and fast 
construction cycles. With the high 28-day compressive strength of Holcim 4X, lower 
cement factor is needed resulting in lower construction costs. Longer setting time results 
to better slump retention and pumpability of concrete.    
 
Holcim Premium 
 
Holcim Premium is an ASTM Type I Portland Cement. It is used for general concrete 
construction. To make Portland cement, powdered limestone, silica and iron-rich 
materials are homogenized and burnt at 1500oC. The resulting material is called clinker.  
Portland cement is produced by grinding clinker with a small amount of gypsum, a set 
retarder. When Portland cement is mixed with water and aggregates to make concrete, 
the mixture is initially flowable and easy to place, mold and finish. Eventually, the 
concrete sets, hardens and produces a strong and durable construction material. 
 



 

28 

Holcim Solido 
 
Holcim Solido is a premium quality ASTM Type IP Cement which is Portland cement 
combined with advanced mineral additives. It is sold in bulk, tonner bags and 40-kg bags 
and used for roads and general concrete applications. Advance mineral additives are 
inter-ground with higher composition of Portland cement clinker to improve durability of 
concrete. 

 
Holcim Excel  
 
Holcim Excel Cement is an ASTM Type IP Cement, which is Portland cement combined 
with advanced mineral additives. It is sold mainly in 40-kg bags and used for general 
concrete construction. Advanced mineral additives (including granulated blast furnace 
slag) are inter-ground with Portland cement clinker and gypsum to improve the 
workability and early strength. The product is used for the same applications as the 
Portland cement described above but is preferred by many customers because the 
additives improve its performance. 

 
Holcim WallRight Cement 
 
Holcim WallRight Cement is an ASTM C91 Type S Masonry Cement designed for block 
laying, plastering and finishing use. It is made by inter-grinding mineral additives and an 
air-entraining additive with Portland cement clinker during the finish milling operation. 
The resulting cement will produce smoother, more cohesive and more cost-effective 
mortars and plasters which are preferred by masons. 
 
Clinker 
 

Clinker is an intermediate product in cement production. It is produced by grinding and 
burning a proportioned mixture of limestone, shale and silica. When clinker is further 
subjected to grinding and added with gypsum, Portland cement is produced. 
 
SF Crete Technology 
 
SF Crete is a total solution offering for one day concrete pavement. This solution is a 
package of materials i.e., cement, aggregates and admixtures and technical support to 
meet one-day concrete design. 

 
Aggregates 
 
Aggregates are granular materials of mineral compositions used for various construction 
applications. It is used with a binding medium to form concrete, bitumous concrete, 
precast concrete, mortar, plaster and other concrete and asphalt applications. It can be 
used alone for road bases, structural beddings, railroad ballast, filter beds, backfills, etc.  
The grading and quality conforms to the ASTM C33 Standard Specifications for coarse 
and fine aggregates. 
 
Holcim Tile Adhesive 
 
Holcim Tile Adhesive is a premium cement-based adhesive for tiles specially formulated 
for thin-bed vertical and horizontal application. Its unique formulation combined with 
Holcim cement provides for a faster, stronger adhesion, with excellent non-slip 
properties.  
 
Holcim Skim Coat 
 
Holcim Skim Coat is a cementitious plaster specially designed to smoothen vertical 
structures suitable for both indoor and outdoor use.  Skim Coat is used for rendering and 
smoothening surfaces prior to application of sealants or decorative paints. 
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Holcim Multi-fix 
 
Holcim Multifix is a high performance polymer modified mortar formulated for internal 
and external wall plastering, floor screed and tile installation by thick bed method. It is 
the best substitute for traditional mortar. 
 

The following table shows the breakdown of sales revenues by product line of the Company for 
the periods indicated: 

 
Table 1 – Revenue by Product Line 

 
  Calendar Year Calendar Year Calendar Year 
  Ended Ended Ended 
(In Thousand Pesos) December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 

Cement and 
cementitious materials 

P=24,745,235 P=30,885,687 P=33,227,519 

Others 1,270,107  2,601,084 2,395,594 
    
Total P=26,015,342 P=33,486,771 P=35,623,113 

 
Contribution of Export Sales   

 
The amounts and percentages of revenue attributable to export sales, including breakdown 
per region, for the calendar years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as 
follows:  

 
Table 2 – Export Revenue 

 
  Calendar Year 

Ended 
Calendar Year 

Ended 
Calendar Year 

Ended   
(In Thousand Pesos) December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 

Total Export 
Revenues 

NIL NIL NIL 

% to Total Revenues NIL NIL NIL 
Breakdown of Export 

Revenues per Region 

(in %) 

   

Southeast Asia    
Eastern Asia    
Oceania NIL NIL NIL 
North America    
Western Europe    
Middle East    
Total % to Total 
Revenues 

NIL NIL NIL 

 
(b) Marketing and Distribution  

 
The Company’s major domestic customers are traders, wholesalers, retailers, 
contractors serving private and public projects, real-estate developers and concrete 
producers. Notably, HPI has supplied a number of big commercial and government 
flagship projects in the entire country. 

 

(c) New Product 

 

Holcim Multiflix, an all-in-one, cost-effective mortar which was first introduced last quarter 
of 2020 to help builders with a versatile product solution  for plastering, floor screed and 
thick bend tiling resulting in time savings and less material wastage. 
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Holcim Aqua is a new product designed to protect structures such as homes from 
damage and deterioration caused by water. It contains Active Water Repellant Boosters 
that prevents water damage making it easier to build water-resistant structures compared 
with current practices, where builders apply a repellent on walls or include water-proofing 
compound to the concrete mix. Holcim aqua is more environment friendly than others in 
the market because it uses less clinker thus having low carbon footprint. 

 

(d)  Competition 

 
There are ten cement manufacturers in the Philippines that include Holcim, Republic 
Cement, Cemex, Taiheiyo, Northern Cement, Eagle Cement, Goodfound, Mabuhay 
FilCement, Big Boss and Petra Cement. Eight of these local manufacturers operate 
integrated cement plants all over the country while Big Boss Cement and Petra operate 
cement grinding plants only. 
 
The positive long-term prospect of cement demand in the country has attracted new 
investments in the cement industry. Existing manufacturers are currently pursuing their 
expansion plans to add new capacities while new entrants joined in building new cement 
facilities. Century Peak Cement, a new entrant, is constructing an integrated cement 
plant in Cebu.  
 
In recent years, independent traders have brought in imported cement mainly from 
Vietnam. These are sold in 40kg bags and tonner bags distributed in key markets across 
the country. Some big cement traders have started to install cement terminals with 
bagging and warehousing facilities in key trading ports. In 2019, the Philippine 
government imposed a permanent safeguard duty on cement imports for the next three 
years to curb the surge of cheap imported cement that adversely impacted the domestic 
cement manufacturing industry. Domestic cement manufacturers are expected to 
implement their adjustment plans to become more globally competitive after the 
safeguard duty expires. 

 
Among the local players, Holcim has the widest market reach serving customers across 
the country from two integrated cement plants, one cement grinding plant and one dry 
mix plant in Luzon, and two integrated cement plants in Mindanao.  Holcim also operates 
cement terminals in Iloilo, Batangas and Manila. There are various warehouses 
strategically set up in the different geographic markets to support the company’s 
distribution network.  

 
The four cement plants of Holcim are certified to meet the ISO 9002 (Quality 
Management), ISO 14001 (Environmental Management) and OH&S 18001 
(Occupational Health and Safety Management) standards. 

 

(e) Sources and Availability of Raw Materials and Supplies  

 
 Raw Materials 
 

The Company sources most of its raw materials (limestone, pozzolan, shale) from its 
associate company, HMDC and its subsidiaries which hold Mineral Production Sharing 
Agreements for its quarries in various areas in La Union, Bulacan, Davao and Lugait, 
Misamis Oriental. HPI also source raw materials from third party suppliers. 
 
Energy Supply  
 
Being an energy-intensive process, cement production requires a reliable and 
competitively priced power supply for uninterrupted and cost-effective production. 
 
The Bulacan plant’s peak demand is currently at 35 megawatts (“MW”) while La Union 
plant’s peak demand is currently at 15 MW. On August 12, 2011, a 15-year Energy 
Services Agreement (ESA) was signed with Trans-Asia Oil and Energy Development 
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Corp. (TA Oil), now AC Energy Philippines, Inc. (ACEPI), for the supply of both Bulacan 
Line 2 and La Union plants starting in 2014. On September 21, 2020, an amended and 
restated Energy Services Agreement was signed effective June 26, 2020 and valid until 
December 25, 2030.  
 
The Davao plant’s total power requirement is 22 MW. Effective September 26, 2013, 
Davao plant became a captive customer of Davao Light and Power Company (DLPC), 
the Distribution Utility (DU) which holds the franchise for power distribution in the area 
pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27, Series of 2010. 
 
The Lugait plant’s total power requirement is 33 MW for both lines or 27 MW with Line 2 
only. After the expiration of the Power Supply Agreement with NPC on December 25, 
2012, Misamis I Oriental Electric Cooperative (Moresco I) took over as the power supplier 
of Lugait plant pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27, Series of 
2010. Currently, only Line 2 is operating.   
 
Mabini Grinding plant which is a 6MW capacity establishment has qualified as a 
"Contestable Customer (CC)" when the Retail Competition and Open Access (RCOA) 
was implemented last June 26, 2013. As a result, a 10-year Power Supply Agreement 
with TA Oil, now AC Energy Philippines, Inc. (ACEPI), was signed and took effect on 
June 26, 2014 in lieu of an agreement with distribution utility Department of Energy 
(DOE) Batangas Electric Cooperative, Inc. (BATELEC II). On September 21, 2020, an 
amended and restated Energy Services Agreement was signed effective June 26, 2020 
and valid until December 25, 2030. 

 
Coal and Fuel Supply 
 
HPI uses coal for heating the Company's kilns in La Union, Bulacan, Davao and Lugait.  
 
HPI’s imported Indonesian coal requirements are covered with annual supply contracts. 
Spot purchases shall remain as an option to have a healthy balance of supply reliability, 
market competitive prices and opportunity for substitute fuels.  
 
For local coal requirements, the Company entered into a 1-year contract with Semirara 
Mining & Power Corporation covering 2020. 
 
HPI has an existing supply contract with Petron and SL Harbour for its Diesel and Bunker 
fuel needs. Contracts started from November 1, 2017 are still valid until December 31, 
2020.  
 
The Company has not experienced any disruption in its solid and liquid fuel supply. 

 
(f) Dependence on a Single or a Few Customers 

 
The Company employs a multi-level distribution strategy in serving the market. This 
covers wholesaler and retailer intermediaries, traders, ready mix companies, concrete 
products manufacturers, international and local contractors, and real-estate developers. 
At the same time, HPI supports numerous large- and medium-scale government 
infrastructure projects. 
 
The aim is for the business not to be dependent on a single or a few customers but rather 
achieve a well-balanced customer portfolio.   
 

(g) Related Party Transactions 

  
Please see Note 31 – Related Party Transactions to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for details. 
 

(h)  Trademarks, Licenses, Concessions, Labor Contracts 
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In 2017, applications for transfer of MPSA to HMDC and/or its subsidiary, HRDC have 
been approved by the DENR. 
 
On labor contracts, please see the discussion on employees under Item (l). 

 
In 2016, the Philippine Intellectual Property Office issued Certificates of Registration 
to HSSI for the following trademarks: (1) “HuBB” logo; and (2) “HUB Builders Center”. 

 
(i) Governmental Approval of Principal Products 

 

The DTI Bureau of Product Standards (BPS) granted HPI the license to use the 
Philippine Standard Quality Certification Mark for its principal products. All other 
necessary licenses and permits required for the continuous production and sale of HPI 
products have been secured by the Company, including new licenses as well as those 
that have to be renewed periodically.   
 
HPI and its subsidiaries comply with environmental laws and secure government 
approvals for all its products. HPI has existing permits from various government agencies 
including the DTI – Bureau of Philippine Standards, Department of Environment and 
Natural Resources and the Laguna Lake and Development Authority. The Company is 
not aware of any recent or impending legislation, which if implemented can result in a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial condition 

 
(j) Research and Development  

 
The Company is engaged in research and development for improving the production 
process used in its plants and for improving the quality and strength of its products. The 
Company spent a total of P=112.9 million research and development costs in last three 
years as follows: 

 
Table 3 – Research and Development Costs 

 
    Amount Percentage 

Period Covered (‘000 Pesos) to Revenues 
CY ended December 31, 2020 P= 37,251 0.14% 
CY ended December 31, 2019 37,688 0.11% 
CY ended December 31, 2018 37,919 0.11% 

Total P=112,858  
 

(k) Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws  

 

The Company conducts its operations consistent with sustainable development 
principles and continuously improves its environmental performance to ensure 
compliance to environmental laws and regulations both locally and internationally. 

  
The Company is committed to comply with environmental laws, regulations and 
standards applicable to its products and operations and subscribes to leading industry 
initiatives and internal requirements. It also assesses and measures its environmental 
impacts and continuously improves its processes, tools and capabilities and promotes 
best practices in the industry. For example, in order to ensure compliance to air emission 
standards, the plants maintain and operate electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-
cyclone and bag filters to mitigate dust emissions. The plants are also equipped with 
Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS) for real time monitoring of gaseous 
emissions such as nitrogen oxide (NOx) and sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions, carbon 
monoxide (CO) and volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions. Overall performance 
is validated regularly by quarterly monitoring of multi-stakeholders and government 
audits and is confirmed that HPI is compliant with the existing government standards. 
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The plants are ISO 14001 certified or have an effective environmental management 
system in place to ensure all environmental impacts and risks are effectively managed 
and mitigated. The company continuously optimize its use of resources through re-using, 
recovering and/or recycling waste materials in own production processes where feasible, 
minimizing the generation of any hazardous and non-hazardous waste, and disposing 
waste using safe and responsible methods. 
  
The Company proactively engages with stakeholders and cooperates with legislators 
and regulators to ensure environmental obligations are fulfilled and local regulations are 
complied. 

 
(l) Employees  

 
As of December 31, 2020, HPI and subsidiaries had a total of 1,174 officers and regular 
employees broken down as follows: 

 
Table 4 – Officers and Employees 

 
 

Location 
 

HPI 
 

Subsidiaries 
 

TOTAL 
Head Office* 346 0 346 
Bulacan Plant 228 0 228 
La Union Plant 161 0 161 
Davao Plant 198 0 198 
Lugait Plant 85 118 203 
Calumpit 30 0 30 
Calaca 8 0 8 
Total 1,056 118 1,174 

  * Includes Mabini plant 

 
 

There is a slight reduction in the company’s manpower complement compared to last 
year’s due to various employee separations and deliberate decision to defer hiring of 
replacements to 2021.  Over-all attrition rate recorded 7%, where 3.5% of which was due 
to resignations and early retirement. The ongoing pandemic propelled the company to 
implement various cost measures such as Flexible Work Arrangement (FWA) or 
Alternative Work Schemes (AWS), working from home and deployment of temporary 
roles to maintain the level of workforce and to cushion the financial impact to employees.    
 
The Company continued its commitment to develop people under the “new normal”. The 
year 2020 focused on the execution of the different development actions identified in the 
development plans of employees, of which about 90% were completed.  This will help 
the organization as it navigates this phase of business recovery where new skills set, 
flexibility and resilience are maybe required. 
  
Talent Review and Succession Planning to make sure that internal talents are available 
continued in 2020. The scope expanded to developing talents in the early stages of the 
employees’ career, more employees were included in this year’s review compared to last 
year. More than twice the number of employees were identified as successors to critical 
leadership positions. 
 
HPI cement plant supervisory and rank and file employees are unionized including the 
rank-and-file of the paper bag plant. All these labor unions have an existing Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) signed with the Company.  

 
The following table shows the respective labor unions of HPI and its subsidiaries and the 
expiry dates of their CBAs: 
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Table 6 – Labor Unions 
 

Location of 
Cement Plant Labor Union CBA Expiry Date 

Bacnotan, La Union La Union Cement Workers Union 
 
Holcim La Union Supervisory Employees Union 

March 31, 2022 
 

March 31, 2024 
Norzagaray, 
Bulacan 

Holcim Philippines Employees Association (HPEA) 
 
UCC Bulacan Supervisory Employees Union 
(UBSEU) 

December 31, 2020 
 

February 28, 2024 

Lugait, Misamis 
Oriental 

Holcim Lugait Employees Labor Union 
 
Holcim Lugait Supervisors Independent Union 

July 31, 2021 
 

March 31, 2024 
Davao City Davao Holcim Employees Workers Union 

 
Holcim Davao Supervisory Independent Union 

March 31, 2025 
 

March 31, 2025 
Calumpit, Bulacan Holcim Paper Bag Plant Employees Association – 

FFW Chapter 
December 31, 2023 

 
Three CBA Negotiations happened in 2019 and these were closed within three to five 
meetings without any intervention from external partners. 
 

 (m)   Risk Factors   

 

Political and Economic Factors  
 

The Company and its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the manufacture of clinker 
and cement in the Philippines. Cement is one of the basic materials for building works 
and sales are highly dependent on the demand for construction activities and the 
aggregate growth of the economy as well as political conditions in the country. 
 
One of the principal factors that may materially affect financial performance is the level 
of construction activity in the public and private sectors. Public sector construction activity 
has always been a significant part of cement demand. However, government spending 
on construction-related activities (e.g., infrastructure and housing) is dependent on 
various factors mainly budgetary constraints and political considerations that could 
impact government’s ability to execute is planned projects. 
 
On the other hand, private sector spending is primarily driven by investors’ confidence in 
the country, which in turn, is dependent on the country’s economic and political 
conditions.  
 
Any perceived political instability or lower-than-expected economic growth could have 
an adverse effect on the Company’s financial performance. 
 
Availability of Stable Power Supply 
 
The contract with AC Energy Philippines, Inc. (ACEPI) valid until December 25, 2030 
provides stable and guaranteed power supply for La Union Plant, Bulacan Plant, and 
Mabini Grinding Plant.  The contract also provides island mode backup power for both 
La Union and Bulacan plants during grid failures.  
 
Lugait and Davao Plants, both situated in Mindanao, are now enjoying electricity surplus 
compared to previous years where curtailments were prevalent due to limited generation 
capacities. The energy surplus in Mindanao resulted from new coal power plants starting 
commercial operations in mid-2016 and subsequent years. It is projected that the 
additional capacities will provide Mindanao with surplus power supply in the medium-
term.   
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WESM is not yet available in Mindanao.  Also, the Retail Competition and Open Access 
(RCOA) can only be launched after WESM has been implemented. Hence, Lugait and 
Davao Plants will remain captive customers of Distribution Utility – Moresco I and Davao 
Light and Power Company (DLPC), respectively.  
 
The Company is exploring measures to manage power costs and at the same time 
contribute to sustainability strategy. 
 
Dependence on Key Facilities 
 
Substantially all of HPI’s income has been, and will be derived from the sale of products 
manufactured at its production facilities in Luzon and Mindanao. Any prolonged 
breakdown of, or significant damage to, the Company’s production facilities could have 
an adverse effect on the results of its operations. HPI maintains comprehensive property 
and casualty insurance policies covering its production facilities and key assets under an 
Industrial All-Risk policy. However, there can be no assurance that the proceeds from 
HPI’s insurance claims would be sufficient to compensate the Company for all the effects 
of possible loss and/or damage. Notwithstanding that, the Company has appropriate 
processes and measures in place to further mitigate the risk of any possible loss or 
damage. 
 
Impact of the Exchange Rate Fluctuations 
 

Based on the 2020 Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Annual Exchange Rate Report, the 
Philippine Peso appreciated from PhP50.74 against the US Dollar as of December 31, 
2019 to PhP48.04 as of December 31, 2020. The Peso has undergone fluctuations 
during the year with an average rate of PhP49.62. The strengthening of the Peso resulted 
in the decrease of cost of production inputs such as imported fuel, coal and supplies. 

 
Environmental and Regulatory Matters  
 

Cement manufacturing uses extensive resource and energy. It uses raw materials such 
as limestone, fossil fuel (coal and bunker fuel), electric power and water. As such, the 
environmental risks and impacts should be mitigated to ensure compliance to regulatory 
requirements and maintain operations in sustainable manner. An effective environmental 
management system is in place to manage these risks and impacts. 
 
HPI conforms to rules and regulations defined under the following: The Philippine 
Environmental Impact Statement System (PD 1586), The Philippine Clean Air Act 1999 
(RA 8749), Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275), Ecological Solid Waste 
Management Act of 2000 (RA 9003), and Toxic Substances & Hazardous & Nuclear 
Waste Control Act of 1990 (RA 6969). Other Applicable Laws & Regulations are also 
identified in the Company’s Integrated Management System Manual. 
 
In a group-wide program, the Group strives to reduce dust emissions below the 
prescribed 150 mg/Nm3 level that the government allows cement plants to emit under 
the Philippine Clean Air Act. The Group maintains and operates modern electrostatic 
precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag filters for mitigating the dust coming 
from its plants’ pre-heater towers, kilns and cement mill grinding systems. With these 
modern dust control systems in place, HPI‟s cement plants kept dust emission levels 
below the prescribed government standard. The Group has in place Continuous 
Emission Monitoring System (CEMS) in all its four plants for continuous monitoring of 
particulate and gaseous emissions of main stack. The emissions data are being reported 
daily to regulatory body. In terms of compliance to Clean Water Act, the Company has 
in place pollution control facilities to manage storm water run-off and seasonal process 
water discharge such as siltation ponds. In terms of managing domestic water discharge, 
the Company properly maintains and operates waste treatment facilities. The Company 
also have waste management disposal facilities in the plants. The wastes generated by 
the plant which are qualified to be used as alternative fuel for the kiln are being co-
processed. This co-processing technology under Geocycle follows the highest standard 
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of environmental compliance. The four plants are also granted with Treatment, Storage 
and Disposal (TSD) Certificate as attestation to Geocycle’s responsible handling and 
Management of hazardous industrial wastes. 
 
HPI’s four plants continue to be recognized by the relevant national government 
agencies for its environmental performance and programs.  
 
The status of compliance on the conditions stated in the Environmental Compliance 
Certificate (ECC) is regularly reported to DENR through the submission of Self-
Monitoring Reports (SMR), Compliance Monitoring Reports (CMR), and Compliance 
Monitoring and Verification Reports (CMVR). Overall environmental performance is 
validated regularly by quarterly monitoring of multi-partite monitoring team (MMT) and 
government audits and is confirmed that HPI is compliant with the existing government 
standards. 
 

Item 2.  Properties  
 
The Company’s major items of property, plant and equipment are located in Norzagaray, 
Bulacan; Bacnotan, La Union; Bo. Ilang, Davao City; Lugait, Misamis Oriental; Mabini, Batangas; 
Calaca, Batangas; Iloilo; and Manila. The table shows the consolidated properties of HPI as of 
December 31, 2020 compared to December 31, 2019. 
 

Table 7 – Plant, Property and Equipment (Consolidated) 
 

 
(In Thousand Pesos) 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

Machinery and equipment P=29,559,173 P=26,985,692 
Buildings and installations 14,112,017 13,593,446 
Furniture, vehicles and tools 998,828 1,023,527 
Construction in progress 1,330,800 3,747,152 

 46,000,818 45,349,817 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation, 
depletion 

  

   and allowance for impairment loss 26,475,284 25,350,514 
           Total      P=19,525,534  P=19,999,303  

 
In connection with the principal properties of the Company, there are no existing mortgages, liens 
or encumbrances nor limitations in the usage or ownership.  

 
There are no imminent acquisitions of property of significant amount that cannot be funded either 
by the Company’s working capital or debt.  
 
The table below summarizes the significant lease agreements entered into by the Company as 
a lessee. 
 

Description Start Date Expiration Date 
 

2020 Lease 
Payments  
(in ‘000) 

 

Renewal Options 

Plants, 
Terminals, 
Ports 

01.01.2016 01.01.2041 P=990,656 The contracts may be renewed or 
extended upon the mutual 
agreement of the Parties.  
 

HO Office  15.11.2014 01.11.2023 47,997 The lease may be renewed upon 
the written agreement and under 
such terms and conditions as 
maybe acceptable to both 
parties. 
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Description Start Date Expiration Date 
 

2020 Lease 
Payments  
(in ‘000) 

 

Renewal Options 

Industrial 
Warehouse 

16.01.2013 24.04.2021 6,764 The contract may be renewed or 
extended upon the mutual 
agreement of the Parties.  

Others 
(Housing, 
Vehicles) 

15.03.2016 15.03.2022 300,820 The contract may be renewed or 
extended upon the mutual 
agreement of the Parties. 

 
 
Item 3.  Legal Proceedings   
  

The Company is either a defendant or plaintiff in several civil, criminal and labor cases primarily 
involving collection and claims for damages. Based on the representation of management and 
the opinion of the Company’s external legal counsels, the resolution of such cases will not result 
in any significant liability or loss of assets.  
 
Other financial assets include the restricted funds in relation to court-mandated garnishment 
arising from a case filed by Seasia against the Group.      
  
Pending material legal proceedings involving the Company are described in Annex C of the 
Information Statement. 
 
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  
   
Except for the matters taken up during the last annual and special meeting of the stockholders 
covered by the Company’s Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS), no matter was submitted 
to a vote of security holders through solicitation of proxies or otherwise during the calendar year 
covered by this Report. 
 
 
IV. COMPANY’S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 
Please refer to the Information Statement for the discussion of the identity of each of the 
Company’s Board of Directors and Executive Officers including their principal occupation or 
employment, name and principal business of any organization by which such persons are 
employed. 
 
 
V.  MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  
 
(1) Market Information 
 

HPI common shares are listed in the PSE.  The high and low market prices of HPI shares for 
each quarter of calendar year 2020, and that of the past two calendar years, as reported by the 
PSE, are shown below: 
 

Table 8 – Market Prices of HPI Shares* 
 

Quarter Period CY 2020 CY 2019 CY 2018 
 High Low High Low High Low 

January – March 14.08 10.08 10.34 10.18 10.84 9.40 
April – June 8.93 6.02 13.70 13.42 9.90 7.02 
July – September 6.44 5.20 14.50 14.10 7.70 6.78 
October – 
December 7.92 6.72 13.70 13.50 6.92 5.70 

 
     *Source:  Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. 
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As of March 31, 2021, the closing price of the Company’s common shares at the PSE is PhP5.70 
per share. 
 
(2) Stockholders 
 

As of March 31, 2021, HPI has 6,452,099,144 common shares outstanding held by 5,257 
stockholders. The list of the top twenty stockholders of the Company as recorded by Stock 
Transfer Service, Inc., the Company’s stock transfer agent, is as follows: 

 

Table 9 – Top Twenty (20) Stockholders 
 

Rank Name Citizenship Shares (Sum) % 
1 UNION CEMENT HOLDINGS 

CORPORATION  
FILIPINO 3,906,425,506 60.55% 

2 HOLDERFIN B.V. DUTCH 1,168,450,996 18.11% 
3 SUMITOMO OSAKA CEMENT CO., 

LTD. 
JAPANESE 594,952,725 9.22% 

4 CEMCO HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 456,689,560 7.08% 
5 PCD NOMINEE CORPFILIPINO) FILIPINO  199,876,050 3.10% 
6 PCD NOMINEE CORP. ( NON-

FILIPINO) 
FOREIGN 96,252,208 1.49% 

7 ANTONIO M. DUMALIANG &/OR 
ROSALINDA S. DUMALIANG 

FILIPINO 922,363 0.01% 

8 KAKUGARA AKIHIKO LEONCIO TIU FILIPINO 559,580 0.01% 
9 LUIS CO CHI KIAT FILIPINO 511,242 0.01% 
10 LUIS ROLANDO GARCIA FADRIGO FILIPINO 419,578 0.01% 
11 JOAQUIN Q. TAN FILIPINO 380,000 0.00% 
12 AMERICAN WIRE & CABLE CO., INC. FILIPINO 290,993 0.00% 
13 LILIA V. QUITO FILIPINO 288,000 0.00% 
14 UNIVERSITY OF SANTO TOMAS 

VILLANUEVA AMANDO 
FILIPINO 190,750 0.00% 

15 FRANCIS L. ESCALER FILIPINO 186,935 0.00% 
16 ANG GUAN PIAO  184,030 0.00% 
17 ISABELA CULTURAL CORPORATION FILIPINO 156,439 0.00% 
18 FRANCISCO C. EIZMENDI, JR. FILIPINO 149,459 0.00% 
19 ROSALIA M. AMANDO FILIPINO 141,069 0.00% 
20 BENITO G. OBLENA FILIPINO 137,337 0.00% 

  Total 6,427,164,820 99.61% 
  
(3) Dividends  
 
The Company is authorized to pay cash or stock dividends, or a combination thereof, subject 
to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors and/or its shareholders. Dividends paid in 
the form of additional shares are subject to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors, 
the SEC and the stockholders of at least two thirds of the outstanding shares of the Company.  
Holders of outstanding shares on a dividend record date for such shares will be entitled to the 
full dividend declared without regard to any subsequent transfer of shares. 
 
Other than the provisions in the loan covenants agreed to by the Company, there are no other 
limitations for the Company to declare dividends to its common stock. 
 
The Company did not declare dividends for the year ended December 31, 2020 to conserve 
cash due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and for the year ended December 31, 2019 due to then-
ongoing divestment discussions with a third-party. Cash dividends were declared for the year 
ended 2018 as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 2018 
Cash Dividend Per Share (PhP) NIL NIL ₱0.42 
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  2020 2019 2018 
Amount Declared (PhP) NIL NIL ₱2.7 billion 

Declaration Date - - 18-May-18 

Record Date - - 15-June-18 
 
 
(4) Sales of Unregistered Securities Within the Last Three (3) Years 
 
There are no other securities sold for cash by the Company within the last three years that were 
not registered under the SRC. 
 
 
VI. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 
The Company has in place a robust internal control system which is an overall process effected 
by the Board, management and other personnel designed to provide reasonable assurance 
concerning: (i) the reliability of the financial reporting and statements; (ii) compliance with laws 
and regulations; (iii) protection of assets and fraud prevention; (iv) effectiveness and efficiency of 
processes. Additionally, in accordance with the Company's Corporate Governance Manual, the 
Board is assisted by a Compliance Officer who is in charge of evaluating and ensuring compliance 
by the Company, the Board of Directors and officers with its Manual of Corporate Governance, 
Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies (the CG Code) and all relevant 
laws, rules and regulations 
 
The Board has established a Corporate Governance Committee which ensures that the Board 
and the Company, as a whole, is sufficiently conversant and compliant with the adopted leading 
practices in corporate governance. This committee is required to be composed of at least three 
(3) independent directors and one (1) non-executive non-independent director. 
 
There has been no known deviation from the Company's Manual of Corporate Governance. 
 
The Board always seeks to improve corporate governance of the Company by improving existing 
policies, developing and establishing new policies required by the Company's Corporate 
Governance Manual and undertaking measures to implement such policies. 
 
 
THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 (SEC FORM 17-A) 
ARE ACCESSIBLE AT THE COMPANY’S WEBSITE (WWW.HOLCIM.PH) OR AVAILABLE 
UPON REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDERS. YOUR REQUEST MAY BE SENT DIRECTLY 
TO THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, AT THE 7TH TWO WORLD SQUARE, 
MCKINLEY HILL, FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY, PHILIPPINES AND A COPY WILL BE 
SENT TO YOU, FREE OF CHARGE. 
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES ) 
TAGUIG CITY           ) S.S. 

 
SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

 
I, BELINDA E. DUGAN, Filipino citizen, of legal age, with office and postal 

address at 8th Floor Three World Square, McKinley Town Center, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig 
City, do hereby certify that:  

 
1. I am the Corporate Secretary of Holcim Philippines, Inc. (the 

“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and the Philippines 
laws with principal place of business at 7th Floor Two World Square, McKinley Hill, Fort 
Bonifacio, Taguig City.  

 
2. As of the date of this certification, none of the members of the Board of 

Directors or officers of the Corporation are employed by or connected with any 
government agencies or instrumentalities.  

 
3. This certification is issued in connection with the submission of the 

Corporation’s Definitive Information Statement.  
 
 
 

 
BELINDA E. DUGAN  
 Corporate Secretary  
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ANNEX C 
 

Involvement in Legal Proceedings 
 
A. Material Legal Proceedings 

 
a. In Re: Petition for Interim Measure of Protection under Rule 5 of the Special Rules of 

Court on Alternative Dispute Resolution; Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. vs. Holcim 
Philippines, Inc.; SP Proc Case No. 377-ML; Branch 95 of the Regional Trial Court in 
Mariveles, Bataan 

 
On October 4, 2018, Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. (Seasia) filed a petition for interim measure 
of protection with the Regional Trial Court in Mariveles, Bataan (Bataan RTC) against the Company 
for the alleged purpose of securing any judgment Seasia may secure from the arbitration case it will 
supposedly file against the Company with the Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc. (PDRCI), 
questioning the Company’s termination of their Port Services Agreement effective September 22, 
2018. In an Order dated November 22, 2018, the Bataan RTC granted Seasia’s petition and issued 
a writ of preliminary attachment of the Company’s properties. Pursuant to such order, the Company’s 
funds were garnished. 
 
On 14 December 2018, the Company filed a notice of arbitration with the PDRCI for a declaration 
that the termination of the Port Services Agreement is valid and the reversal of the Bataan RTC’s 
Order dated 22 November 2018. Pending the constitution of an arbitral panel in the arbitration 
proceedings docketed as PDRCI Case No. 95-2018, the Company initiated emergency arbitration 
proceedings to question the interim measure of protection issued by the Bataan RTC and the 
garnishment of its funds. The emergency arbitrator ruled in the Company’s favor and declared that 
there are no grounds for the issuance of an interim measure of protection.  
 
The Company asked the Bataan RTC to set aside the interim measure of protection on the basis of 
the decision of the emergency arbitrator’s decision. The Bataan RTC, however, refused to 
acknowledge the emergency arbitrator’s jurisdiction to modify, reverse, or set aside an interim 
measure of protection issued by a trial court pending the constitution of an arbitration panel and ruled 
that it is only the arbitration panel who has such authority.  
 
The Bataan RTC suspended the proceedings and archived the case after the constitution of the 
arbitration panel and commencement of the proceedings in PDRCI Case No. 95-2018.  
 
After a final award was issued in the arbitration case, the Company moved for the retrieval of the 
case records and termination of the proceedings. The Company claimed that the interim measure of 
protection proceedings had been rendered moot by the final award in the arbitration case and all 
incidents with in relation to the final award, including the propriety of the interim measure of protection 
issued by Bataan RTC and the garnishment of the Company’s funds, properly pertains to the 
Regional Trial Court in Taguig City where the Company filed its petition for the vacation of the arbitral 
award. This motion is pending resolution.  
 
b. In the Matter of an Arbitration under the 2015 Arbitration Rules of the Philippine 

Dispute Resolution Center, Inc.; Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. vs. Holcim 
Philippines, Inc.; PDRCI Case No. 95-2018 

 

On 14 December 2018, the Company filed a notice of arbitration with the PDRCI for a declaration 
that the termination of the Port Services Agreement is valid and the reversal of the Bataan RTC’s 
Order dated 22 November 2018.  

On 14 September 2020, the arbitral tribunal ruled that the Company validly terminated the Port 
Services Agreement (PSA). However, arbitral tribunal ruled that the PSA did not supersede the 
Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”), which the parties executed in 2015 prior to the PSA for the 
purpose laying down the minimum terms and conditions that should govern the PSA. Therefore, with 
the MOA being valid and existing but suspended because of the Company’s termination of the PSA 
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and the resulting dispute on its validity, the arbitral tribunal ruled that Seasia is entitled to 
compensation. The Arbitral Tribunal gave Seasia two options: (i) receipt from the Company of the 
amount of P588,379,260.00, net of VAT, which supposedly represents the minimum revenue of 
Seasia during the period that the Memorandum of Agreement had been suspended as a result of 
this dispute (“first option”); or, (ii) two-year extension of the Memorandum of Agreement for a total 
remaining term of seven (7) years and ten and a half (10 1⁄2) months (“second option”). The Arbitral 
Tribunal also required the Company to reimburse Seasia the amount of P21,961,151.16, 
representing the amount Seasia paid PDRCI. Seasia informed the arbitral tribunal and the Company 
that it prefers the first option and that it expects to receive from the Company its supposed revenues 
for the unexpired portion of the MOA. Seasia claims that the MOA has a term of 10 years and it is 
entitled to the rates stipulated in the MOA as Seasia’s service fees under the port services agreement 
that the Company and Seasia will execute regardless of whether the Company and Seasia will 
actually execute such agreement and the Company actually avails Seasia’s services.  

c. In Re: Petition for Confirmation of Domestic Arbitral Award  
Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. vs. Holcim Philippines, Inc.  
S.P. No. 399 
Branch 95, Regional Trial Court in Mariveles, Bataan 

 
Seasia filed a petition at the Regional Trial Court in Mariveles, Bataan (“Bataan RTC”) for the 
confirmation of the decision of the arbitral tribunal. The Company asked the Bataan RTC to dismiss 
Seasia’s petition for being prematurely filed under the rules on alternative dispute resolution issued 
by the Supreme Court (“Special ADR Rules”). The Company file a motion in  Bataan RTC to suspend 
the proceedings on Seasia’s petition and defer to the decision of the Regional Trial Court in Taguig 
City (“Taguig Court”), where the Company’s petition to vacate the arbitral award is pending. The 
Bataan RTC denied the motion to suspend the proceeding and ordered the conduct of pre-trial 
conference, 
 
d. In Re: Petition to Vacate Domestic Arbitral Award 
 Holcim Philippines, Inc. vs. Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. 
 S.P. No. 128 
 Branch 271, Regional Trial Court in Taguig City  
 
The Company filed a petition at the Taguig Court for the vacation of the final award in PDRCI Case 
No. 95-2018, which is currently pending resolution.  
 

B. Tax Cases (Parent Company) 
 
a. The Company filed on June 24, 2014, a Complaint before the Regional Trial Court of 

Malolos, Bulacan for the annulment of the Notice of Assessment of Business Tax on Alleged 
Discovered Unreported Cement Sales dated February 24, 2014 issued by the Municipal 
Treasurer of the Bulacan and for the reversal of the denial of Holcim’s Protest letter dated 
April 23, 2014 questioning the Assessment Notice. 

 
While this action was pending, the Company received on October 26, 2015, an Assessment 
Notice which assessed the Company for an alleged deficiency local business tax (LBT) in 
the aggregate amount of P118.2 Million Pesos for the years 2006 to 2015. Unlike the 2014 
Assessment Notice which involves the defendants’ assessment of LBT against the Company 
based on the purported undeclared gross sales or receipts for the years 2006 to 2012, the 
2015 Assessment Notice concerns the Treasurer’s assessment of LBT against the against 
the Company based on the purported undeclared gross sales or receipts for the years 2006 
to 2015. The Municipal Treasurer did not act on the Company protest within the 60-day 
period provided in Section 195 of the Local Government Code (LGC), and thus, on March 
21, 2016, the Company filed a Complaint/Appeal with the Bulacan RTC which sought the 
cancellation/nullification of the 2015 Assessment Notice.  
 
On September 13, 2016, the Company filed a motion to consolidate the first and second 
case before Branch 19 of the RTC of Bulacan. Motion to consolidate was granted on 
November 29, 2016.  
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The hearing for initial presentation of evidence took place on April 16, May 28 and October 
22, 2018. The hearing for the presentation of the Necessary Parties’ evidence took place on 
February 4, 2019. On May 16, 2019, Holcim filed its Memorandum. On May 21, 2019, the 
court issued an Order stating that the case is now submitted for decision. 
 
On October 28, 2020, the Company received the Decision issued by the Regional Trial Court 
Branch 19 Malolos, Bulacan dated July 1, 2020, which declared the 2014 and 2015 
Assessment Notices issued by defendant Municipality of Norzagaray, Province of Bulacan 
against Holcim Phils. Inc. as NULL and VOID and ordered the Municipality of Norzagaray, 
Bulacan and Filipina D.G. De Mesa, in her capacity as ICO-Municipal Treasurer of 
Norzagaray, to jointly and severally pay Holcim Phils., Inc. the amount of One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Pesos (P150,000.00) as attorney’s fees and to pay the cost of litigation.  

 
b. The Company received an Assessment from the Provincial Assessor and a Notice of Real 

Property Tax (RPT) Delinquencies issued by the Provincial and Municipal Treasurers of 
Norzagaray, Bulacan on December 18, 2012. The Assessment demanded total of P80.3M 
related to the RPT of machineries and equipment for the years 2011 and 2012. The Local 
Board of Assessment Appeals (LBAA) granted the Company’s Motion to Post Bond 
amounting to P80.3M. The Appeal is still pending with the LBAA.  

 
 On April 23, 2013, the Provincial Assessor of Bulacan issued a revised tax declaration on 

machineries and equipment at the Company’s Bulacan Plant. Soon after, on June 2013, the 
Company received an assessment for the years 2011 to 2012 and a computation of RPT for 
the first and second quarter of 2013. The assessed additional RPT amounted to P23.8M. 
On September 13, 2013, the Company received an additional assessment from Municipal 
Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan for RPT due on its 1998 and Additional Line 2 Properties 
for the third quarter of 2013. The said assessment also reiterated the previous assessments 
made for 2011 to second quarter of 2013. The Company’s supplemental appeals, covering 
the first and second quarter RPT Assessment and September 2013 Assessments with the 
LBAA are pending resolution.  
 
On March 10, 2014, the Company received 71 tax declarations and 71 notices of 
assessments over its machineries for 2014 from the Municipal Assessor of Norzagaray, 
Bulacan. Thereafter on May 9, 2014, the Company received a notice of assessment from 
the Provincial Assessor of Norzagaray, Bulacan. On May 15, 2014, the Company also 
received an assessment from the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan requiring the 
Company to pay deficiency RPT for the years 2011 to 2013 amounting to P129M. The 
Company’s supplemental appeals with the LBAA for the assessments are pending 
resolution.  
 
On December 9, 2014, at the suggestion of the Provincial Governor of Bulacan and the 
Municipal Mayor of Norzagaray, Bulacan, the Company paid under protest RPT amounting 
to P120M, allocated as follows: (a) land: P8.6M; (b) buildings: P3.3M; (c) machineries: 
P107.9M. On January 9, 2015, the Company filed three protests with the Provincial 
Treasurer. Following the Provincial Treasurer’s inaction over the Company’s protests, the 
Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, raising the following issues: (a) whether the 
Company is entitled to an annual depreciation allowance; (b) what is the correct amount that 
should be credited in the Company’s favour on account of its RPT payments from 2011 to 
the third quarter of 2013; and (c) whether it is correct to assess interest, surcharges and 
penalties on the RPT that the Company attempted to pay on time but which the local 
government officials refused to accept with respect to the RPT for the 4th quarter of 2013 to 
2014. This appeal is pending resolution.  

 
On March 30, 2015, the Company received an assessment of deficiency RPT for 2015 
amounting to P49.3M. The Company paid the assessed amount and filed a protest with the 
Provincial Treasurer of Bulacan. Following the Provincial Treasurer’s failure to act on the 
Company’s protest within the prescribed period, the Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, 
which is pending resolution.  

 



 4 

On March 31, 2016, the Company received from the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, 
Bulacan an assessment for deficiency RPT for 2016 amounting to P103M. The Company 
paid the said amount and filed a protest with the Provincial Treasurer. Thereafter, on May 
13, 2016, the Municipal Treasurer issued of Norzagaray, Bulacan issued a revised 
computation of the Company’s liabilities for 2016 amounting to P46.8M. The Company thus 
filed a supplement to its earlier protest with the Provincial Treasurer. Following the Provincial 
Treasurer’s failure to act on the Company’s protest within the prescribed period, the 
Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, which is pending resolution.  
 
On March 31, 2016, the Company received from the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, 
Bulacan an assessment for deficiency RPT for 2017 amounting to P41.1M for its lands, 
buildings and machineries located in its Bulacan plant. On August 17, 2017, the Company 
filed an appeal with the LBAA in respect to its payment under protest.  
 
On March 26, 2018, the Company received an assessment computation of RPT due on 
Holcim’s Bulacan Plant for the year 2018 in the amount of P52M. On the same date, the 
Company paid the RPT due on Holcim’s properties, of which payment amounting to P41.1M 
for the machineries is under protest. The protest with the Provincial Treasurer was filed on 
April 25, 2018. Following the Provincial Treasurer’s failure to act on the Company’s protest 
within the prescribed period, the Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, which is pending 
resolution.  
 
On December 17, 2018, the Company received an Assessment Notice for the RPT due on 
its machineries and equipment located at its cement manufacturing facility in Norzagaray, 
Bulacan for the year 2019 amounting to P40.5M. On December 28, 2018, Holcim paid under 
the protest the total amount assessed. The protest with the Provincial Treasurer was filed 
on January 25, 2019. Following the Provincial Treasurer’s failure to act on the Company’s 
protest within the prescribed period, the Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, which is 
pending resolution.  
 
On January 25, 2019, the Company received an Assessment Notice which assessed Holcim 
alleged RPT in respect of its machineries and equipment located at its cement 
manufacturing facility in Norzagaray, Bulacan for the year 2016. The Company filed the 
Appeal on the 2016 Assessment Notice on May 23, 2019. Following the Provincial 
Treasurer’s failure to act on the Company’s protest within the prescribed period, the 
Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, which is pending resolution.  
 
Holcim has filed a Motion to Resolve requesting the LBAA to act on all of Holcim’s pending 
appeals.  
 
On January 31, 2019, Holcim appeared in a hearing before the LBAA. The LBAA scheduled 
a hearing on March 28, 2019 for the rendition of its judgment.  
 
On July 6, 2020, Holcim received the Joint Decision issued by LBAA, Bulacan dated March 
6, 2020, which denied the Petition and disallowed the claims for tax credit and refund. Holcim 
was directed to pay the respondent its tax liabilities amounting to P315.6M with directive 
upon the respondent Treasurer of the Municipality of Norzagaray, Bulacan, to deduct from 
said amount all prior payments made under protest by Holcim that are covered by the 
assessment notices or orders of payment at issue.  
 
On July 13, 2020, the Central Board of Assessment Appeals (CBAA) received the Appeal 
filed by Holcim. The case is still pending with the CBAA.  

 
c. HPI has an on-going tax audit for 2016 national taxes. Last December 21, 2020 the BIR has 

issued a Preliminary Assessment Notice (PAN) for all national taxes for alleged deficiency 
taxes amounting to P2.9B, inclusive of penalties and interest. The Company has filed its 
protest to PAN last January 5, 2021 and is still pending with the BIR.  

 
d. HPI has an on-going tax audit for 2017 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
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e. HPI has an on-going tax audit for 2018 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
f. HPI has an on-going tax audit for 2019 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 

C. Tax Cases (Subsidiaries) 
 
a. CACI received a final assessment notice from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) in 

December 2014 for alleged deficiency income tax and value-added tax covering the taxable 
year 2011 amounting to P2.5 Million, inclusive of penalties and interest. CACI has availed 
of BIR’s amnesty program and paid P484K last December 17, 2020. The Company is waiting 
for the Notice of Issuance Authority to Cancel Assessment (NIATCA) as proof of cancellation 
of the assessment.  

 
b. ECLI has an on-going tax audit for 2017 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
c. MGMC has an on-going tax audit for 2017 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR 

has not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
d. HPMC has an on-going tax audit for 2000 capital gains tax. Last November 5, 2020, HPMC 

received a Final Decision on Disputed Claim for the alleged deficiency capital gains taxes 
for the amount of P 355.5M. On December 3, 2020, the Company filed its Petition for Review 
with the Court of Tax Appeals.  

 
e. On August 31, 2010, Holcim filed a Complaint for Interpleader against Iligan, Lugait, and 

Misor to compel them to litigate among themselves to determine who among them has taxing 
jurisdiction over Holcim’s Lugait plant. On April 30, 2018, Holcim received the RTC’s 
Decision dated January 22, 2018 dismissing said case. On May 15, 2018, Holcim filed its 
Motion for Reconsideration of the RTC’s Decision. On July 24, 2019, Holcim received the 
court’s Order dated January 9, 2019 denying its Motion for Reconsideration. On August 6, 
2019, Holcim filed its Notice of Appeal dated July 30, 2019. 

 
On December 21, 2020, Holcim received a notice from the Court of Appeals directing it to 
file its Appellant’s Brief within forty-five (45) days from receipt of the notice. Consequently, 
Holcim’s Appellant’s Brief is due on February 4, 2021. 
 

f. HPMC has an on-going tax audit for 2017 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 
not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  

 
g. HPMC has an on-going tax audit for 2018 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
h. HPMC has an on-going tax audit for 2019 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
i. HSSI has an on-going tax audit for 2016 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
j. HSSI has an on-going tax audit for 2017 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
 
k. HSSI has an on-going tax audit for 2018 national taxes. As of March 31, 2021, the BIR has 

not made any determination of deficiency taxes.  
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��� ([DFW�QDPH�RI�LVVXHU�DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�LWV�FKDUWHU����������+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF������������
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� )RUPHU�QDPH��IRUPHU�DGGUHVV��DQG�IRUPHU�ILVFDO�\HDU��LI�FKDQJHG�VLQFH�ODVW�UHSRUW��
�
����6HFXULWLHV�UHJLVWHUHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQV���DQG����RI�WKH�65&��RU�6HF����DQG���RI�WKH�56$�
�
������7LWOH�RI�(DFK�&ODVV� 1XPEHU�RI�6KDUHV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�

2XWVWDQGLQJ�DQG�$PRXQW�RI�'HEW�2XWVWDQGLQJ�
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����$UH�DQ\�RU�DOO�RI�WKHVH�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�RQ�D�6WRFN�([FKDQJH����
�
� <HV�>;@�������1R��>��@�
� �
� ,I�\HV��VWDWH�WKH�QDPH�RI�VXFK�VWRFN�H[FKDQJH�DQG�WKH�FODVVHV�RI�VHFXULWLHV�OLVWHG�WKHUHLQ��
� B[B�3KLOLSSLQH�6WRFN�([FKDQJH��,QF�BBBBBBB������������������������BBB�&RPPRQ�6KDUHV�BBB�
�
����&KHFN�ZKHWKHU�WKH�LVVXHU��
�
� �D�� KDV� ILOHG� DOO� UHSRUWV� UHTXLUHG� WR� EH� ILOHG� E\� 6HFWLRQ� ��� RI� WKH� 65&� DQG� 65&� 5XOH� �����
WKHUHXQGHU�RU�6HFWLRQ����RI�WKH�56$�DQG�56$�5XOH����D����WKHUHXQGHU��DQG�6HFWLRQV����DQG�����RI�
7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�&RGH�RI�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV�GXULQJ�WKH�SUHFHGLQJ�WZHOYH������PRQWKV��RU�IRU�VXFK�VKRUWHU�
SHULRG�WKDW�WKH�UHJLVWUDQW�ZDV�UHTXLUHG�WR�ILOH�VXFK�UHSRUWV���
�
� � <HV��>;@�� 1R��>��@��
� �
�
�
�



6(&�)RUP����$�&<������
)HEUXDU\������
�

��

� �E��KDV�EHHQ�VXEMHFW�WR�VXFK�ILOLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�SDVW�QLQHW\������GD\V����
��
� <HV��>;@�������� 1R��>��@��
�
����6WDWH�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�VWRFN�KHOG�E\�QRQ�DIILOLDWHV�RI�WKH�UHJLVWUDQW��7KH�

DJJUHJDWH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�VKDOO�EH�FRPSXWHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�SULFH�DW�ZKLFK�WKH�VWRFN�ZDV�VROG��
RU� WKH�DYHUDJH�ELG�DQG�DVNHG�SULFHV�RI�VXFK�VWRFN��DV�RI�D�VSHFLILHG�GDWH�ZLWKLQ�VL[W\������GD\V�
SULRU� WR� WKH� GDWH� RI� ILOLQJ�� � ,I� D� GHWHUPLQDWLRQ� DV� WR� ZKHWKHU� D� SDUWLFXODU� SHUVRQ� RU� HQWLW\� LV� DQ�
DIILOLDWH�FDQQRW�EH�PDGH�ZLWKRXW�LQYROYLQJ�XQUHDVRQDEOH�HIIRUW�DQG�H[SHQVH��WKH�DJJUHJDWH�PDUNHW�
YDOXH�RI�WKH�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�KHOG�E\�QRQ�DIILOLDWHV�PD\�EH�FDOFXODWHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�DVVXPSWLRQV�
UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��SURYLGHG�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�WKLV�)RUP����6HH�
GHILQLWLRQ�RI��DIILOLDWH��LQ�³$QQH[�%´���

�
3K3�������������� ������������� FRPPRQ� VKDUHV� #� 3K3����� SHU� VKDUH�� WKH� FORVLQJ� SULFH� DW�
ZKLFK�VWRFN�ZDV�VROG�RQ�'HFHPEHU������������

���
$33/,&$%/(�21/<�72�,668(56�,192/9('�,1��
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��
����&KHFN�ZKHWKHU�WKH�LVVXHU�KDV�ILOHG�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�DQG�UHSRUWV�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�ILOHG�E\�6HFWLRQ����RI�

WKH� &RGH� VXEVHTXHQW� WR� WKH� GLVWULEXWLRQ� RI� VHFXULWLHV� XQGHU� D� SODQ� FRQILUPHG� E\� D� FRXUW� RU� WKH�
&RPPLVVLRQ��

1RW�$SSOLFDEOH�
�
� <HV��>��@�������� 1R��>��@��

�
'2&80(176�,1&25325$7('�%<�5()(5(1&(�

��
����7KH�IROORZLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�DUH�LQFRUSRUDWHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH���
�

�D�� $XGLWHG� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� DV� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� DQG� ����� DQG� IRU� WKH�
WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU������������([KLELW����

�E�� 6WDWHPHQW� RI� 0DQDJHPHQW¶V� 5HVSRQVLELOLW\� IRU� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� DV� RI�
'HFHPEHU����������DQG������DQG�IRU�WKH�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������
±�SDUW�RI�([KLELW����

�F���6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOHV�WR�WKH�$XGLWHG�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�±�([KLELW���
�G�� 6(&�)RUP����4�±�([KLELW���
�H�� /HJDO�3URFHHGLQJV�DQG�3HQGLQJ�/HJDO�&DVHV�±�([KLELW���
�I�� 6(&�)RUP����&�±�([KLELW���
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�

+ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� �+3,� RU� WKH� ³&RPSDQ\´��� LV� RQH� RI� WKH� SUHPLHU� FHPHQW�
PDQXIDFWXUHUV� LQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV�DQG�LV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�*URXS��RQH�RI�WKH�ZRUOG¶V�
OHDGLQJ�VXSSOLHUV�RI�FHPHQW��DJJUHJDWHV��FRQFUHWH�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�UHODWHG�VHUYLFHV��+3,�LV�PDLQO\�
HQJDJHG� LQ� WKH�PDQXIDFWXUH��VDOH�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI� FHPHQW�DQG� FHPHQWLWLRXV� SURGXFWV� DQG� WKH�
SURYLVLRQ� RI� WHFKQLFDO� VXSSRUW� RQ� YDULRXV� FRQVWUXFWLRQ�UHODWHG� TXDOLW\� FRQWURO�� RSWLPL]DWLRQ��
VROXWLRQV�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�VNLOOV�XSJUDGH��
�

7KH� &RPSDQ\� DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDULHV� RZQ� IRXU� FHPHQW� SURGXFWLRQ� IDFLOLWLHV�� RQH� FHPHQW�
JULQGLQJ�PLOO��ILYH�SRUWV��DV�ZHOO�DV�PXOWLSOH�VWRUDJH�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�SRLQWV�DFURVV�WKH�FRXQWU\��
�

7KH� FRQVROLGDWHG� RSHUDWLRQV� RI� WKH� IRXU� FHPHQW� SURGXFWLRQ� IDFLOLWLHV� KDYH� IRUWLILHG�
+3,¶V� SUHPLHU� SRVLWLRQ� LQ� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH� FHPHQW� LQGXVWU\� ZLWK� D� WRWDO� LQVWDOOHG� FOLQNHU� SURGXFWLRQ�
FDSDFLW\� RI�����PLOOLRQ�PHWULF�WRQV�SHU�\HDU��073<��DQG�FHPHQW�SURGXFWLRQ�FDSDFLW\�RI�����PLOOLRQ�
073<��
�

+3,� ZDV� WKH� ILUVW� LQ� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH� FHPHQW� LQGXVWU\� WR� UHFHLYH� ,62� ����� FHUWLILFDWLRQ�
�4XDOLW\�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP�6WDQGDUGV�� IURP� WKH� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�2UJDQL]DWLRQ� IRU� 6WDQGDUGL]DWLRQ�
�,62��� $GGLWLRQDOO\�� DOO� IRXU� SODQWV� DUH� ,62� ������ FHUWLILHG� �(QYLURQPHQW� 0DQDJHPHQW� 6\VWHP�
6WDQGDUGV��DQG�2+	6��������2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�	�6DIHW\�0DQDJHPHQW��FHUWLILHG��
�

³+ROFLP´�LV�RQH�RI�WKH�WRS�VHOOLQJ�EUDQGV�DQG�TXDOLW\�OHDGHUV�LQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV��
�
���� +LVWRU\�DQG�%XVLQHVV�'HYHORSPHQW�

�
+3,� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� DQG� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQHV� 6HFXULWLHV� DQG� ([FKDQJH�

&RPPLVVLRQ��6(&��RQ�1RYHPEHU����������XQGHU�WKH�QDPH�+L�&HPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ��+&&���
�

2Q� )HEUXDU\� ��� ������ WKH� 6(&� DSSURYHG� WKH� PHUJHU� RI� +&&�� 'DYDR� 8QLRQ� &HPHQW�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�� DQG� %DFQRWDQ� &HPHQW� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� ZLWK� +&&� DV� WKH� VXUYLYLQJ� HQWLW\��
6LPXOWDQHRXVO\��WKH� 6(&� DOVR� DSSURYHG� WKH� UHTXHVW� IRU� D� FKDQJH� RI� FRUSRUDWH� QDPH� IURP� +&&�
WR�8QLRQ�&HPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ��8&&���
�

2Q� -DQXDU\� ���� ������ WKH� 6(&� DSSURYHG� WKH� PHUJHU� RI� $WODV� &HPHQW� 0DUNHWLQJ�
&RUSRUDWLRQ��'DYDR�8QLRQ�0DUNHWLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�%DFQRWDQ�0DUNHWLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQWR�8&&��
�

2Q� -XO\� ���� ������ WKH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� RI� 8&&� DSSURYHG� WKH� DFTXLVLWLRQ� RI� ���� RI�
WKH� LVVXHG� DQG� RXWVWDQGLQJ� FRPPRQ� VKDUHV� RI� $OVRQV� &HPHQW� &RUSRUDWLRQ� �$&&�� IURP� &HPFR�
+ROGLQJV��,QF�� �&HPFR��� � ,Q� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� RI� VXFK� VKDUHV�� QHZ� VKDUHV� RI� 8&&� ZHUH� LVVXHG� WR�
&HPFR�� DW� WKH�H[FKDQJH�UDWLR�RI�RQH�����8&&�VKDUH�IRU�HYHU\�����$&&�VKDUHV�RZQHG�E\�&HPFR��
WKXV��PDNLQJ�$&&�D�VXEVLGLDU\�RI�8&&��
�

3XUVXDQW� WR� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� 5HJXODWLRQ� &RGH� �65&�� DQG� LWV� LPSOHPHQWLQJ� UXOHV� DQG�
UHJXODWLRQV�� +3,� XQGHUWRRN� D� WHQGHU� RIIHU� LQ� IDYRU� RI� WKH� UHPDLQLQJ� ���� QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�
VKDUHKROGHUV� RI� $&&� WR� H[FKDQJH� WKHLU� KROGLQJV� LQ� $&&� IRU� QHZ� VKDUHV� RI� 8&&� DW� WKH� VDPH�
H[FKDQJH�UDWLR��ZLWK�WKH�RSWLRQ�WR�DFFHSW�FDVK�DW�D�SULFH�RI�3K3�����SHU�$&&�VKDUH�� LQ�OLHX�RI�+3,�
VKDUHV�� 7KH� IRUHJRLQJ� WUDQVDFWLRQV� ZHUH� DSSURYHG� E\� VKDUHKROGHUV� RI� 8&&� RQ� 6HSWHPEHU� ���
������ 7KH� &RPSDQ\� DFTXLUHG� DGGLWLRQDO�$&&�VKDUHV�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�������HTXLW\� LQWHUHVW� LQ�$&&�
DIWHU�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�WHQGHU�RIIHU�SHULRG��
�

2Q� 6HSWHPEHU� ���� ������ WKH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� RI� $&&� DSSURYHG� D� UHVROXWLRQ� IRU� WKH�
GHOLVWLQJ�RI� WKH�VKDUHV�RI�VWRFNV�RI� WKH�FRPSDQ\�IURP� WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�6WRFN�([FKDQJH��36(���7KH�
36(�DSSURYHG�WKH�UHVROXWLRQ�IRU�WKH�GHOLVWLQJ�RQ�'HFHPEHU�����������
�

�
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2Q�$XJXVW�����������WKH�6(&�DSSURYHG�$&&¶V�UHYHUVH�VWRFN�VSOLW��LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�SDU�YDOXH�
RI� $&&¶V� VKDUHV� WR� 3K3��� ���� SHU� VKDUH� IURP� 3K3����� SHU� VKDUH�� � $V� D� UHVXOW� RI� DGGLWLRQDO�
SXUFKDVHV�IURP� WKH� UHPDLQLQJ�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�VKDUHKROGHUV� RI�$&&� LQ������DQG� WKH�HIIHFW�RI� WKH�
UHYHUVH�VWRFN�VSOLW��8&&�HTXLW\�LQWHUHVW�LQ�$&&�LQFUHDVHG�IURP��������WR��������

�
2Q�1RYHPEHU�����������WKH�6(&�DSSURYHG�WKH�UHTXHVW�IRU�FKDQJH�LQ�FRUSRUDWH�QDPH�IURP�

8&&�WR�+3,��2Q�-DQXDU\�����������WKH�6(&�DOVR�DSSURYHG�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�FRUSRUDWH�QDPH�RI�$&&�
WR�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�&RUS���+30&���
�

2Q�0DUFK� ��� ������ WKH� 6(&� DSSURYHG� WKH� LQFUHDVH� LQ� DXWKRUL]HG� FDSLWDO� VWRFN� RI� +ROFLP�
0LQLQJ�DQG�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ� �+0'&�� �IRUPHUO\�6XOX�5HVRXUFHV�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUS��� ODWHU�
UHQDPHG� +ROFLP� $JJUHJDWHV� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� WR� PDNH� ZD\� IRU� DGGLWLRQDO� VXEVFULSWLRQ� E\� +3,� DQG�
+30&�� LQ�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUWLHV�VXFK�DV�SDUFHOV�RI� ODQG��PLQLQJ�FODLPV�DQG�IRUHVKRUH� OHDVHV��
2Q�0DUFK����������� WKH�6(&�DSSURYHG�WKH� LQFUHDVH� LQ�DXWKRUL]HG�FDSLWDO�VWRFN�RI�+0'&�WR�PDNH�
ZD\�IRU�VXEVFULSWLRQ�E\� WKH�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF��5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�RI� VL[W\�SHUFHQW�RI� WKH� LVVXHG�
DQG� RXWVWDQGLQJ� FDSLWDO�VWRFN�RI�+0'&��7RGD\��+0'&� LV�DQ�DVVRFLDWH�FRPSDQ\�RI�+3,��SURYLGLQJ�
PRVW� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� UDZ� PDWHULDOV� IURP� WKH� TXDUULHV� RI� +0'&� DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDULHV� LQ� /D�
8QLRQ�� %XODFDQ�� /XJDLW� DQG� 'DYDR�� +0'&� DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDULHV� DOVR� OHDVHV� WR� WKH� &RPSDQ\�
SDUFHOV�RI� ODQG�DQG�IRUHVKRUH� OHDVHV�IRU� WKH�ODWWHU¶V�RSHUDWLRQV��
�

$V� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ +3,� LV� ������� RZQHG� E\� 8QLRQ� &HPHQW� +ROGLQJV�
&RUSRUDWLRQ��8&+&����������RZQHG�E\� +ROGHUILQ�%�9���+ROGHUILQ���DQG�������RZQHG�E\� &HPFR�
ZKLOH�WKH�UHPDLQGHU�RI�LWV�VKDUHV�LV�RZQHG�E\�WKH�SXEOLF��+3,�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV�DUH�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�36(��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�6XEVLGLDULHV�
�

+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ��+30&��
�

+30&�ZDV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�DQG�UHJLVWHUHG�ZLWK�WKH�6(&�RQ�)HEUXDU\���������XQGHU�WKH�QDPH�
RI�9LFWRU\�&HPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ��
�

+30&� KDV� ���� PLOOLRQ� 073<� OLQH� WKDW� ZDV� VXFFHVVIXOO\� FRPPLVVLRQHG� LQ� ����� DQG�
VWDUWHG�FRPPHUFLDO� RSHUDWLRQ� LQ� -DQXDU\� ������ +30&¶V� WHUPLQDO� ORFDWHG� LQ� &DODFD�� %DWDQJDV��
ZKLFK� KDG� EHHQ� LGOH� IRU� VHYHUDO� \HDUV�� ZDV� UHKDELOLWDWHG� LQ� ����� DQG� UHVXPHG� RSHUDWLRQV� LQ�
-DQXDU\�������7RGD\��VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�RI�+30&¶V�FHPHQW�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�DVVHWV�DUH�EHLQJ� OHDVHG�
E\�+3,��

�
,Q�-DQXDU\�������+30&�UHQHZHG�WKH�EDUHERDW�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�+3,�IRU� WKH� ODWWHU¶V�YHVVHO�

UHTXLUHPHQWV�WR�WUDQVSRUW�FHPHQW�WR�YDULRXV�GHVWLQDWLRQV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV���
�

+30&¶V� VXEVLGLDU\�� &DODPED� $JJUHJDWHV� &RPSDQ\�� ,QF�� �&$&,��� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� DQG�
UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 6(&� RQ� 2FWREHU� ���� ������ WKDW� RSHUDWHG� DQ� DJJUHJDWHV� SODQW� LQ� /DJXQD��
&$&,�FHDVHG� RSHUDWLRQV� HIIHFWLYH�'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ �

�
+30&¶V� ZKROO\� RZQHG� VXEVLGLDU\�� %XONFHP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� �%3,��� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG�

DQG� UHJLVWHUHG�ZLWK� WKH�6(&� RQ�$SULO� ��� ������7RGD\�� %3,� RZQV� D�EXON� WHUPLQDO� ORFDWHG� LQ� ,ORLOR�
ZKLFK�LV�FXUUHQWO\�EHLQJ�OHDVHG�E\�+3,��

�
$OVRQV� &RQVWUXFWLRQ� &KHPLFDOV�� ,QF�� �$/&+(0��� DQRWKHU� VXEVLGLDU\�� RZQHG� D� FHPHQW�

DQG�PLQHUDO� DGPL[WXUH� SODQW� LQ� /XJDLW�� 0LVDPLV� 2ULHQWDO�� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� LQ� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQHV�
DQG� ZDV� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 6(&� RQ� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ 7KH� RSHUDWLRQ� RI� $/&+(0� ZDV�
GLVFRQWLQXHG�VLQFH�-XO\�������$/&+(0�ILOHG�DQ�DIILGDYLW�RI�QRQ�RSHUDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�6(&�DQG�LV�QRZ�
JRLQJ�WKURXJK�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�GLVVROXWLRQ��
�
�
�
�
�
�
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([FHO�&RQFUHWH�/RJLVWLFV��,QF���(&/,��
�

([FHO�&RQFUHWH�/RJLVWLFV�� ,QF��ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG�DQG�UHJLVWHUHG�ZLWK� WKH�6(&�RQ�$XJXVW����
������2Q� -DQXDU\� ��� ������ (&/,� VWDUWHG� LWV� IXOO� RSHUDWLRQ� VHUYLFLQJ� WKH� GLVWULEXWLRQ�� WUDQVSRUW� DQG�
SODFLQJ� RI�FRQFUHWH��DV�ZHOO�DV�WUDQVSRUW�RI�FHPHQW�DQG�VSHFLDOW\�SURGXFWV��2Q�1RYHPEHU�����������
WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�+3,�DSSURYHG�WKH�FORVXUH�DQG�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�(&/,���2Q�-DQXDU\�����������
WKH�6(&�DSSURYHG�(&/,¶V�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�DPHQGPHQW�RI�(&/,¶V�$UWLFOHV�RI�,QFRUSRUDWLRQ�WR�VKRUWHQ�
LWV�FRUSRUDWH�WHUP�XS�WR�-DQXDU\�����������
�
+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�%XVLQHVV�6HUYLFHV�&HQWHU��,QF���+3%6&,��
�

+ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV� %XVLQHVV� 6HUYLFHV� &HQWHU�� ,QF�� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� DQG� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK�
WKH�6(&�RQ�)HEUXDU\����������� +3%6&,�ZDV�VHW�XS�WR�HQJDJH�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�RI�SURYLGLQJ�EXVLQHVV�
SURFHVV�RXWVRXUFLQJ� DQG� RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ� WHFKQRORJ\�HQDEOHG� VHUYLFHV� WR� WKH� +ROFLP� *URXS�� 2Q�
)HEUXDU\� ���� ������ +3%6&,� WUDQVIHUUHG� DQG� VROG� LWV� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� ULJKWV� DQG� OHDVHKROG�
LPSURYHPHQWV�WR�+ROFLP�(DVW�$VLD�%XVLQHVV�6HUYLFH�&HQWUH�%�9��±�3KLOLSSLQH�52+4����7KH�%RDUG�RI�
'LUHFWRUV�DQG�WKH�VWRFNKROGHUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DSSURYHG�WKH�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�+3%6&,�RQ�1RYHPEHU�
���������DQG�-DQXDU\�����������UHVSHFWLYHO\��
�
+X%%�6WRUHV�DQG�6HUYLFHV�,QF���+66,��
�

+X%%� 6WRUHV� DQG� 6HUYLFHV� ,QF�� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� DQG� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 6(&� RQ��
-XQH� ��� ������ +66,� ZDV� VHW� XS� WR� HQJDJH� LQ� WKH� EXVLQHVV� RI� EX\LQJ�� VHOOLQJ� DQG� GLVWULEXWLQJ�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ� DQG� EXLOGLQJ�PDWHULDOV��DQG�WR�RSHUDWH��PDLQWDLQ�DQG�IUDQFKLVH�VWRUHV� IRU� WKH�VDOH�DQG�
GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI�VDLG�PDWHULDOV��+66,� FHDVHG� LWV�EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV� LQ�$XJXVW� ������7KH�%RDUG� RI�
'LUHFWRUV�DQG�WKH�VWRFNKROGHUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DSSURYHG�WKH�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�+66,�RQ�1RYHPEHU�����
�����DQG�-DQXDU\�����������UHVSHFWLYHO\��
�
0DELQL�*ULQGLQJ�0LOO�&RUSRUDWLRQ��0*0&��
�

0DELQL� *ULQGLQJ� 0LOO� &RUSRUDWLRQ� ZDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG� DQG� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 6(&� RQ�
6HSWHPEHU� ���� ������ � ,Q� $XJXVW� ������ WKH� UHKDELOLWDWLRQ� RI� 0*0&¶V� JULQGLQJ� VWDWLRQ� LQ� 0DELQL��
%DWDQJDV�ZDV�FRPSOHWHG���+3,�LV�OHDVLQJ�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�WKH�VDLG�JULQGLQJ�VWDWLRQ���
�
%DQNUXSWF\�3URFHHGLQJV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRW�D�SDUW\�WR�DQ\�EDQNUXSWF\��UHFHLYHUVKLS�RU�VLPLODU�SURFHHGLQJV��
�
0DWHULDO�5HFODVVLILFDWLRQ��0HUJHU��&RQVROLGDWLRQ��
�

2Q� 1RYHPEHU� ���� ������ WKH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� RI� +ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� DSSURYHG� WKH�
XSVWUHDP�PHUJHU�RI�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ��0DELQL�*ULQGLQJ�0LOO�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
DQG�%XONFHP�3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� LQWR�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� 7KH� VWRFNKROGHUV� OLNHZLVH� DSSURYHG� WKH�
XSVWUHDP�PHUJHU�LQ�D�VSHFLDO�PHHWLQJ�KHOG�RQ����-DQXDU\�������

�
2Q� 0D\� ���� ������ D� 6DOH� DQG� 3XUFKDVH� $JUHHPHQW� �63$�� IRU� WKH� VDOH� DQG� SXUFKDVH� RI�

VKDUHV� LQ� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZDV� H[HFXWHG� E\� +ROGHUILQ�� )LUVW� 6WURQJKROG� &HPHQW� ,QGXVWULHV�� ,QF��� 6DQ�
0LJXHO� &RUSRUDWLRQ� DQG� /DIDUJHKROFLP� /WG�� 6XEMHFW� WR� WKH� SULRU� ZULWWHQ� DSSURYDO� RI� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH�
&RPSHWLWLRQ�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG� IXOILOOPHQW�RI�FXVWRPDU\�FORVLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�� LW�ZDV�DJUHHG� WKDW�+ROGHUILQ�
VKDOO�VHOO�LWV�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�VKDOO�SURFXUH�&HPFR�DQG�8&&�WR�OLNHZLVH�VHOO�WKHLU�VKDUHV�LQ�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�)LUVW�6WURQJKROG�&HPHQW�,QGXVWULHV��,QF���

�
7KH�63$�KDV�ODSVHG�RQ�0D\����������DQG�8&+&�VWLOO�KROGV�WKH�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
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���� *HQHUDO�%XVLQHVV�'HVFULSWLRQ���
�

+3,�LV�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�PDQXIDFWXUH��VDOH�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI�FHPHQW��GU\�PL[�PRUWDU�SURGXFWV��
FOLQNHU�DQG�DJJUHJDWHV���,W�DOVR�RIIHUV�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�UHODWHG�WUDLQLQJV��FRQVXOWDQFLHV��WHVWLQJ�DQG�RWKHU�
WHFKQLFDO� VHUYLFHV� WR� LWV� FXVWRPHUV�� � :LWK� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� SURGXFWLRQ� IDFLOLWLHV�� SRUWV�� VWRUDJH� 	�
GLVWULEXWLRQ�WHUPLQDOV��VDOHV�RIILFHV�DQG�FKDQQHO�SDUWQHUV��+3,�KDV�DQ�H[WHQVLYH�VDOHV�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�
IRRWSULQW�GXH�WR�LWV�VWUDWHJLFDOO\�ORFDWHG�SODQWV�DQG�WHUPLQDOV�LQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV����

�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� D� SRUWIROLR� RI� LQQRYDWLYH� VROXWLRQV� IRVWHUHG� E\� D� ZLGH� UDQJH� RI� EXLOGLQJ�

SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV���,W¶V�SRUWIROLR�RI�FHPHQW��DJJUHJDWHV��ILQLVKLQJ�DQG�FRQFUHWH�VROXWLRQV�DLPHG�DW�
KHOSLQJ�ORFDO�EXLOGHUV�H[HFXWH�D�ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�SURMHFWV�ZLWK�TXDOLW\�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�HIILFLHQF\��IURP�
PDVVLYH� LQIUDVWUXFWXUHV� WR� VLPSOH� KRPH� UHSDLUV�� 7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� SURGXFW� TXDOLW\� DQG� RSHUDWLRQDO�
FDSDELOLW\�DUH�JHDUHG�WRZDUG�PHHWLQJ�WKH�FXVWRPHUV¶�EXLOGLQJ�QHHGV��

�
�D�� 3URGXFW�/LQHV�

�
+3,� PDQXIDFWXUHV� ILYH� ���� PDLQ� FHPHQW� SURGXFW� EUDQGV� QDPHO\�� +ROFLP� �;� �7\SH� �� KLJK�
SHUIRUPDQFH� 3RUWODQG� FHPHQW��� +ROFLP� 3UHPLXP� �7\SH� �� 3RUWODQG� FHPHQW��� +ROFLP� 6ROLGR�
�7\SH� ,3�%OHQGHG�FHPHQW���+ROFLP�([FHO� �7\SH��3�%OHQGHG�FHPHQW���DQG�+ROFLP�:DOO5LJKW�
�7\SH�6�0DVRQU\�FHPHQW����
�
,WV� SURGXFWV� DUH� VROG� PRVWO\� LQ� EDJV� H[FHSW� IRU� +ROFLP� 3UHPLXP� �LQ� EXON�� DQG� +ROFLP� �;�
�EXON��� 2WKHU� SDFNDJLQJ� IRUPDWV� LQFOXGH� WRQQHU�� MXPER� EDJV� DQG� EXON�� +3,� DOVR� VHOOV� WR�
FHPHQW�SURGXFHUV�D�VHPL�ILQLVKHG�SURGXFW�FDOOHG�FOLQNHU��ZKLFK�LV�VROG�RQO\�LQ�EXON���
�
7KH�FRPSDQ\�KDV�DOVR�LQ�LWV�SRUWIROLR�DJJUHJDWHV�DQG�GU\�PL[�PRUWDU�SURGXFWV��'U\�0L[�PRUWDU�
SURGXFWV�DUH�+ROFLP�7LOH�$GKHVLYH�DQG�+ROFLP�6NLP�&RDW�DQG�WKH�UHFHQWO\� ODXQFKHG�+ROFLP�
0XOWLIL[��DQ�DOO�LQ�RQH�PRUWDU�IRU�SODVWHULQJ��IORRU�VFUHHG�DQG�WKLFN�EHG�WLOH�LQVWDOODWLRQ��
�
$OO�+3,�SURGXFWV�PHHW�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�1DWLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV��316��DQG�WKH�$PHULFDQ�6RFLHW\�IRU�
7HVWLQJ�DQG�0DWHULDOV��$670��SURGXFW�TXDOLW\�VWDQGDUGV��

�
7KH�%XVLQHVV�FRQWLQXHV�WR�VHUYH�6)�&UHWH�DV�D�RQH�GD\�FRQFUHWH�VROXWLRQ�IRU�URDG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�&RQGLWLRQDO�$SSURYDO�DZDUGHG�E\�'3:+�IRU�WKLV�WHFKQRORJ\��
�
%HORZ�LV�D�EULHI�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�+3,¶V�YDULRXV�SURGXFWV��
�
+ROFLP��;�
�
+ROFLP��;� LV�DQ�$670�&����KLJK�SHUIRUPDQFH�3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�� � ,W� LV� VSHFLDOO\� IRUPXODWHG����������
IRU�UHDG\�PL[�FRQFUHWH�DSSOLFDWLRQV���,W�KDV�KLJK�FRPSUHVVLYH�VWUHQJWK��KLJK�ZRUNDELOLW\�DQG�LV�
FRPSDWLEOH�ZLWK�FRPPRQO\�DYDLODEOH�DGPL[WXUHV���6XSSOLHG�LQ�EXON��+ROFLP��;�LV�PDLQO\�XVHG�
IRU�KLJK�ULVH�EXLOGLQJV�DQG�YHUWLFDO�VWUXFWXUHV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�KLJK�VWUHQJWK�FHPHQW���,W�LV�LGHDO�IRU�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�WKDW�UHTXLUHV�RSWLPL]HG�FRQFUHWH�PL[�GHVLJQV�DQG�IDVW�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�F\FOHV�� �:LWK�
WKH�KLJK����GD\�FRPSUHVVLYH�VWUHQJWK�RI�+ROFLP��;��ORZHU�FHPHQW�IDFWRU�LV�QHHGHG�UHVXOWLQJ�
LQ� ORZHU� FRQVWUXFWLRQ� FRVWV�� � /RQJHU� VHWWLQJ� WLPH� UHVXOWV� WR� EHWWHU� VOXPS� UHWHQWLRQ� DQG�
SXPSDELOLW\�RI�FRQFUHWH�����
�
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+ROFLP�3UHPLXP�
�
+ROFLP� 3UHPLXP� LV� DQ� $670� 7\SH� ,� 3RUWODQG� &HPHQW�� � ,W� LV� XVHG� IRU� JHQHUDO� FRQFUHWH�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�� �7R�PDNH�3RUWODQG�FHPHQW��SRZGHUHG� OLPHVWRQH�� VLOLFD�DQG� LURQ�ULFK�PDWHULDOV�
DUH� KRPRJHQL]HG� DQG� EXUQW� DW� ����R&�� � 7KH� UHVXOWLQJ�PDWHULDO� LV� FDOOHG� FOLQNHU�� � 3RUWODQG�
FHPHQW�LV�SURGXFHG�E\�JULQGLQJ�FOLQNHU�ZLWK�D�VPDOO�DPRXQW�RI�J\SVXP��D�VHW�UHWDUGHU���:KHQ�
3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�LV�PL[HG�ZLWK�ZDWHU�DQG�DJJUHJDWHV�WR�PDNH�FRQFUHWH��WKH�PL[WXUH�LV�LQLWLDOO\�
IORZDEOH� DQG� HDV\� WR� SODFH�� PROG� DQG� ILQLVK�� � (YHQWXDOO\�� WKH� FRQFUHWH� VHWV�� KDUGHQV� DQG�
SURGXFHV�D�VWURQJ�DQG�GXUDEOH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�PDWHULDO��
�
+ROFLP�6ROLGR�
�
+ROFLP� 6ROLGR� LV� D� SUHPLXP� TXDOLW\� $670� 7\SH� ,3� &HPHQW� ZKLFK� LV� 3RUWODQG� FHPHQW�
FRPELQHG�ZLWK�DGYDQFHG�PLQHUDO�DGGLWLYHV���,W�LV�VROG�LQ�EXON��WRQQHU�EDJV�DQG����NJ�EDJV�DQG�
XVHG�IRU�URDGV�DQG�JHQHUDO�FRQFUHWH�DSSOLFDWLRQV���$GYDQFH�PLQHUDO�DGGLWLYHV�DUH�LQWHU�JURXQG�
ZLWK�KLJKHU�FRPSRVLWLRQ�RI�3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�FOLQNHU�WR�LPSURYH�GXUDELOLW\�RI�FRQFUHWH��
�
+ROFLP�([FHO��
�
+ROFLP�([FHO�&HPHQW�LV�DQ�$670�7\SH�,3�&HPHQW��ZKLFK�LV�3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�FRPELQHG�ZLWK�
DGYDQFHG�PLQHUDO� DGGLWLYHV�� ,W� LV� VROG�PDLQO\� LQ� ���NJ� EDJV� DQG� XVHG� IRU� JHQHUDO� FRQFUHWH�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ���$GYDQFHG�PLQHUDO�DGGLWLYHV��LQFOXGLQJ�JUDQXODWHG�EODVW�IXUQDFH�VODJ��DUH�LQWHU�
JURXQG� ZLWK� 3RUWODQG� FHPHQW� FOLQNHU� DQG� J\SVXP� WR� LPSURYH� WKH� ZRUNDELOLW\� DQG� HDUO\�
VWUHQJWK�� �7KH�SURGXFW� LV�XVHG� IRU� WKH�VDPH�DSSOLFDWLRQV�DV� WKH�3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�GHVFULEHG�
DERYH�EXW�LV�SUHIHUUHG�E\�PDQ\�FXVWRPHUV�EHFDXVH�WKH�DGGLWLYHV�LPSURYH�LWV�SHUIRUPDQFH��
�
+ROFLP�:DOO5LJKW�&HPHQW�
�
+ROFLP�:DOO5LJKW� &HPHQW� LV� DQ� $670� &��� 7\SH� 6� 0DVRQU\� &HPHQW� GHVLJQHG� IRU� EORFN�
OD\LQJ��SODVWHULQJ�DQG�ILQLVKLQJ�XVH���,W�LV�PDGH�E\�LQWHU�JULQGLQJ�PLQHUDO�DGGLWLYHV�DQG�DQ�DLU�
HQWUDLQLQJ� DGGLWLYH� ZLWK� 3RUWODQG� FHPHQW� FOLQNHU� GXULQJ� WKH� ILQLVK� PLOOLQJ� RSHUDWLRQ��
7KH�UHVXOWLQJ�FHPHQW�ZLOO�SURGXFH�VPRRWKHU��PRUH�FRKHVLYH�DQG�PRUH�FRVW�HIIHFWLYH�PRUWDUV�
DQG�SODVWHUV�ZKLFK�DUH�SUHIHUUHG�E\�PDVRQV��
�
&OLQNHU�
�
&OLQNHU� LV� DQ� LQWHUPHGLDWH� SURGXFW� LQ� FHPHQW� SURGXFWLRQ�� � ,W� LV� SURGXFHG� E\� JULQGLQJ� DQG�
EXUQLQJ� D� SURSRUWLRQHG� PL[WXUH� RI� OLPHVWRQH�� VKDOH� DQG� VLOLFD�� � :KHQ� FOLQNHU� LV� IXUWKHU�
VXEMHFWHG�WR�JULQGLQJ�DQG�DGGHG�ZLWK�J\SVXP��3RUWODQG�FHPHQW�LV�SURGXFHG��

�
6)�&UHWH�7HFKQRORJ\�
�
6)� &UHWH� LV� D� WRWDO� VROXWLRQ� RIIHULQJ� IRU� RQH� GD\� FRQFUHWH� SDYHPHQW�� � 7KLV� VROXWLRQ� LV� D�
SDFNDJH�RI�PDWHULDOV�L�H���FHPHQW��DJJUHJDWHV�DQG�DGPL[WXUHV�DQG�WHFKQLFDO�VXSSRUW�WR�PHHW�
RQH�GD\�FRQFUHWH�GHVLJQ��
�
$JJUHJDWHV�
�
$JJUHJDWHV� DUH� JUDQXODU� PDWHULDOV� RI� PLQHUDO� FRPSRVLWLRQV� XVHG� IRU� YDULRXV� FRQVWUXFWLRQ�
DSSOLFDWLRQV�� ,W� LV�XVHG�ZLWK�D�ELQGLQJ�PHGLXP�WR� IRUP�FRQFUHWH��ELWXPRXV�FRQFUHWH��SUHFDVW�
FRQFUHWH��PRUWDU��SODVWHU�DQG�RWKHU�FRQFUHWH�DQG�DVSKDOW�DSSOLFDWLRQV�� � ,W�FDQ�EH�XVHG�DORQH�
IRU�URDG�EDVHV��VWUXFWXUDO�EHGGLQJV��UDLOURDG�EDOODVW��ILOWHU�EHGV��EDFNILOOV��HWF���7KH�JUDGLQJ�DQG�
TXDOLW\�FRQIRUPV�WR�WKH�$670�&���6WDQGDUG�6SHFLILFDWLRQV�IRU�FRDUVH�DQG�ILQH�DJJUHJDWHV��
�
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+ROFLP�7LOH�$GKHVLYH�
�
+ROFLP�7LOH�$GKHVLYH� LV�D�SUHPLXP�FHPHQW�EDVHG�DGKHVLYH� IRU� WLOHV�VSHFLDOO\� IRUPXODWHG� IRU�
WKLQ�EHG� YHUWLFDO� DQG� KRUL]RQWDO� DSSOLFDWLRQ�� � ,WV� XQLTXH� IRUPXODWLRQ� FRPELQHG� ZLWK� +ROFLP�
FHPHQW�SURYLGHV�IRU�D�IDVWHU��VWURQJHU�DGKHVLRQ��ZLWK�H[FHOOHQW�QRQ�VOLS�SURSHUWLHV����
�
+ROFLP�6NLP�&RDW�
�
+ROFLP�6NLP�&RDW�LV�D�FHPHQWLWLRXV�SODVWHU�VSHFLDOO\�GHVLJQHG�WR�VPRRWKHQ�YHUWLFDO�VWUXFWXUHV�
VXLWDEOH�IRU�ERWK�LQGRRU�DQG�RXWGRRU�XVH���6NLP�&RDW�LV�XVHG�IRU�UHQGHULQJ�DQG�VPRRWKHQLQJ�
VXUIDFHV�SULRU�WR�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�VHDODQWV�RU�GHFRUDWLYH�SDLQWV��

�
�
+ROFLP�0XOWL�IL[�
�
+ROFLP�0XOWLIL[� LV� D� KLJK� SHUIRUPDQFH� SRO\PHU� PRGLILHG�PRUWDU� IRUPXODWHG� IRU� LQWHUQDO� DQG�
H[WHUQDO�ZDOO� SODVWHULQJ�� IORRU� VFUHHG�DQG� WLOH� LQVWDOODWLRQ�E\� WKLFN�EHG�PHWKRG�� ,W� LV� WKH�EHVW�
VXEVWLWXWH�IRU�WUDGLWLRQDO�PRUWDU��

�
7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�VKRZV� WKH�EUHDNGRZQ�RI�VDOHV�UHYHQXHV�E\�SURGXFW� OLQH�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\� IRU�
WKH�SHULRGV�LQGLFDWHG��

�
7DEOH���±�5HYHQXH�E\�3URGXFW�/LQH�

�
� &DOHQGDU�<HDU� &DOHQGDU�<HDU� &DOHQGDU�<HDU�
� (QGHG� (QGHG� (QGHG�

�,Q�7KRXVDQG�
3HVRV��

'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU����������

&HPHQW�DQG�FHPHQWLWLRXV�
PDWHULDOV�

3 ����������� 3 ����������� 3 �����������

2WKHUV� ����������� ���������� ����������
� � � �
7RWDO� 3 ����������� 3 ����������� 3 �����������

�
�
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&RQWULEXWLRQ�RI�([SRUW�6DOHV���
�

7KH�DPRXQWV�DQG�SHUFHQWDJHV�RI� UHYHQXH�DWWULEXWDEOH� WR�H[SRUW�VDOHV�� LQFOXGLQJ�EUHDNGRZQ�
SHU�UHJLRQ��IRU�WKH�FDOHQGDU�\HDUV�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������������DQG������DUH�DV�IROORZV���
�

7DEOH���±�([SRUW�5HYHQXH�
�

� &DOHQGDU�<HDU� &DOHQGDU�<HDU� &DOHQGDU�<HDU�
�� � (QGHG� � (QGHG� � (QGHG�
�,Q�7KRXVDQG�3HVRV�� 'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU����������
7RWDO�([SRUW�5HYHQXHV� 1,/� 1,/� 1,/�
��WR�7RWDO�5HYHQXHV� 1,/� 1,/� 1,/�
%UHDNGRZQ�RI�([SRUW�

5HYHQXHV�SHU�5HJLRQ��
�LQ����

� � �

6RXWKHDVW�$VLD� � � �
(DVWHUQ�$VLD� � � �
2FHDQLD� 1,/� 1,/� 1,/�
1RUWK�$PHULFD� � � �
:HVWHUQ�(XURSH� � � �
0LGGOH�(DVW� � � �
7RWDO���WR�7RWDO�5HYHQXHV� 1,/� 1,/� 1,/�

�
�E�� 0DUNHWLQJ�DQG�'LVWULEXWLRQ��

�
7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� PDMRU� GRPHVWLF� FXVWRPHUV� DUH� WUDGHUV�� ZKROHVDOHUV�� UHWDLOHUV�� FRQWUDFWRUV�
VHUYLQJ�SULYDWH�DQG�SXEOLF�SURMHFWV��UHDO�HVWDWH�GHYHORSHUV�DQG�FRQFUHWH�SURGXFHUV���1RWDEO\��
+3,�KDV�VXSSOLHG�D�QXPEHU�RI�ELJ�FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�JRYHUQPHQW�IODJVKLS�SURMHFWV�LQ�WKH�HQWLUH�
FRXQWU\��

�
�F�� 1HZ�3URGXFW�

�
+ROFLP�0XOWLIOL[��DQ�DOO�LQ�RQH��FRVW�HIIHFWLYH�PRUWDU�ZKLFK�ZDV�ILUVW� LQWURGXFHG� ODVW�TXDUWHU�RI�
����� WR�KHOS�EXLOGHUV�ZLWK�D�YHUVDWLOH�SURGXFW�VROXWLRQ� � IRU�SODVWHULQJ�� IORRU�VFUHHG�DQG� WKLFN�
EHQG�WLOLQJ�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�WLPH�VDYLQJV�DQG�OHVV�PDWHULDO�ZDVWDJH��
�

�G�� &RPSHWLWLRQ�
�

7KHUH�DUH�WHQ�FHPHQW�PDQXIDFWXUHUV�LQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV�WKDW�LQFOXGH�+ROFLP��5HSXEOLF�&HPHQW��
&HPH[�� 7DLKHL\R�� 1RUWKHUQ� &HPHQW�� (DJOH� &HPHQW�� *RRGIRXQG�� 0DEXKD\� )LO&HPHQW�� %LJ�
%RVV�DQG�3HWUD�&HPHQW��(LJKW�RI�WKHVH�ORFDO�PDQXIDFWXUHUV�RSHUDWH�LQWHJUDWHG�FHPHQW�SODQWV�
DOO�RYHU�WKH�FRXQWU\�ZKLOH�%LJ�%RVV�DQG�3HWUD�RSHUDWH�JULQGLQJ�SODQWV�RQO\���
�
7KH� SRVLWLYH� ORQJ�WHUP� SURVSHFW� RI� FHPHQW� GHPDQG� LQ� WKH� FRXQWU\� KDV� DWWUDFWHG� QHZ�
LQYHVWPHQWV� LQ� WKH� FHPHQW� LQGXVWU\�� ([LVWLQJ� PDQXIDFWXUHUV� DUH� FXUUHQWO\� SXUVXLQJ� WKHLU�
H[SDQVLRQ� SODQV� WR� DGG� QHZ� FDSDFLWLHV� ZKLOH� QHZ� HQWUDQWV� MRLQHG� LQ� EXLOGLQJ� QHZ� FHPHQW�
IDFLOLWLHV��&HQWXU\�3HDN�&HPHQW��D�QHZ�HQWUDQW��LV�FRQVWUXFWLQJ�DQ�LQWHJUDWHG�FHPHQW�SODQW�LQ�
&HEX���
�
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,Q�UHFHQW�\HDUV��LQGHSHQGHQW�WUDGHUV�KDYH�EURXJKW�LQ�LPSRUWHG�FHPHQW�PDLQO\�IURP�9LHWQDP��
7KHVH�DUH�VROG�LQ���NJ�EDJV�DQG�WRQQHU�EDJV�GLVWULEXWHG�LQ�NH\�PDUNHWV�DFURVV�WKH�FRXQWU\��
6RPH� ELJ� FHPHQW� WUDGHUV� KDYH� VWDUWHG� WR� LQVWDOO� FHPHQW� WHUPLQDOV� ZLWK� EDJJLQJ� DQG�
ZDUHKRXVLQJ� IDFLOLWLHV� LQ� NH\� WUDGLQJ� SRUWV�� ,Q� ������ WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH� JRYHUQPHQW� LPSRVHG� D�
SHUPDQHQW� VDIHJXDUG�GXW\�RQ�FHPHQW� LPSRUWV� IRU� WKH�QH[W� WKUHH� \HDUV� WR�FXUE� WKH�VXUJH�RI�
FKHDS�LPSRUWHG�FHPHQW�WKDW�DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFWHG�WKH�GRPHVWLF�FHPHQW�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�LQGXVWU\��
'RPHVWLF�FHPHQW�PDQXIDFWXUHUV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�LPSOHPHQW�WKHLU�DGMXVWPHQW�SODQV�WR�EHFRPH�
PRUH�JOREDOO\�FRPSHWLWLYH�DIWHU�WKH�VDIHJXDUG�GXW\�H[SLUHV��
�
$PRQJ�WKH� ORFDO�SOD\HUV��+ROFLP�KDV�WKH�ZLGHVW�PDUNHW�UHDFK�VHUYLQJ�FXVWRPHUV�DFURVV�WKH�
FRXQWU\�IURP�WZR�LQWHJUDWHG�FHPHQW�SODQWV��RQH�FHPHQW�JULQGLQJ�SODQW�DQG�RQH�GU\�PL[�SODQW�
LQ� /X]RQ�� DQG� WZR� LQWHJUDWHG� FHPHQW� SODQWV� LQ� 0LQGDQDR�� +ROFLP� DOVR� RSHUDWHV� FHPHQW�
WHUPLQDOV�LQ�,ORLOR��%DWDQJDV�DQG�0DQLOD��7KHUH�DUH�YDULRXV�ZDUHKRXVHV�VWUDWHJLFDOO\�VHW�XS�LQ�
WKH�GLIIHUHQW�JHRJUDSKLF�PDUNHWV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�GLVWULEXWLRQ�QHWZRUN��
�
7KH�IRXU�FHPHQW�SODQWV�RI�+ROFLP�DUH�FHUWLILHG�WR�PHHW�WKH�,62�������4XDOLW\�0DQDJHPHQW���
,62��������(QYLURQPHQWDO�0DQDJHPHQW��DQG�2+	6��������2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�DQG�6DIHW\�
0DQDJHPHQW��VWDQGDUGV��

�
�H�� 6RXUFHV�DQG�$YDLODELOLW\�RI�5DZ�0DWHULDOV�DQG�6XSSOLHV��

�
� 5DZ�0DWHULDOV�
�

7KH� &RPSDQ\� VRXUFHV� PRVW� RI� LWV� UDZ� PDWHULDOV� �OLPHVWRQH�� SR]]RODQ�� VKDOH�� IURP� LWV�
DVVRFLDWH� FRPSDQ\�� +0'&� DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDULHV� ZKLFK� KROG� 0LQHUDO� 3URGXFWLRQ� 6KDULQJ�
$JUHHPHQWV�IRU�LWV�TXDUULHV�LQ�YDULRXV�DUHDV�LQ�/D�8QLRQ��%XODFDQ��'DYDR�DQG�/XJDLW��0LVDPLV�
2ULHQWDO���+3,�DOVR�VRXUFH�UDZ�PDWHULDOV�IURP�WKLUG�SDUW\�VXSSOLHUV��

�
(QHUJ\�6XSSO\��
�
%HLQJ�DQ�HQHUJ\�LQWHQVLYH�SURFHVV��FHPHQW�SURGXFWLRQ� UHTXLUHV�D� UHOLDEOH�DQG�FRPSHWLWLYHO\�
SULFHG�SRZHU�VXSSO\�IRU�XQLQWHUUXSWHG�DQG�FRVW�HIIHFWLYH�SURGXFWLRQ��
�
7KH�%XODFDQ�SODQW¶V�SHDN�GHPDQG�LV�FXUUHQWO\�DW����PHJDZDWWV��³0:´��ZKLOH�/D�8QLRQ�SODQW¶V�
SHDN� GHPDQG� LV� FXUUHQWO\� DW� ��� 0:�� 2Q� $XJXVW� ���� ������ D� ���\HDU� (QHUJ\� 6HUYLFHV�
$JUHHPHQW� �(6$��ZDV�VLJQHG�ZLWK�7UDQV�$VLD�2LO�DQG�(QHUJ\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUS�� �7$�2LO���
QRZ�$&�(QHUJ\�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF���$&(3,��IRU�WKH�VXSSO\�RI�ERWK�%XODFDQ�/LQH���DQG�/D�8QLRQ�
SODQWV�VWDUWLQJ� LQ�������2Q�6HSWHPEHU�����������DQ�DPHQGHG�DQG�UHVWDWHG�(QHUJ\�6HUYLFHV�
$JUHHPHQW�ZDV�VLJQHG�HIIHFWLYH�-XQH����������DQG�YDOLG�XQWLO�'HFHPEHU������������
�
7KH�'DYDR�SODQW¶V�WRWDO�SRZHU�UHTXLUHPHQW�LV����0:��(IIHFWLYH�6HSWHPEHU�����������'DYDR�
SODQW� EHFDPH� D� FDSWLYH� FXVWRPHU� RI� 'DYDR� /LJKW� DQG� 3RZHU� &RPSDQ\� �'/3&��� WKH�
'LVWULEXWLRQ�8WLOLW\��'8��ZKLFK�KROGV�WKH�IUDQFKLVH�IRU�SRZHU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�DUHD�SXUVXDQW�WR�
(QHUJ\�5HJXODWRU\�&RPPLVVLRQ�5HVROXWLRQ�1R������6HULHV�RI�������
�
7KH�/XJDLW�SODQW¶V�WRWDO�SRZHU�UHTXLUHPHQW�LV����0:�IRU�ERWK�OLQHV�RU����0:�ZLWK�/LQH���RQO\��
$IWHU� WKH� H[SLUDWLRQ� RI� WKH� 3RZHU� 6XSSO\� $JUHHPHQW� ZLWK� 13&� RQ� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ������
0LVDPLV�,�2ULHQWDO�(OHFWULF�&RRSHUDWLYH��0RUHVFR�,��WRRN�RYHU�DV�WKH�SRZHU�VXSSOLHU�RI�/XJDLW�
SODQW� SXUVXDQW� WR� (QHUJ\� 5HJXODWRU\� &RPPLVVLRQ� 5HVROXWLRQ� 1R�� ���� 6HULHV� RI� ������
&XUUHQWO\��RQO\�/LQH���LV�RSHUDWLQJ���
�
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0DELQL�*ULQGLQJ�SODQW�ZKLFK�LV�D��0:�FDSDFLW\�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�KDV�TXDOLILHG�DV�D��&RQWHVWDEOH�
&XVWRPHU� �&&��� ZKHQ� WKH� 5HWDLO� &RPSHWLWLRQ� DQG� 2SHQ� $FFHVV� �5&2$�� ZDV� LPSOHPHQWHG�
ODVW� -XQH� ���� ������ � $V� D� UHVXOW�� D� ���\HDU� 3RZHU� 6XSSO\� $JUHHPHQW� ZLWK� 7$� 2LO� QRZ� $&�
(QHUJ\�3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� �$&(3,��ZDV�VLJQHG�DQG� WRRN�HIIHFW�RQ�-XQH���������� LQ� OLHX�RI�DQ�
DJUHHPHQW� ZLWK� GLVWULEXWLRQ� XWLOLW\� 'HSDUWPHQW� RI� (QHUJ\� �'2(�� %DWDQJDV� (OHFWULF�
&RRSHUDWLYH��,QF���%$7(/(&�,,���2Q�6HSWHPEHU�����������DQ�DPHQGHG�DQG�UHVWDWHG�(QHUJ\�
6HUYLFHV�$JUHHPHQW�ZDV�VLJQHG�HIIHFWLYH�-XQH����������DQG�YDOLG�XQWLO�'HFHPEHU�����������
�
&RDO�DQG�)XHO�6XSSO\�
�
+3,�XVHV�FRDO�IRU�KHDWLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�NLOQV�LQ�/D�8QLRQ��%XODFDQ��'DYDR�DQG�/XJDLW��

�
+3,¶V�LPSRUWHG�,QGRQHVLDQ�FRDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�FRYHUHG�ZLWK�DQQXDO�VXSSO\�FRQWUDFWV��6SRW�
SXUFKDVHV�VKDOO� UHPDLQ�DV�DQ�RSWLRQ� WR�KDYH� D�KHDOWK\�EDODQFH�RI� VXSSO\� UHOLDELOLW\��PDUNHW�
FRPSHWLWLYH�SULFHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�VXEVWLWXWH�IXHOV��
�
)RU�ORFDO�FRDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�HQWHUHG�LQWR�D���\HDU�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�6HPLUDUD�0LQLQJ�
	�3RZHU�&RUSRUDWLRQ�FRYHULQJ�������
�
+3,�KDV�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�VXSSO\�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�3HWURQ�DQG�6/�+DUERXU�IRU�LWV�'LHVHO�DQG�%XQNHU�IXHO�
QHHGV��&RQWUDFWV�VWDUWHG�IURP�1RYHPEHU���������DQG�YDOLG�XQWLO�'HFHPEHU�����������
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�H[SHULHQFHG�DQ\�GLVUXSWLRQ�LQ�LWV�VROLG�DQG�OLTXLG�IXHO�VXSSO\��
�

�I�� 'HSHQGHQFH�RQ�D�6LQJOH�RU�D�)HZ�&XVWRPHUV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�HPSOR\V�D�PXOWL�OHYHO�GLVWULEXWLRQ�VWUDWHJ\� LQ�VHUYLQJ� WKH�PDUNHW��7KLV�FRYHUV�
ZKROHVDOHU� DQG� UHWDLOHU� LQWHUPHGLDULHV�� WUDGHUV�� UHDG\� PL[� FRPSDQLHV�� FRQFUHWH� SURGXFWV�
PDQXIDFWXUHUV�� LQWHUQDWLRQDO� DQG� ORFDO� FRQWUDFWRUV��DQG� UHDO�HVWDWH� GHYHORSHUV�� $W� WKH�VDPH�
WLPH��+3,�VXSSRUWV�QXPHURXV�ODUJH��DQG�PHGLXP�VFDOH�JRYHUQPHQW�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�SURMHFWV��
�
7KH�DLP� LV� IRU� WKH�EXVLQHVV�QRW� WR�EH�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�D�VLQJOH�RU�D� IHZ�FXVWRPHUV�EXW� UDWKHU�
DFKLHYH�D�ZHOO�EDODQFHG�FXVWRPHU�SRUWIROLR���
�

�J�� 5HODWHG�3DUW\�7UDQVDFWLRQV�
�

3OHDVH�VHH�1RWH����±�5HODWHG�3DUW\�7UDQVDFWLRQV�WR�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
IRU�GHWDLOV��

� �
�K�� 7UDGHPDUNV��/LFHQVHV��&RQFHVVLRQV��/DERU�&RQWUDFWV�

�
,Q�������DSSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�WUDQVIHU�RI�036$�WR�+0'&�DQG�RU� LWV�VXEVLGLDU\��+5'&�KDYH�EHHQ�
DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�'(15��
�
2Q�ODERU�FRQWUDFWV��SOHDVH�VHH�WKH�GLVFXVVLRQ�RQ�HPSOR\HHV�XQGHU�,WHP�O��
�
,Q� ������ WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH� ,QWHOOHFWXDO� 3URSHUW\� 2IILFH� LVVXHG� &HUWLILFDWHV� RI� 5HJLVWUDWLRQ� WR�
+66,�IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WUDGHPDUNV������³+X%%´�ORJR��DQG�����³+8%�%XLOGHUV�&HQWHU´��
�

�L�� *RYHUQPHQWDO�$SSURYDO�RI�3ULQFLSDO�3URGXFWV�
�

7KH�'7,�%XUHDX� RI�3URGXFW�6WDQGDUGV� �%36��JUDQWHG�+3,� WKH� OLFHQVH� WR�XVH� WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�
6WDQGDUG�4XDOLW\�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�0DUN�IRU�LWV�SULQFLSDO�SURGXFWV���$OO�RWKHU�QHFHVVDU\�OLFHQVHV�DQG�
SHUPLWV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�WKH�FRQWLQXRXV�SURGXFWLRQ�DQG�VDOH�RI�+3,�SURGXFWV�KDYH�EHHQ�VHFXUHG�
E\� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� LQFOXGLQJ� QHZ� OLFHQVHV� DV� ZHOO� DV� WKRVH� WKDW� KDYH� WR� EH� UHQHZHG�
SHULRGLFDOO\����
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�
�M�� 5HVHDUFK�DQG�'HYHORSPHQW��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�HQJDJHG�LQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�GHYHORSPHQW�IRU�LPSURYLQJ�WKH�SURGXFWLRQ�SURFHVV�
XVHG� LQ� LWV� SODQWV� DQG� IRU� LPSURYLQJ� WKH� TXDOLW\� DQG� VWUHQJWK� RI� LWV� SURGXFWV�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�
VSHQW�D�WRWDO�RI�3 ������PLOOLRQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�GHYHORSPHQW�FRVWV�LQ�ODVW�WKUHH�\HDUV�DV�IROORZV��
�

7DEOH���±�5HVHDUFK�DQG�'HYHORSPHQW�&RVWV�
�

�� �� $PRXQW� 3HUFHQWDJH�
3HULRG�&RYHUHG� �µ����3HVRV��WR�5HYHQXHV�
&<�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������� 3 �������� ������
&<�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������� ������� ������
&<�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������� ������� ������
7RWDO� 3 �������� �

�
�N�� &RVWV�DQG�(IIHFWV�RI�&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�(QYLURQPHQWDO�/DZV�

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�FRQGXFWV�LWV�RSHUDWLRQV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�VXVWDLQDEOH�GHYHORSPHQW�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�
FRQWLQXRXVO\�LPSURYHV�LWV�HQYLURQPHQWDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�WR�HQVXUH�FRPSOLDQFH�WR�HQYLURQPHQWDO�
ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�ERWK�ORFDOO\�DQG�LQWHUQDWLRQDOO\��
��
7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV� FRPPLWWHG� WR� FRPSO\� ZLWK� HQYLURQPHQWDO� ODZV�� UHJXODWLRQV� DQG� VWDQGDUGV�
DSSOLFDEOH� WR� LWV� SURGXFWV� DQG� RSHUDWLRQV� DQG� VXEVFULEHV� WR� OHDGLQJ� LQGXVWU\� LQLWLDWLYHV� DQG�
LQWHUQDO� UHTXLUHPHQWV�� ,W� DOVR� DVVHVVHV� DQG� PHDVXUHV� LWV� HQYLURQPHQWDO� LPSDFWV� DQG�
FRQWLQXRXVO\�LPSURYHV�LWV�SURFHVVHV��WRROV�DQG�FDSDELOLWLHV�DQG�SURPRWHV�EHVW�SUDFWLFHV�LQ�WKH�
LQGXVWU\�� �)RU�H[DPSOH�� LQ�RUGHU� WR�HQVXUH�FRPSOLDQFH� WR�DLU�HPLVVLRQ�VWDQGDUGV�� WKH�SODQWV�
PDLQWDLQ�DQG�RSHUDWH�HOHFWURVWDWLF�SUHFLSLWDWRUV��EDJ�KRXVHV��PXOWL�F\FORQH�DQG�EDJ�ILOWHUV�WR�
PLWLJDWH�GXVW�HPLVVLRQV���7KH�SODQWV�DUH�DOVR�HTXLSSHG�ZLWK�&RQWLQXRXV�(PLVVLRQ�0RQLWRULQJ�
6\VWHP��&(06��IRU�UHDO�WLPH�PRQLWRULQJ�RI�JDVHRXV�HPLVVLRQV�VXFK�DV�QLWURJHQ�R[LGH��12[��
DQG� VXOIXU� GLR[LGH� �62���� FDUERQ� PRQR[LGH� �&2�� DQG� YRODWLOH� RUJDQLF� FRPSRXQG� �92&��
HPLVVLRQV�� � 2YHUDOO� SHUIRUPDQFH� LV� YDOLGDWHG� UHJXODUO\� E\� TXDUWHUO\� PRQLWRULQJ� RI� PXOWL�
VWDNHKROGHUV�DQG�JRYHUQPHQW�DXGLWV�DQG�LV�FRQILUPHG�WKDW�+3,�LV�FRPSOLDQW�ZLWK�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�
JRYHUQPHQW�VWDQGDUGV��
��
7KH�SODQWV�DUH�,62�������FHUWLILHG�RU�KDYH�DQ�HIIHFWLYH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP�LQ�
SODFH� WR�HQVXUH�DOO�HQYLURQPHQWDO� LPSDFWV�DQG� ULVNV�DUH�HIIHFWLYHO\�PDQDJHG�DQG�PLWLJDWHG��
7KH�FRPSDQ\�FRQWLQXRXVO\�RSWLPL]H�LWV�XVH�RI�UHVRXUFHV�WKURXJK�UH�XVLQJ��UHFRYHULQJ�DQG�RU�
UHF\FOLQJ� ZDVWH� PDWHULDOV� LQ� RZQ� SURGXFWLRQ� SURFHVVHV� ZKHUH� IHDVLEOH�� PLQLPL]LQJ� WKH�
JHQHUDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�KD]DUGRXV�DQG�QRQ�KD]DUGRXV�ZDVWH��DQG�GLVSRVLQJ�ZDVWH�XVLQJ�VDIH�DQG�
UHVSRQVLEOH�PHWKRGV��
��
7KH� &RPSDQ\� SURDFWLYHO\� HQJDJHV� ZLWK� VWDNHKROGHUV� DQG� FRRSHUDWHV� ZLWK� OHJLVODWRUV� DQG�
UHJXODWRUV�WR�HQVXUH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�REOLJDWLRQV�DUH�IXOILOOHG�DQG�ORFDO�UHJXODWLRQV�DUH�FRPSOLHG���
�



���
6(&�)RUP����$�&<������
)HEUXDU\������
�

�O�� (PSOR\HHV��

$V� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ +3,� DQG� VXEVLGLDULHV� KDG� D� WRWDO� RI� ������ RIILFHUV� DQG� UHJXODU�
HPSOR\HHV�EURNHQ�GRZQ�DV�IROORZV��

��
7DEOH���±�2IILFHUV�DQG�(PSOR\HHV�

�
�
/RFDWLRQ�

+3,� 6XEVLGLDULHV� 7RWDO�

+HDG�2IILFH
� ���� �� ����
%XODFDQ�3ODQW� ���� �� ����
/D�8QLRQ�3ODQW� ���� �� ����
'DYDR�3ODQW� ���� �� ����
/XJDLW�3ODQW� ��� ���� ����
&DOXPSLW� ��� �� ���
&DODFD� �� �� ��
7RWDO� ������ ���� ������


�,QFOXGHV�0DELQL�SODQW�
�
7KHUH�LV�D�VOLJKW�UHGXFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�PDQSRZHU�FRPSOHPHQW�FRPSDUHG�WR�ODVW�\HDU¶V�
GXH�WR�YDULRXV�HPSOR\HH�VHSDUDWLRQV�DQG�GHOLEHUDWH�GHFLVLRQ�WR�GHIHU�KLULQJ�RI�UHSODFHPHQWV�
WR������� �2YHU�DOO� DWWULWLRQ� UDWH� UHFRUGHG�����ZKHUH������RI�ZKLFK�ZDV�GXH� WR� UHVLJQDWLRQV�
DQG� HDUO\� UHWLUHPHQW�� 7KH� RQJRLQJ� SDQGHPLF� SURSHOOHG� WKH� FRPSDQ\� WR� LPSOHPHQW� YDULRXV�
FRVW� PHDVXUHV� VXFK� DV� )OH[LEOH� :RUN� $UUDQJHPHQW� �):$�� RU� $OWHUQDWLYH� :RUN� 6FKHPHV�
�$:6��� ZRUNLQJ� IURP� KRPH� DQG� GHSOR\PHQW� RI� WHPSRUDU\� UROHV� WR� PDLQWDLQ� WKH� OHYHO� RI�
ZRUNIRUFH�DQG�WR�FXVKLRQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�LPSDFW�WR�HPSOR\HHV�����
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�FRQWLQXHG�LWV�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�GHYHORS�SHRSOH�XQGHU�WKH�³QHZ�QRUPDO´���7KH�\HDU�
����� IRFXVHG� RQ� WKH� H[HFXWLRQ� RI� WKH� GLIIHUHQW� GHYHORSPHQW� DFWLRQV� LGHQWLILHG� LQ� WKH�
GHYHORSPHQW� SODQV� RI� HPSOR\HHV�� RI� ZKLFK� DERXW� ���� ZHUH� FRPSOHWHG�� � 7KLV� ZLOO� KHOS� WKH�
RUJDQL]DWLRQ�DV� LW� QDYLJDWHV� WKLV�SKDVH�RI�EXVLQHVV� UHFRYHU\� ZKHUH�QHZ�VNLOOV� VHW�� IOH[LELOLW\�
DQG�UHVLOLHQFH�DUH�PD\EH�UHTXLUHG��
��
7DOHQW� 5HYLHZ� DQG� 6XFFHVVLRQ� 3ODQQLQJ� WR� PDNH� VXUH� WKDW� LQWHUQDO� WDOHQWV� DUH� DYDLODEOH�
FRQWLQXHG� LQ� ������ � 7KH� VFRSH� H[SDQGHG� WR� GHYHORSLQJ� WDOHQWV� LQ� WKH� HDUO\� VWDJHV� RI� WKH�
HPSOR\HHV¶� FDUHHU�� PRUH� HPSOR\HHV� ZHUH� LQFOXGHG� LQ� WKLV� \HDU¶V� UHYLHZ� FRPSDUHG� WR� ODVW�
\HDU�� 0RUH� WKDQ� WZLFH� WKH� QXPEHU� RI� HPSOR\HHV� ZHUH� LGHQWLILHG� DV� VXFFHVVRUV� WR� FULWLFDO�
OHDGHUVKLS�SRVLWLRQV��
�

+3,�FHPHQW�SODQW�VXSHUYLVRU\�DQG�UDQN�DQG�ILOH�HPSOR\HHV�DUH�XQLRQL]HG�LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�UDQN�
DQG�ILOH�RI�WKH�SDSHU�EDJ�SODQW���$OO�WKHVH�ODERU�XQLRQV�KDYH�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�&ROOHFWLYH�%DUJDLQLQJ�
$JUHHPHQW��&%$��VLJQHG�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\���

7KH� IROORZLQJ� WDEOH� VKRZV� WKH� UHVSHFWLYH� ODERU� XQLRQV� RI� +3,� DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDULHV� DQG� WKH�
H[SLU\�GDWHV�RI�WKHLU�&%$V��

�
�
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7DEOH���±�/DERU�8QLRQV�
�

/RFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
3ODQW�6LWH�

/DERU�8QLRQ� &%$�([SLU\�'DWH�

%DFQRWDQ��/D�8QLRQ� /D�8QLRQ�&HPHQW�:RUNHUV�8QLRQ��
�
+ROFLP�/D�8QLRQ�6XSHUYLVRU\�(PSOR\HHV�8QLRQ��
�

0DUFK����������
�

0DUFK����������
�

1RU]DJDUD\��%XODFDQ� +ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�(PSOR\HHV�$VVRFLDWLRQ�
�+3($��
�
8&&�%XODFDQ�6XSHUYLVRU\�(PSOR\HHV�8QLRQ�
�8%6(8��
�

'HFHPEHU����������
�
�

)HEUXDU\����������
�

/XJDLW��0LVDPLV�
2ULHQWDO�

+ROFLP�/XJDLW�(PSOR\HHV�/DERU�8QLRQ��
�
+ROFLP�/XJDLW�6XSHUYLVRUV�,QGHSHQGHQW�8QLRQ��

-XO\����������
�

0DUFK����������
�

'DYDR�&LW\� 'DYDR�+ROFLP�(PSOR\HHV�:RUNHUV�8QLRQ��
�
+ROFLP�'DYDR�6XSHUYLVRU\�,QGHSHQGHQW�8QLRQ��
�

0DUFK����������
�

0DUFK����������

&DOXPSLW��%XODFDQ� +ROFLP�3DSHU�%DJ�3ODQW�(PSOR\HHV�$VVRFLDWLRQ�
±�)):�&KDSWHU��
�

'HFHPEHU����������

�
7KUHH� ���� &%$� 1HJRWLDWLRQV� KDSSHQHG� LQ� ����� DQG� WKHVH� ZHUH� FORVHG� ZLWKLQ� WKUHH� WR� ILYH�
PHHWLQJV�ZLWKRXW�DQ\�LQWHUYHQWLRQ�IURP�H[WHUQDO�SDUWQHUV���

��
�P��5LVN�)DFWRUV���

�
3ROLWLFDO�DQG�(FRQRPLF�)DFWRUV��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�SULPDULO\�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�PDQXIDFWXUH�RI�FOLQNHU�DQG�
FHPHQW�LQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV���&HPHQW�LV�RQH�RI�WKH�EDVLF�PDWHULDOV�IRU�EXLOGLQJ�ZRUNV�DQG�VDOHV�
DUH�KLJKO\�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�WKH�GHPDQG�IRU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�JURZWK�RI�
WKH�HFRQRP\�DV�ZHOO�DV�SROLWLFDO�FRQGLWLRQV�LQ�WKH�FRXQWU\��
�
2QH�RI� WKH�SULQFLSDO� IDFWRUV� WKDW�PD\�PDWHULDOO\� DIIHFW� ILQDQFLDO� SHUIRUPDQFH� LV� WKH� OHYHO�RI�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DFWLYLW\�LQ�WKH�SXEOLF�DQG�SULYDWH�VHFWRUV���3XEOLF�VHFWRU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DFWLYLW\�KDV�
DOZD\V� EHHQ� D� VLJQLILFDQW� SDUW� RI� FHPHQW� GHPDQG�� +RZHYHU�� JRYHUQPHQW� VSHQGLQJ� RQ�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�UHODWHG� DFWLYLWLHV� �H�J�� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� DQG� KRXVLQJ�� LV� GHSHQGHQW� RQ� YDULRXV�
IDFWRUV� PDLQO\� EXGJHWDU\� FRQVWUDLQWV� DQG� SROLWLFDO� FRQVLGHUDWLRQV� WKDW� FRXOG� LPSDFW�
JRYHUQPHQW¶V�DELOLW\�WR�H[HFXWH�LWV�SODQQHG�SURMHFWV��
�
2Q�WKH�RWKHU�KDQG��SULYDWH�VHFWRU�VSHQGLQJ�LV�SULPDULO\�GULYHQ�E\�LQYHVWRUV¶�FRQILGHQFH�LQ�WKH�
FRXQWU\��ZKLFK�LQ�WXUQ��LV�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�WKH�FRXQWU\¶V�HFRQRPLF�DQG�SROLWLFDO�FRQGLWLRQV���
�
$Q\� SHUFHLYHG� SROLWLFDO� LQVWDELOLW\� RU� ORZHU�WKDQ�H[SHFWHG� HFRQRPLF� JURZWK� FRXOG� KDYH� DQ�
DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��
�
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$YDLODELOLW\�RI�6WDEOH�3RZHU�6XSSO\�
�
7KH�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�$&�(QHUJ\�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF���$&(3,��YDOLG�XQWLO�'HFHPEHU����������SURYLGHV�
VWDEOH�DQG�JXDUDQWHHG�SRZHU�VXSSO\�IRU�/D�8QLRQ�3ODQW��%XODFDQ�3ODQW��DQG�0DELQL�*ULQGLQJ�
3ODQW���7KH�FRQWUDFW�DOVR�SURYLGHV�LVODQG�PRGH�EDFNXS�SRZHU�IRU�ERWK�/D�8QLRQ�DQG�%XODFDQ�
SODQWV�GXULQJ�JULG�IDLOXUHV���
��
/XJDLW� DQG� 'DYDR� 3ODQWV�� ERWK� VLWXDWHG� LQ� 0LQGDQDR�� DUH� QRZ� HQMR\LQJ� HOHFWULFLW\� VXUSOXV�
FRPSDUHG� WR� SUHYLRXV� \HDUV� ZKHUH� FXUWDLOPHQWV� ZHUH� SUHYDOHQW� GXH� WR� OLPLWHG� JHQHUDWLRQ�
FDSDFLWLHV��� 7KH� HQHUJ\� VXUSOXV� LQ� 0LQGDQDR� UHVXOWHG� IURP� QHZ� FRDO� SRZHU� SODQWV� VWDUWLQJ�
FRPPHUFLDO�RSHUDWLRQV�LQ�PLG������DQG�VXEVHTXHQW�\HDUV���,W� LV�SURMHFWHG�WKDW�WKH�DGGLWLRQDO�
FDSDFLWLHV�ZLOO�SURYLGH�0LQGDQDR�ZLWK�VXUSOXV�SRZHU�VXSSO\�LQ�WKH�PHGLXP�WHUP���
��
:(60� LV� QRW� \HW� DYDLODEOH� LQ� 0LQGDQDR�� $OVR�� WKH� 5HWDLO� &RPSHWLWLRQ� DQG� 2SHQ� $FFHVV�
�5&2$��FDQ�RQO\�EH�ODXQFKHG�DIWHU�:(60�KDV�EHHQ�LPSOHPHQWHG��+HQFH��/XJDLW�DQG�'DYDR�
3ODQWV�ZLOO� UHPDLQ�FDSWLYH�FXVWRPHUV�RI�'LVWULEXWLRQ�8WLOLW\�±�0RUHVFR�,�DQG�'DYDR�/LJKW�DQG�
3RZHU�&RPSDQ\��'/3&���UHVSHFWLYHO\��
�
7KH�FRPSDQ\�LV�H[SORULQJ�PHDVXUHV�WR�PDQDJH�SRZHU�FRVWV�DQG�DW�WKH�VDPH�WLPH�FRQWULEXWH�
WR�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�VWUDWHJ\���
�
'HSHQGHQFH�RQ�.H\�)DFLOLWLHV�
�
6XEVWDQWLDOO\� DOO� RI� +3,¶V� LQFRPH� KDV� EHHQ�� DQG� ZLOO� EH� GHULYHG� IURP� WKH� VDOH� RI� SURGXFWV�
PDQXIDFWXUHG�DW� LWV�SURGXFWLRQ�IDFLOLWLHV� LQ�/X]RQ�DQG�0LQGDQDR�� �$Q\�SURORQJHG�EUHDNGRZQ�
RI��RU�VLJQLILFDQW�GDPDJH�WR��WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SURGXFWLRQ�IDFLOLWLHV�FRXOG�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�
RQ� WKH� UHVXOWV� RI� LWV� RSHUDWLRQV�� +3,� PDLQWDLQV� FRPSUHKHQVLYH� SURSHUW\� DQG� FDVXDOW\�
LQVXUDQFH�SROLFLHV�FRYHULQJ�LWV�SURGXFWLRQ�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�NH\�DVVHWV�XQGHU�DQ�,QGXVWULDO�$OO�5LVN�
SROLF\���+RZHYHU��WKHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKH�SURFHHGV�IURP�+3,¶V�LQVXUDQFH�FODLPV�
ZRXOG� EH� VXIILFLHQW� WR� FRPSHQVDWH� WKH� &RPSDQ\� IRU� DOO� WKH� HIIHFWV� RI� SRVVLEOH� ORVV� DQG�RU�
GDPDJH�� � 1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ� WKDW�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� DSSURSULDWH� SURFHVVHV� DQG� PHDVXUHV� LQ�
SODFH�WR�IXUWKHU�PLWLJDWH�WKH�ULVN�RI�DQ\�SRVVLEOH�ORVV�RU�GDPDJH��
�
,PSDFW�RI�WKH�([FKDQJH�5DWH�)OXFWXDWLRQV�
�
%DVHG�RQ�WKH������%DQJNR�6HQWUDO�QJ�3LOLSLQDV�$QQXDO�([FKDQJH�5DWH�5HSRUW��WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�
3HVR� DSSUHFLDWHG� IURP� 3K3������ DJDLQVW� WKH� 86� 'ROODU� DV� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� WR�
3K3������DV�RI�'HFHPEHU����������� �7KH�3HVR�KDV�XQGHUJRQH�IOXFWXDWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�
ZLWK�DQ�DYHUDJH�UDWH�RI�3K3�������7KH�VWUHQJWKHQLQJ�RI�WKH�3HVR�UHVXOWHG�LQ�WKH�GHFUHDVH�RI�
FRVW�RI�SURGXFWLRQ�LQSXWV�VXFK�DV�LPSRUWHG�IXHO��FRDO�DQG�VXSSOLHV��
�
(QYLURQPHQWDO�DQG�5HJXODWRU\�0DWWHUV��
�
&HPHQW�PDQXIDFWXULQJ� XVHV� H[WHQVLYH� UHVRXUFH� DQG� HQHUJ\�� ,W� XVHV� UDZ� PDWHULDOV� VXFK� DV�
OLPHVWRQH�� IRVVLO� IXHO� �FRDO� DQG� EXQNHU� IXHO��� HOHFWULF� SRZHU� DQG� ZDWHU�� $V� VXFK�� WKH�
HQYLURQPHQWDO� ULVNV� DQG� LPSDFWV� VKRXOG� EH� PLWLJDWHG� WR� HQVXUH� FRPSOLDQFH� WR� UHJXODWRU\�
UHTXLUHPHQWV� DQG� PDLQWDLQ� RSHUDWLRQV� LQ� VXVWDLQDEOH� PDQQHU�� $Q� HIIHFWLYH� HQYLURQPHQWDO�
PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP�LV�LQ�SODFH�WR�PDQDJH�WKHVH�ULVNV�DQG�LPSDFWV���
�
+3,� FRQIRUPV� WR� UXOHV� DQG� UHJXODWLRQV� GHILQHG� XQGHU� WKH� IROORZLQJ�� 7KH� 3KLOLSSLQH�
(QYLURQPHQWDO� ,PSDFW�6WDWHPHQW�6\VWHP��3'��������7KH�3KLOLSSLQH�&OHDQ�$LU�$FW�������5$�
�������3KLOLSSLQH�&OHDQ�:DWHU�$FW�RI�������5$��������(FRORJLFDO�6ROLG�:DVWH�0DQDJHPHQW�
$FW�RI�������5$��������DQG�7R[LF�6XEVWDQFHV�	�+D]DUGRXV�	�1XFOHDU�:DVWH�&RQWURO�$FW�RI�
������5$��������2WKHU�$SSOLFDEOH�/DZV�	�5HJXODWLRQV�DUH�DOVR� LGHQWLILHG� LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
,QWHJUDWHG�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP�0DQXDO��
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,Q�D�JURXS�ZLGH�SURJUDP��WKH�&RPSDQ\�VWULYHV�WR�UHGXFH�GXVW�HPLVVLRQV�EHORZ�WKH�SUHVFULEHG�
����PJ�1P�� OHYHO� WKDW� WKH� JRYHUQPHQW� DOORZV� FHPHQW� SODQWV� WR� HPLW� XQGHU� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQH�
&OHDQ�$LU�$FW��7KH�&RPSDQ\�PDLQWDLQV�DQG�RSHUDWHV�PRGHUQ�HOHFWURVWDWLF�SUHFLSLWDWRUV��EDJ�
KRXVHV��PXOWL�F\FORQH�DQG�EDJ�ILOWHUV�IRU�PLWLJDWLQJ�WKH�GXVW�FRPLQJ�IURP�LWV�SODQWV¶�SUH�KHDWHU�
WRZHUV��NLOQV�DQG�FHPHQW�PLOO�JULQGLQJ�V\VWHPV���:LWK�WKHVH�PRGHUQ�GXVW�FRQWURO�V\VWHPV�LQ�
SODFH�� +3,¶V� FHPHQW� SODQWV� NHSW� GXVW� HPLVVLRQ� OHYHOV� EHORZ� WKH� SUHVFULEHG� JRYHUQPHQW�
VWDQGDUG���7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�LQ�SODFH�&RQWLQXRXV�(PLVVLRQ�0RQLWRULQJ�6\VWHP��&(06��LQ�DOO�
LWV�IRXU�SODQWV�IRU�FRQWLQXRXV�PRQLWRULQJ�RI�SDUWLFXODWH�DQG�JDVHRXV�HPLVVLRQV�RI�PDLQ�VWDFN��
7KH� HPLVVLRQV� GDWD� DUH� EHLQJ� UHSRUWHG� GDLO\� WR� UHJXODWRU\� ERG\�� ,Q� WHUPV� RI� FRPSOLDQFH� WR�
&OHDQ�:DWHU�$FW��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�LQ�SODFH�SROOXWLRQ�FRQWURO�IDFLOLWLHV�WR�PDQDJH�VWRUP�ZDWHU�
UXQ�RII�DQG�VHDVRQDO�SURFHVV�ZDWHU�GLVFKDUJH�VXFK�DV�VLOWDWLRQ�SRQGV��,Q�WHUPV�RI�PDQDJLQJ�
GRPHVWLF� ZDWHU� GLVFKDUJH�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� SURSHUO\� PDLQWDLQV� DQG� RSHUDWHV� ZDVWH� WUHDWPHQW�
IDFLOLWLHV�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\� DOVR� KDYH�ZDVWH�PDQDJHPHQW� GLVSRVDO� IDFLOLWLHV� LQ� WKH� SODQWV�� 7KH�
ZDVWHV�JHQHUDWHG�E\� WKH�SODQW�ZKLFK�DUH�TXDOLILHG� WR�EH�XVHG�DV�DOWHUQDWLYH� IXHO� IRU� WKH�NLOQ�
DUH�EHLQJ�FR�SURFHVVHG��7KLV� FR�SURFHVVLQJ� WHFKQRORJ\�XQGHU�*HRF\FOH� IROORZV� WKH�KLJKHVW�
VWDQGDUG� RI� HQYLURQPHQWDO� FRPSOLDQFH�� 7KH� IRXU� SODQWV� DUH� DOVR� JUDQWHG� ZLWK� 7UHDWPHQW��
6WRUDJH�DQG�'LVSRVDO��76'��&HUWLILFDWH�DV�DWWHVWDWLRQ�WR�*HRF\FOH¶V�UHVSRQVLEOH�KDQGOLQJ�DQG�
PDQDJHPHQW�RI�KD]DUGRXV�LQGXVWULDO�ZDVWHV����
�
+3,¶V�IRXU�SODQWV�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�UHFRJQL]HG�E\�WKH�UHOHYDQW�QDWLRQDO�JRYHUQPHQW�DJHQFLHV�IRU�
LWV�HQYLURQPHQWDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�SURJUDPV���
�
7KH� VWDWXV� RI� FRPSOLDQFH� RQ� WKH� FRQGLWLRQV� VWDWHG� LQ� WKH� (QYLURQPHQWDO� &RPSOLDQFH�
&HUWLILFDWH� �(&&�� LV� UHJXODUO\� UHSRUWHG� WR� '(15� WKURXJK� WKH� VXEPLVVLRQ� RI� 6HOI�0RQLWRULQJ�
5HSRUWV� �605��� &RPSOLDQFH� 0RQLWRULQJ� 5HSRUWV� �&05��� DQG� &RPSOLDQFH� 0RQLWRULQJ� DQG�
9HULILFDWLRQ� 5HSRUWV� �&095��� 2YHUDOO� HQYLURQPHQWDO� SHUIRUPDQFH� LV� YDOLGDWHG� UHJXODUO\� E\�
TXDUWHUO\� PRQLWRULQJ� RI� PXOWL�SDUWLWH� PRQLWRULQJ� WHDP� �007�� DQG� JRYHUQPHQW� DXGLWV� DQG� LV�
FRQILUPHG�WKDW�+3,�LV�FRPSOLDQW�ZLWK�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�JRYHUQPHQW�VWDQGDUGV��
�

,WHP����3URSHUWLHV�
�
� 7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� PDMRU� LWHPV� RI� SURSHUW\�� SODQW� DQG� HTXLSPHQW� DUH� ORFDWHG� LQ� 1RU]DJDUD\��
%XODFDQ�� %DFQRWDQ�� /D� 8QLRQ�� %R�� ,ODQJ�� 'DYDR� &LW\�� /XJDLW�� 0LVDPLV� 2ULHQWDO�� 0DELQL�� %DWDQJDV��
&DODFD�� %DWDQJDV�� ,ORLOR�� DQG� 0DQLOD�� � 7KH� WDEOH� VKRZV� WKH� FRQVROLGDWHG� SURSHUWLHV� RI� +3,� DV� RI�
'HFHPEHU����������FRPSDUHG�WR�'HFHPEHU�����������
�

7DEOH���±�3ODQW��3URSHUW\�DQG�(TXLSPHQW��&RQVROLGDWHG��
�

�
�,Q�7KRXVDQG�3HVRV��

'HFHPEHU�����
�����

'HFHPEHU�����
�����

0DFKLQHU\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� 3 ����������� 3 �����������
%XLOGLQJV�DQG�LQVWDOODWLRQV� ����������� �����������
)XUQLWXUH��YHKLFOHV�DQG�WRROV� �������� ����������
&RQVWUXFWLRQ�LQ�SURJUHVV� ���������� ����������

� ����������� �����������
/HVV���$FFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��

GHSOHWLRQ�
� �

���DQG�DOORZDQFH�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV� ����������� �����������
�����������7RWDO������ 3 ������������ 3 ������������

�
,Q�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�SULQFLSDO�SURSHUWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKHUH�DUH�QR�H[LVWLQJ�PRUWJDJHV��

OLHQV�RU�HQFXPEUDQFHV�QRU�OLPLWDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�XVDJH�RU�RZQHUVKLS���
�
7KHUH�DUH�QR� LPPLQHQW�DFTXLVLWLRQV�RI�SURSHUW\�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�DPRXQW� WKDW�FDQQRW�EH� IXQGHG�

HLWKHU�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�RU�GHEW��
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�
7KH� WDEOH� EHORZ� VXPPDUL]HV� WKH� VLJQLILFDQW� OHDVH� DJUHHPHQWV� HQWHUHG� LQWR� E\� WKH� &RPSDQ\� DV� D�
OHVVHH��
�

'HVFULSWLRQ� 6WDUW�'DWH� ([SLUDWLRQ�'DWH� �����/HDVH�
3D\PHQWV��LQ�

µ�����

5HQHZDO�2SWLRQV�

3ODQWV��7HUPLQDOV��
9HVVHOV��3RUWV�

����������� ����������� 3 �������� 7KH�FRQWUDFWV�PD\�EH�
UHQHZHG�RU�H[WHQGHG�XSRQ�
WKH�PXWXDO�DJUHHPHQW�RI�WKH�
3DUWLHV���

+HDG�2IILFH�� ����������� ����������� �������
�

7KH�OHDVH�PD\�EH�UHQHZHG�
XSRQ�WKH�ZULWWHQ�DJUHHPHQW�
DQG�XQGHU�VXFK�WHUPV�DQG�
FRQGLWLRQV�DV�PD\EH�
DFFHSWDEOH�WR�ERWK�3DUWLHV��
�

,QGXVWULDO�:DUHKRXVH� ����������� ����������� ������ 7KH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�UHQHZHG�
RU�H[WHQGHG�XSRQ�WKH�PXWXDO�
DJUHHPHQW�RI�WKH�3DUWLHV���

2WKHUV��+RXVLQJ��
9HKLFOHV��

����������� ����������� �������� 7KH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�UHQHZHG�
RU�H[WHQGHG�XSRQ�WKH�PXWXDO�
DJUHHPHQW�RI�WKH�3DUWLHV��

�
,WHP����/HJDO�3URFHHGLQJV�
��

7KH� &RPSDQ\� LV� HLWKHU� D� GHIHQGDQW� RU� SODLQWLII� LQ� VHYHUDO� FLYLO�� FULPLQDO� DQG� ODERU� FDVHV�
SULPDULO\� LQYROYLQJ�FROOHFWLRQ�DQG�FODLPV�IRU�GDPDJHV�� �%DVHG�RQ�WKH�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�PDQDJHPHQW�
DQG�WKH�RSLQLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�H[WHUQDO�OHJDO�FRXQVHOV��WKH�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�VXFK�FDVHV�ZLOO�QRW�UHVXOW�
LQ�DQ\�VLJQLILFDQW�OLDELOLW\�RU�ORVV�RI�DVVHWV��
�

2WKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�UHVWULFWHG�IXQGV� LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�FRXUW�PDQGDWHG�JDUQLVKPHQW�
DULVLQJ�IURP�D�FDVH�ILOHG�E\�6HDVLD�DJDLQVW�WKH�*URXS�������
�

3HQGLQJ�PDWHULDO�OHJDO�SURFHHGLQJV�LQYROYLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�([KLELW����
�

,WHP����6XEPLVVLRQ�RI�0DWWHUV�WR�D�9RWH�RI�6HFXULW\�+ROGHUV�
���

([FHSW�IRU�WKH�PDWWHUV�WDNHQ�XS�GXULQJ�WKH�ODVW�DQQXDO�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�VWRFNKROGHUV�FRYHUHG�E\�
WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�6(&�)RUP����,6�UHSRUW��QR�PDWWHU�ZDV�VXEPLWWHG�WR�D�YRWH�RI�VHFXULW\�KROGHUV�WKURXJK�
VROLFLWDWLRQ�RI�SUR[LHV�RU�RWKHUZLVH�GXULQJ�WKH�FDOHQGDU�\HDU�FRYHUHG�E\�WKLV�UHSRUW��

�
�

� �
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3$57�,,���23(5$7,21$/�$1'�),1$1&,$/�,1)250$7,21�
��
,WHP����0DUNHW�IRU�,VVXHU
V�&RPPRQ�(TXLW\�DQG�5HODWHG�6WRFNKROGHU�0DWWHUV�
��
���� 0DUNHW�,QIRUPDWLRQ�
�
� +3,�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV�DUH�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�36(���7KH�KLJK�DQG�ORZ�PDUNHW�SULFHV�RI�+3,�VKDUHV�IRU�
HDFK�TXDUWHU�RI�FDOHQGDU�\HDU������DQG�WKDW�RI�WKH�SDVW�WZR�FDOHQGDU�\HDUV��DV�UHSRUWHG�E\�WKH�36(��
DUH�VKRZQ�EHORZ���

�
7DEOH���±�0DUNHW�3ULFHV�RI�+3,�6KDUHV�

�
4XDUWHU�3HULRG� &<������ &<������ &<������

�� +LJK� /RZ� +LJK� /RZ� +LJK� /RZ�
-DQXDU\�0DUFK� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
$SULO�-XQH� ����� ����� ������ ������ ����� �����
-XO\�6HSWHPEHU� ����� ����� ������ ������ ����� �����
2FWREHU�'HFHPEHU� ����� ����� ������ ������ ����� �����

�6RXUFH���3KLOLSSLQH�6WRFN�([FKDQJH��,QF��
�
$V�RI�)HEUXDU\�����������WKH�FORVLQJ�SULFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV�DW�WKH�36(�LV�3 �����SHU�
VKDUH��
�
���� 6WRFNKROGHUV�
�

$V� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ +3,� KDV� �������������� FRPPRQ� VKDUHV� RXWVWDQGLQJ� KHOG� E\�
������ VWRFNKROGHUV�� 7KH� OLVW� RI� WKH� WRS� WZHQW\� VWRFNKROGHUV� RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\� DV� UHFRUGHG� E\� 6WRFN�
7UDQVIHU�6HUYLFH��,QF���WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VWRFN�WUDQVIHU�DJHQW��LV�DV�IROORZV��

�
7DEOH���±�7RS�7ZHQW\������6WRFNKROGHUV�

5DQN� 1DPH� &LWL]HQVKLS� 6KDUHV��6XP�� ��
�� 81,21�&(0(17�+2/',1*6�

&25325$7,21�
),/,3,12� �������������� �������

�� %��9�+2/'(5),1� '87&+� �������������� �������
�� 680,7202�26$.$�&(0(17�&2���/7'�� -$3$1(6(� ������������ ������
�� &(0&2�+2/',1*6��,1&�� ),/,3,12� ������������ ������
�� 3&'�120,1((�&253),/,3,12�� ),/,3,12�� ������������� ������
�� 3&'�120,1((�&253����121�),/,3,12�� )25(,*1� ������������ ������
�� $1721,2�0��'80$/,$1*�	�25�

526$/,1'$�6��'80$/,$1*�
),/,3,12� �������� ������

�� .$.8*$5$�$.,+,.2�/(21&,2�7,8� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
�� /8,6�&2�&+,�.,$7� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� /8,6�52/$1'2�*$5&,$�)$'5,*2� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� -2$48,1�4��7$1� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� $0(5,&$1�:,5(�	�&$%/(�&2���,1&�� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� /,/,$�9��48,72� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� 81,9(56,7<�2)�6$172�720$6�9,//$18(9$�

$0$1'2�
),/,3,12� �������� ������

��� )5$1&,6�/��(6&$/(5� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� $1*�*8$1�3,$2� � �������� ������
��� ,6$%(/$�&8/785$/�&25325$7,21� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� )5$1&,6&2�&��(,=0(1',��-5�� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� 526$/,$�0��$0$1'2� ),/,3,12� �������� ������
��� %(1,72�*��2%/(1$� ),/,3,12� �������� ������

� 7RWDO� �������������� �������
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
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�
���� 'LYLGHQGV�

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�DXWKRUL]HG�WR�SD\�FDVK�RU�VWRFN�GLYLGHQGV��RU�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�WKHUHRI��VXEMHFW�

WR�DSSURYDO�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�RU�LWV�VKDUHKROGHUV���'LYLGHQGV�SDLG�LQ� WKH�IRUP�
RI�DGGLWLRQDO�VKDUHV�DUH�VXEMHFW� WR�DSSURYDO�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�� WKH�6(&�DQG�WKH�
VWRFNKROGHUV�RI�DW�OHDVW�WZR�WKLUGV�RI�WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\���+ROGHUV�RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ�
VKDUHV�RQ�D�GLYLGHQG�UHFRUG�GDWH�IRU�VXFK�VKDUHV�ZLOO�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�WKH�IXOO�GLYLGHQG�GHFODUHG�ZLWKRXW�
UHJDUG�WR�DQ\�VXEVHTXHQW�WUDQVIHU�RI�VKDUHV��

�
2WKHU�WKDQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�LQ�WKH�ORDQ�FRYHQDQWV�DJUHHG�WR�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKHUH�DUH�QR�RWKHU�

OLPLWDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�GHFODUH�GLYLGHQGV�WR�LWV�FRPPRQ�VWRFN��
�
&DVK�GLYLGHQGV�ZHUH�GHFODUHG�LQ�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������������DQG������DV�

IROORZV��
�

� ����� ����� �����

&DVK�'LYLGHQG�3HU�6KDUH��3K3�� 1,/� 1,/� ଑�����

$PRXQW�'HFODUHG��3K3�� �1,/� �1,/� ଑����ELOOLRQ�

'HFODUDWLRQ�'DWH� �� �� ���0D\����

5HFRUG�'DWH� �� �� ���-XQH����
�

���� 6DOHV�RI�8QUHJLVWHUHG�6HFXULWLHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�/DVW�7KUHH�����<HDUV�
�

7KHUH�DUH�QR�RWKHU�VHFXULWLHV�VROG� IRU�FDVK�E\� WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLWKLQ� WKH� ODVW� WKUHH�\HDUV� WKDW�
ZHUH�QRW�UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�65&���
�
�
,WHP����0DQDJHPHQW
V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV�RU�3ODQ�RI�2SHUDWLRQ�
�
5HYLHZ�RI�&<������2SHUDWLRQV�YV��&<������
�
3KLOLSSLQHV¶� *URVV� 'RPHVWLF� 3URGXFW� �*'3�� JUHZ� E\� QHJDWLYH� ����
�� ORZHU� WKDQ� WKH� ����� JURZWK�
UHJLVWHUHG�LQ�WKH�SULRU�\HDU���
�
5HYHQXH�JHQHUDWHG�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�3KS����ELOOLRQ��ORZHU�FRPSDUHG�WR�3KS����ELOOLRQ�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�
VDPH�SHULRG�ODVW�\HDU�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�ORZHU�YROXPHV�LQ�ERWK�FHPHQW�DQG�DJJUHJDWHV�EXVLQHVVHV�GXH�WR�
SDQGHPLF� RXWEUHDN�� 6XVWDLQLQJ� RXU� QHW� VHOOLQJ� SULFHV� ZDV� D� FKDOOHQJH� LQ� WKH� \HDU� IURP� LQWHQVLILHG�
PDUNHW�FRPSHWLWLRQ�LQ�D�JHQHUDOO\�VRIW�GHPDQG�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�VKLIW�WR�PRUH�SLFN�XS�VDOHV�WR�FRXQWHU�WKH�
VXSSO\�LQWHUUXSWLRQV�EURXJKW�E\�ORFDO�TXDUDQWLQH��$JJUHVVLYH�FRVW�UHGXFWLRQV�LQ�SURGXFWLRQ��GLVWULEXWLRQ�
DQG�VXSSRUW�SURFHVV�FRVWV�SDUWLDOO\�PLWLJDWHG� WKH� WRSOLQH�GHFOLQH��7KH�*URXS�DFKLHYHG� WRWDO�(%,7'$�
DIWHU�OHDVH�RI�3KS���ELOOLRQ������ORZHU�WKDQ�WKH�VDPH�SHULRG�ODVW�\HDU�� �
�
7KH� *URXS� PDQDJHG� WR� LQFXU� ORZHU� ILQDQFLDO� H[SHQVHV� UHODWHG� WR� LWV� VKRUW�WHUP� ORDQV� GXH� WR� IXOO�
VHWWOHPHQW� RI� WKLUG� SDUW\� ORDQV� GXULQJ� WKH� \HDU�� 1HW� LQFRPH� DIWHU� WD[� VWRRG� DW� 3KS���ELR� JLYLQJ�
HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�RI�3KS������
�
�

6RXUFH��3KLOLSSLQH�6WDWLVWLFV�$XWKRULW\�
� �
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�
.H\�3HUIRUPDQFH�,QGLFDWRUV��³.3,´��

�
7KH� FRPSDUDWLYH� ILQDQFLDO� .3,� IRU� WKH� \HDUV� HQGHG� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� DQG� ����� DUH� DV�

IROORZV��
�

)LQDQFLDO�.3,� 'HILQLWLRQ�
)RU�WKH�&DOHQGDU�<HDU�
HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����
����� �����

�� �� �� ��
3URILWDELOLW\� �� �� ��

� � � �

5HWXUQ�RQ�$VVHWV��52$�� 1HW�,QFRPH� ����� �����$YH��7RWDO�$VVHWV�
� � � �

��5HWXUQ�RQ�(TXLW\��52(�� 1HW�,QFRPH� ����� ������$YH��7RWDO�(TXLW\�
� � � �

2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$�0DUJLQ� 2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$� ������ ������1HW�6DOHV�
�� �� � �
/LTXLGLW\� �� � �

���*HDULQJ�5DWLR� 1HW�)LQDQFLDO�'HEW� ������ �����7RWDO�(TXLW\�
�� �� � �

(%,7'$�1HW�,QWHUHVW�&RYHU��WLPHV��
2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$�

����� �����1HW�,QWHUHVW�
�

�� �� �� ��
�
3URILWDELOLW\�
�

/RZHU�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�SULRU�\HDU�IURP�ORZHU�YROXPH�VROG�DQG�QHW�VHOOLQJ�SULFHV�SDUWLDOO\�RIIVHW�
IURP�ORZHU�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV���

�
/LTXLGLW\�
�
� 7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�OLTXLGLW\�SRVLWLRQ�UHPDLQHG�VWURQJ�HYLGHQFHG�E\�VLJQLILFDQW�FDVK�EDODQFH���
�

�
6LJQLILFDQW�'LVFORVXUHV��

�
3OHDVH�UHIHU� WR�([KLELW���RI� WKLV� UHSRUW� IRU� WKH�VLJQLILFDQW�GLVFORVXUHV�PDGH�E\� WKH�&RPSDQ\�

GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU���2WKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�PHQWLRQHG�LQ�([KLELW����WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRW�DZDUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ��
�

��� 8QXVXDO�LWHPV�WKDW�PDWHULDOO\�DIIHFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRQVROLGDWHG�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV��HTXLW\��
QHW�LQFRPH�RU�FDVK�IORZV�EHFDXVH�RI�WKHLU�QDWXUH��VL]H�RU�LQFLGHQWV��

�
��� &KDQJHV�LQ�HVWLPDWHV�RI�DPRXQWV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�SULRU�LQWHULP�SHULRGV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�ILQDQFLDO�

\HDU� RU� FKDQJHV� LQ� HVWLPDWHV� RI� DPRXQWV� LQ� SULRU� ILQDQFLDO� \HDUV� WKDW� KDYH� D� PDWHULDO�
HIIHFW�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG��

�
��� ,VVXDQFHV�DQG�UHSXUFKDVH�RI�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV��

�
��� 0DWHULDO� FKDQJHV� LQ� FRQWLQJHQW� OLDELOLWLHV� RU� FRQWLQJHQW� DVVHWV� VLQFH� WKH� ODVW� DQQXDO�

EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��
�
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��� ([LVWHQFH�RI�PDWHULDO�FRQWLQJHQFLHV�DQG�RWKHU�HYHQWV�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV�WKDW�DUH�PDWHULDO�WR�
DQ�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG���

�
��� .QRZQ�WUHQGV��GHPDQGV��FRPPLWPHQWV��HYHQWV�DQG�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�RU�OLNHO\�

GHFUHDVH�LWV�OLTXLGLW\� LQ�D�PDWHULDO�ZD\���7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�DQWLFLSDWH�KDYLQJ�ZLWKLQ�
WKH�QH[W����PRQWKV�DQ\�FDVK�IORZ�RU�OLTXLGLW\�SUREOHPV�QRU�GRHV�LW�DQWLFLSDWH�DQ\�GHIDXOW�
RU� EUHDFK� RI� DQ\� RI� LWV� H[LVWLQJ� QRWHV�� ORDQV�� OHDVHV�� RWKHU� LQGHEWHGQHVV� RU� ILQDQFLDO�
DUUDQJHPHQWV� UHTXLULQJ� LW� WR�PDNH�SD\PHQWV�� �:LWK� WKH� LPSURYHPHQW� LQ� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
RSHUDWLQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH��LW�H[SHFWV�WR�PHHW�DOO�ILQDQFLDO�ORDQ�FRYHQDQWV�IRU�WKH�QH[W�LQWHULP�
SHULRG��

�
��� (YHQWV�WKDW�ZLOO�WULJJHU�GLUHFW�RU�FRQWLQJHQW�PDWHULDO�ILQDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��

�
��� 0DWHULDO�RII�EDODQFH�VKHHW� WUDQVDFWLRQV��DUUDQJHPHQWV��REOLJDWLRQV��GLUHFW�RU�FRQWLQJHQW���

DQG� RWKHU� UHODWLRQVKLSV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZLWK� XQFRQVROLGDWHG� HQWLWLHV� RU� RWKHU� SHUVRQV�
FUHDWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��

�
��� 0DWHULDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�IRU�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV��

�
����.QRZQ�WUHQGV��HYHQWV�RU�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�KDYH�KDG�RU� WKDW�DUH�UHDVRQDEO\�H[SHFWHG�WR�

KDYH� D� PDWHULDO� IDYRUDEOH� LPSDFW� RQ� QHW� VDOHV�� UHYHQXHV�� QHW� LQFRPH� IURP� FRQWLQXLQJ�
RSHUDWLRQV��

�
����6LJQLILFDQW�HOHPHQWV�RI� LQFRPH�RU� ORVV�WKDW�GLG�QRW�DULVH�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRQWLQXLQJ�

RSHUDWLRQV��
�

����0DWHULDO�HYHQWV�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�WKDW�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�
WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

�
�

� 1RWHV�WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
�
$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�DQG�3ULQFLSOHV�
�
7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��ZKLFK�FRPSULVH�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQWV�
RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU����������DQG������DQG�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�SURILW�RU�
ORVV� DQG� RWKHU� FRPSUHKHQVLYH� LQFRPH�� FRQVROLGDWHG� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ� HTXLW\� DQG�
FRQVROLGDWHG� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� FDVK� IORZV� IRU� HDFK� RI� WKH� WKUHH� \HDUV� LQ� WKH� SHULRG� HQGHG��
'HFHPEHU����������KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�3KLOLSSLQH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�
DSSOLHG�RQ�D�FRQVLVWHQW�EDVLV���7KH�GHWDLOHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH���±�6XPPDU\�RI�
6LJQLILFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�LQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
�
6HDVRQDOLW\�$VSHFWV�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV�
�

/LNH�DQ\�RWKHU�FRPSDQ\�LQ�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�LQGXVWU\��WKH�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�WKH�*URXS�DUH�DIIHFWHG�
E\�VHDVRQDOLW\���1HW�VDOHV�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�KLJKHU�LQ�GU\�PRQWKV�IURP�)HEUXDU\�WR�0D\�DQG�ORZHU�GXULQJ�
WKH� UDLQ\�PRQWKV� RI� -XQH� WR�1RYHPEHU�� � /RZ� VDOHV� DUH� DOVR� H[SHULHQFHG� GXULQJ�'HFHPEHU� GXH� WR�
KROLGD\V� XQWLO� HDUO\� -DQXDU\�� 8QSUHGLFWDEOH� ZHDWKHU� FRXOG� DOVR� VLJQLILFDQWO\� DIIHFW� VDOHV� DQG�
SURILWDELOLW\�FRPSDUHG�WR�SUHYLRXV�SHULRGV�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�DQ\�XQIRUHVHHQ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�OLNH�GLVUXSWLRQV�
LQ�SURGXFWLRQV��

�
� �



6(&�)RUP����$�&<������
)HEUXDU\������
�

���

)LQDQFLDO�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�2EMHFWLYHV�DQG�3ROLFLHV�
�
*HQHUDO�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�$SSURDFK�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV� H[SRVHG� WR� YDULRXV� ILQDQFLDO� ULVNV�� ZKLFK� LQFOXGH� WKH� HIIHFW� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ�
GHEW� VWUXFWXUH�� HTXLW\� PDUNHW� SULFHV�� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� H[FKDQJH� UDWHV� DQG� LQWHUHVW� UDWHV�� � 7KH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�RYHUDOO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SURJUDP�IRFXVHV�RQ�WKH�XQSUHGLFWDELOLW\�RI�ILQDQFLDO�PDUNHWV�DQG�
VHHNV� WR� PLQLPL]H� SRWHQWLDO� DQG� DGYHUVH� HIIHFWV� RQ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� SHUIRUPDQFH� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\���
7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�HQWHU�LQWR�RWKHU�GHULYDWLYH�RU�ILQDQFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZKLFK�DUH�XQUHODWHG�WR�LWV�
RSHUDWLQJ�EXVLQHVV�DV�D�ULVN�DYHUVH�DSSURDFK�LV�SXUVXHG��

)LQDQFLDO� ULVN� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV� JRYHUQHG� E\� SROLFLHV� DSSURYHG� E\�
PDQDJHPHQW���,W�SURYLGHV�SULQFLSOHV�IRU�RYHUDOO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��DV�ZHOO�DV�SROLFLHV�FRYHULQJ�VSHFLILF�
ULVN� DUHDV� VXFK� DV� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN�� IRUHLJQ� H[FKDQJH� ULVN�� FRXQWHUSDUW\� ULVN�� XVH� RI� GHULYDWLYH�
ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�LQYHVWLQJ�DVVHWV�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV��

7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� SULQFLSDO� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�� RWKHU� WKDQ� GHULYDWLYHV�� FRQVLVW� RI� FDVK� DQG�
FDVK� HTXLYDOHQWV� DQG� ORDQV� SD\DEOH�� � 7KH�PDLQ� SXUSRVH� RI� WKHVH� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV� LV� WR� UDLVH�
IXQGV� IRU� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� RSHUDWLRQV�� � 7KH� &RPSDQ\� DOVR� KDV� YDULRXV� RWKHU� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG�
OLDELOLWLHV�VXFK�DV�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��DGYDQFHV�WR�HPSOR\HHV��JXDUDQWHH�GHSRVLWV��UHVWULFWHG�
FDVK�DQG�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�ZKLFK�DULVH�GLUHFWO\�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��

7KH� PDLQ� ULVNV� DULVLQJ� IURP� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV� DUH� PDUNHW� ULVNV� �ZKLFK�
LQFOXGH� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� ULVN� DQG� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN��� FUHGLW� ULVN� DQG� OLTXLGLW\� ULVN�� � 7KH� %RDUG� RI�
'LUHFWRUV� �%2'�� UHYLHZV�DQG�DSSURYHV� WKH� SROLFLHV� IRU�PDQDJLQJ� HDFK�RI� WKHVH� ULVNV� DQG� WKH\� DUH�
VXPPDUL]HG�EHORZ���7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�VHW�RXW�
LQ�1RWH���WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

0DUNHW�5LVNV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV�H[SRVHG�WR�PDUNHW�ULVNV��VXFK�DV�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�� LQWHUHVW�UDWH�DQG�HTXLW\�
SULFH� ULVNV�� � 7R�PDQDJH� YRODWLOLW\� UHODWLQJ� WR� WKHVH� H[SRVXUHV�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� HQWHUV� LQWR� GHULYDWLYH�
ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV��ZKHQ� QHFHVVDU\�� � 7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� REMHFWLYH� LV� WR� UHGXFH��ZKHUH� DSSURSULDWH��
IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�HDUQLQJV�DQG�FDVK�IORZV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�FKDQJHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\��LQWHUHVW�UDWH�DQG�
HTXLW\�SULFH��

�

)RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�5LVN�
�

)RUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� ULVN� LV� WKH� ULVN� WKDW� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH� RU� IXWXUH� FDVK� IORZV� RI� D� ILQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�IOXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\� KDV� IRUHLJQ� H[FKDQJH� H[SRVXUHV�� DULVLQJ� SULPDULO\� IURP� SXUFKDVHV� RI� JRRGV�

DQG�VHUYLFHV�DQG�GHEW�VHUYLFLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�FXUUHQFLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�3HVR�WKDW�OHDGV�
WR� FXUUHQF\� WUDQVODWLRQ� HIIHFWV�� � 2I� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� UHYHQXHV�� DSSUR[LPDWHO\� QLO� DQG� ������ ZHUH�
GHQRPLQDWHG�LQ�FXUUHQFLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�3HVR�LQ������DQG��������

�
'XH�WR�WKH�ORFDO�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�FHPHQW�EXVLQHVV��WUDQVDFWLRQ�ULVN�LV�OLPLWHG���+RZHYHU��LQFRPH�

PD\� SULPDULO\� EH� LQ� ORFDO� FXUUHQF\� ZKHUHDV� GHEW� VHUYLFLQJ� DQG� VLJQLILFDQW� DPRXQW� RI� FDSLWDO�
H[SHQGLWXUHV�PD\�EH�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV���$V�D�FRQVHTXHQFH�WKHUHRI��WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�HQWHU�LQWR�
GHULYDWLYH�FRQWUDFWV�ZKHQHYHU�QHFHVVDU\��ZKLFK�PD\�EH�GHVLJQDWHG�HLWKHU�DV�FDVK�IORZ�KHGJHV�RU�IDLU�
YDOXH�KHGJHV��DV�DSSURSULDWH��
�
� $V�RI�'HFHPEHU�����������WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�PLQLPDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�H[SRVHG�WR�IRUHLJQ�
FXUUHQF\�ULVNV�� �

�
� �



6(&�)RUP����$�&<������
)HEUXDU\������
�

���

,QWHUHVW�5DWH�5LVN�
�

,QWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN� LV� WKH� ULVN� WKDW� IXWXUH� FDVK� IORZV� IURP� D� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQW� �FDVK� IORZ�
LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN�� RU� LWV� IDLU� YDOXH� �IDLU� YDOXH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN��ZLOO� IOXFWXDWH� EHFDXVH� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ�
PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�ILQDQFLQJ�FRVWV�DQG�PDUNHW�YDOXH�PRYHPHQWV�RI�LWV�
GHEW�SRUWIROLR� UHODWHG� WR�FKDQJHV� LQ�PDUNHW� LQWHUHVW� UDWHV�� �7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� LQWHUHVW� UDWH�H[SRVXUH� LV�
PDLQO\�DGGUHVVHG�WKURXJK�WKH�VWHHULQJ�RI�WKH�IL[HG�IORDWLQJ�UDWLR�RI�QHW�GHEW���7R�PDQDJH�WKLV�PL[��WKH�
&RPSDQ\�PD\�HQWHU�LQWR�GHULYDWLYH�WUDQVDFWLRQV��DV�DSSURSULDWH���$V�DW�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�������
WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�PLQLPDO�H[SRVXUH�WR�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN��
�
&UHGLW�5LVN�
�

&UHGLW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�FRXQWHUSDUWLHV�PD\�QRW�EH�DEOH�WR�VHWWOH�WKHLU�REOLJDWLRQV�DV�DJUHHG���
7R�PDQDJH�WKLV�ULVN��WKH�&RPSDQ\�SHULRGLFDOO\�DVVHVVHV�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHOLDELOLW\�RI�FXVWRPHUV��

7KH� &RPSDQ\� FRQVWDQWO\� PRQLWRUV� LWV� FUHGLW� ULVN� H[SRVXUHV�� &RXQWHUSDUWLHV� WR� ILQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQWV�FRQVLVW�RI�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�PDMRU�ILQDQFLDO� LQVWLWXWLRQV���7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�H[SHFW�
DQ\�FRXQWHUSDUWLHV�WR�IDLO� LQ�PHHWLQJ�WKHLU�REOLJDWLRQV��JLYHQ�WKHLU�KLJK�FUHGLW�UDWLQJV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�
&RPSDQ\� KDV� QR� VLJQLILFDQW� FRQFHQWUDWLRQ� RI� FUHGLW� ULVN� ZLWK� DQ\� VLQJOH� FRXQWHUSDUW\� RU� JURXS� RI�
FRXQWHUSDUWLHV��
�

7KH�PD[LPXP�DQG�PLQLPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�UHSUHVHQWHG�E\�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�
HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW��
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� WUDGHV�RQO\�ZLWK� UHFRJQL]HG�� FUHGLW�ZRUWK\� WKLUG�SDUWLHV�� � ,W� LV� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
SROLF\�WKDW�DOO�WKLUG�SDUW\�FXVWRPHUV�ZKR�ZLVK�WR�WUDGH�RQ�FUHGLW�WHUPV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�FUHGLW�YHULILFDWLRQ�
SURFHGXUHV�� � ,Q� DGGLWLRQ�� UHFHLYDEOH� EDODQFHV� DUH� PRQLWRUHG� RQ� DQ� RQJRLQJ� EDVLV� WR� UHGXFH� WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�H[SRVXUH�WR�EDG�GHEWV�WR�PLQLPDO��
�

:LWK� UHVSHFW� WR� FUHGLW� ULVN� DULVLQJ� IURP� WKH� RWKHU� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� ZKLFK�
FRQVLVW�RI�GXH�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��DGYDQFHV�WR�HPSOR\HHV��DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH��$)6��ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��
DQG� JXDUDQWHH� DQG� UHIXQGDEOH� GHSRVLWV�� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� H[SRVXUHV� DULVH� IURP� GHIDXOW� RI� WKH�
FRXQWHUSDUW\��ZLWK�D�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�HTXDO�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKHVH�LQVWUXPHQWV��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVNV�DULVLQJ�IURP�RXWVWDQGLQJ�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�GLVFORVHG�

LQ� 1RWH� ��� ±� )LQDQFLDO� 5LVN� 0DQDJHPHQW� 2EMHFWLYHV� DQG� 3ROLFLHV� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV��

�
/LTXLGLW\�5LVN�
�

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�HQFRXQWHU�GLIILFXOW\�LQ�UDLVLQJ�IXQGV�WR�PHHW�LWV�
FRQWUDFWXDO� REOLJDWLRQV� DQG� FRPPLWPHQWV�� � 7KH� VHDVRQDOLW\� RI� UHYHQXH� JHQHUDWLRQ� H[SRVHV� WKH�
&RPSDQ\� WR�VKRUWDJH�RI� IXQGV�GXULQJ�VODFN�VHDVRQ�DQG�PD\� UHVXOW� LQ�SD\PHQW�GHIDXOWV�RI� ILQDQFLDO�
FRPPLWPHQWV�� � 7KH�&RPSDQ\�PRQLWRUV� WKLV� ULVN� XVLQJ� D� UHFXUULQJ� OLTXLGLW\� SODQQLQJ� WRRO�� � 7KLV� WRRO�
FRQVLGHUV� WKH�PDWXULW\� RI� ERWK� LWV� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG� SURMHFWHG� FDVK� IORZV� IURP� RSHUDWLRQV�� � 7KH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�EDODQFH�EHWZHHQ�FRQWLQXLW\�RI�IXQGLQJ�DQG�IOH[LELOLW\�WKURXJK�WKH�
XVH�RI�EDQN�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV��ILQDQFH�OHDVHV�DQG�SXUFKDVH�FRQWUDFWV���,W�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�LWV�RZQ�FDVK�
VXUSOXVHV�DQG�WKH�UDLVLQJ�RI�ORDQV�WR�FRYHU�FDVK�GHILFLWV��VXEMHFW�WR�SROLFLHV�DQG�JXLGHOLQHV�DSSURYHG�
E\�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�LQ�FHUWDLQ�FDVHV�DW�WKH�%2'�OHYHO��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�PDLQWDLQV�VXIILFLHQW� UHVHUYHV�RI� FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��ZKLFK�DUH�VKRUW�

WHUP�LQ�QDWXUH�DQG�XQXVHG�FUHGLW�OLQHV�WR�PHHW�LWV�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DW�DOO�WLPHV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�
VWURQJ�FUHGLW�ZRUWKLQHVV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�DOORZV� LW� WR�PDNH�HIILFLHQW�XVH�RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�PDUNHWV� IRU�
ILQDQFLQJ�SXUSRVHV���$V�DW�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�XQXWLOL]HG�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV�
RI�3K3�����ELOOLRQ�DQG�3K3�����ELOOLRQ��UHVSHFWLYHO\��

�
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7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV�DQG� OLDELOLWLHV�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU����������DQG������DUH�GLVFORVHG� LQ�
1RWH� ��� ±� )LQDQFLDO� 5LVN� 0DQDJHPHQW� 2EMHFWLYHV� DQG� 3ROLFLHV� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV��
�
&DSLWDO�0DQDJHPHQW�3ROLF\�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�FRQVLGHUV�HTXLW\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�DV�LWV�
FDSLWDO�� � 7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� REMHFWLYHV� ZKHQ� PDQDJLQJ� FDSLWDO� DUH� WR� VHFXUH� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� RQJRLQJ�
ILQDQFLDO� QHHGV� WR� FRQWLQXH�DV� D� JRLQJ� FRQFHUQ� DV�ZHOO� DV� WR� FDWHU� WR� LWV� JURZWK� WDUJHWV� WR� SURYLGH�
UHWXUQV�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�EHQHILWV�IRU�RWKHU�VWDNHKROGHUV�DQG�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�FRVW�HIILFLHQW�DQG�ULVN�
RSWLPL]HG�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH��

�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� PDQDJHV� WKH� FDSLWDO� VWUXFWXUH� DQG� PDNHV� DGMXVWPHQWV� WR� LW� LQ� OLJKW� RI� WKH�

FKDQJHV� LQ�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�� LWV�EXVLQHVV�DFWLYLWLHV�� LQYHVWPHQW�DQG�H[SDQVLRQ�SURJUDP�DQG� WKH�
ULVN�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�DVVHWV���7R�PDLQWDLQ�RU�DGMXVW�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH��WKH�&RPSDQ\�
PD\�DGMXVW� WKH�DPRXQW�RI�GLYLGHQGV�SDLG� WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�� UHWXUQ�FDSLWDO� WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�� LVVXH�QHZ�
VKDUHV�RU�VHOO�DVVHWV�WR�UHGXFH�GHEW��

7KH� &RPSDQ\� PRQLWRUV� FDSLWDO�� DPRQJ� RWKHUV�� RQ� WKH� EDVLV� RI� JHDULQJ� UDWLR�� � *HDULQJ� LV�
FDOFXODWHG� DV� QHW� ILQDQFLDO� GHEW� GLYLGHG� E\� WRWDO� HTXLW\� LQ� WKH� SDUHQW� FRPSDQ\� EDODQFH� VKHHWV� DV�
VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�WDEOH�EHORZ��
�
� ����� �����
/RDQV�SD\DEOH���*URXS� 3 ������������������ 3 ����������
&XVWRPHUV¶�GHSRVLWV� �������� ��������
)LQDQFLDO�GHEW� �������� ����������
/HVV�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� ���������� ����������
1HW�ILQDQFLDO�GHEW� ������������ ����������
7RWDO�HTXLW\� ������������ �����������
*HDULQJ�UDWLR� ������ �����

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� WDUJHW� LV� WR�PDLQWDLQ� D� JHDULQJ� LQ� WKH� UDQJH� RI� QR�PRUH� WKDQ� ���� SHUFHQW���

7RWDO�HTXLW\�JUHZ�E\������ LQ������DV�D�UHVXOW�RI� LQFUHDVH� LQ� UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV�FRPLQJ�IURP� LQFRPH�
IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
�

�
0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�LQ�%DODQFH�6KHHW�$FFRXQWV�

�
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKLUG�SDUW\�DQG�UHODWHG�SDUW\�ORDQV�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�
ORZHU�FDVK�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV���QHW�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�SULPDULO\�GXH�WR�ORZHU�FUHGLW�VDOHV�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�KLJKHU�FXVWRPHU�FROOHFWLRQV�
IURP�UHVROXWH�FROOHFWLRQ�HIIRUWV��
�
,QYHQWRULHV�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�FRQVXPSWLRQ�RI�RZQ�FOLQNHU�DQG�FHPHQW�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�UDWLRQDOL]DWLRQ�RI�
SXUFKDVH�SODQ��
�
�
�
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�
2WKHU�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�
�

'HFUHDVH� ZDV� ODUJHO\� DWWULEXWDEOH� WR� ORZHU� LQSXW� YDOXH� DGGHG� WD[HV� EURXJKW� E\� ORZHU�
SXUFKDVHV���H[SHQVHV�DV�FRPSDUHG�WR�SULRU�\HDU�DQG�ORZHU�DGYDQFHV�WR�VXSSOLHU�FDXVHG�E\�XWLOL]DWLRQ�
��DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV��
�
,QYHVWPHQWV�
�
� 0RYHPHQW�ZDV�GXH�WR�GXH�WR�WKH�GLYLGHQGV�UHFHLYHG�QHW�RI�VKDUH�IURP�XQUHDOL]HG�LQFRPH�
IURP�DVVRFLDWHV��
�
3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�±�QHW�

�
'HFUHDVH�SHUWDLQV�WR�WKH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��QHW�RI�&$3(;�DGGLWLRQV�DQG�QHZ�DQG�UHQHZHG�OHDVH�

FRQWUDFWV��
�
5LJKW�RI�8VH�$VVHWV�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�WKH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�H[SHQVH�UHFRJQL]HG�IRU�WKH�SHULRG��
�
5HWLUHPHQW�%HQHILW�$VVHWV���QHW�
�

7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�UHFRJQL]HG�ORVV�IURP�UH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�UHWLUHPHQW�IXQG�DVVHW��
�
2WKHU�1RQ�FXUUHQW�$VVHW�
�

,QFUHDVH�SHUWDLQV�WR�PRYHPHQW�LQ�ORQJ�WHUP�SUHSDLG�DVVHWV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�
VWUDQGHG�FRVW�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW��
�
,QWDQJLEOHV�$VVHWV���QHW�
�

�'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�WKH�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�H[SHQVH�UHFRJQL]HG�IRU�WKH�SHULRG��
�
/RDQ�SD\DEOHV�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�WKH�IXOO�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�ORDQ�H[WHQGHG�E\�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�DQG�IXOO�VHWWOHPHQW�
IRU�UHODWHG�SDUW\�ORDQV��
�
7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�
�

/RZHU�SD\DEOHV�IURP�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�DGYDQFHV�UHFHLYHG�IURP�FXVWRPHUV�WR�WKHLU�FHPHQW�
SXUFKDVHV��DFFUXHG�UHEDWHV�DQG�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�DPRXQWV�RZHG�WR�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��
�
,QFRPH�WD[�SD\DEOH�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�SD\PHQW�IRU�LQFRPH�WD[HV��QHW�RI�ORZHU�LQFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�GXH�
WR�ORZHU�LQFRPH�JHQHUDWHG�IRU�WKH�SHULRG��
�
3URYLVLRQV�

�
'HFUHDVH�LQ�SURYLVLRQV�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�VWUDQGHG�FRVW��

�
'HIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWLHV���QHW�
�

0RYHPHQW�ZDV�GULYHQ�E\�WKH�WD[�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�UHPHDVXUHPHQW�RI�UHWLUHPHQW�IXQG��
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5HPHDVXUHPHQW�JDLQ��ORVV��RQ�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILWV�
�
� 7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�WKH�UHFRJQL]HG�ORVV�LQ�UHPHDVXUHPHQW�RI�SODQ�DVVHWV�GXH�WR�
FKDQJHV�LQ�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�DGMXVWPHQWV��
�
5HWDLQHG�(DUQLQJV�
�

,QFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�QHW�SURILW�UHFRJQL]HG�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�
�
1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�,QWHUHVW�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�ORZHU�SURILW�RI�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�ODVW�\HDU��
�
�

0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�LQ�,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW�$FFRXQWV�
�
5HYHQXH�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�ORZHU�YROXPHV�VROG�IURP�WKH�LQWHUUXSWLRQ�LQ�WKH�VDOHV�RSHUDWLRQV�
DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�ORFNGRZQ�LPSOHPHQWHG�E\�WKH�JRYHUQPHQW��
�
&RVW�RI�JRRGV�VROG�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR� ORZHU�YROXPHV�SURGXFHG�GXH�WR�VWRSSDJH�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�
GXULQJ�IURP�0DUFK�WR�0D\��2WKHU�WKDQ�ORZHU�YROXPHV��VROG��WUDQVSRUWHG�DQG�SURGXFHG��FRVW�RI�JRRGV�
VROG�ZDV� ORZHU�GULYHQ�E\� ORZHU� IL[HG�FRVW�� ORZHU�UDZ�PDWHULDO�DQG�IXHO�SULFHV�� ORZHU�HQHUJ\�FRVW��DV�
ZHOO�DV�ORZHU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�FRVWV�IURP�VDYLQJV�LQ�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�WKLUG�SDUW\�VHUYLFHV��
�
*HQHUDO�DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�([SHQVHV�
�
� 7KH�PRYHPHQW�ZDV�GXH�WR� ORZHU� WKLUG�SDUW\� ��RXWVLGH�VHUYLFH�FRVWV��QHW�RI�KLJKHU�SHUVRQQHO�
DQG�WD[HV�DQG�OLFHQVHV�H[SHQVH��
�
6HOOLQJ�([SHQVHV�
�
� 7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�ORZHU�WKLUG�SDUW\���RXWVLGH�VHUYLFH�FRVWV��SHUVRQQHO�H[SHQVHV��DQG�
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DQG�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�FRVWV��
�
,QWHUHVW�DQG�)LQDQFLQJ�&KDUJHV�
�
� 7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�IXOO�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�D�ORDQ�IURP�D�WKLUG�SDUW\��
�
,QWHUHVW�DQG�2WKHU�)LQDQFLDO�,QFRPH�
�
� 7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�ORZHU�QHW�LQWHUHVW�RQ�QHW�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�DVVHW��
�
)RUHLJQ�([FKDQJH�*DLQV��/RVVHV����QHW�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�GHFUHDVH�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�GHQRPLQDWHG�DVVHWV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�UHYDOXHG�
DW�\HDU�HQG��
�
3URYLVLRQ�IRU�LQFRPH�WD[�
�

'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�ORZHU�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�DV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG��
�
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5HYLHZ�RI�&<������2SHUDWLRQV�YV��&<������
�
3KLOLSSLQHV¶�*URVV�'RPHVWLF�3URGXFW��*'3��JUHZ�E\�����
��ORZHU�WKDQ�WKH������JURZWK�UHJLVWHUHG�LQ�
WKH�SULRU�\HDU���
�
5HYHQXH� JHQHUDWHG� IRU� WKH� \HDU� ZDV� 3KS����� ELR�� ORZHU� FRPSDUHG� WR� 3KS����� ELR� UHSRUWHG� LQ� WKH�
VDPH�SHULRG�ODVW�\HDU�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�ORZHU�YROXPHV�DIIHFWHG�E\�H[WHUQDO�IDFWRUV�SDUWLFXODUO\�WHPSHUHG�
SXEOLF�JRYHUQPHQW�VSHQGLQJ��7KH�VWURQJ�VWDUW�LQ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�ODWHU�QHJDWHG�E\�VORZ�WZR�FRQVHFXWLYH�
TXDUWHUV�IURP�WKH�WHSLG�SXEOLF�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�VSHQGLQJ�GHVSLWH�WKH�JURZWK�RI�SULYDWH�GHYHORSPHQW��
�
7KH� *URXS� DFKLHYHG� WRWDO� (%,7'$� RI� 3KS���� ELR�� ���� EHWWHU� WKDQ� WKH� VDPH� SHULRG� ODVW� \HDU� IURP�
VXVWDLQHG� IRFXV� RQ� RSHUDWLRQDO� HIILFLHQFLHV� DQG� FRVW� PDQDJHPHQW� DFURVV� DOO� GHVSLWH� WKH� GHPDQG�
FKDOOHQJHV��3URGXFWLRQ�FRVW�ZDV� IDYRUDEOH� IURP� ORZHU�HOHFWULFLW\�H[SHQVHV��EHWWHU� IXHO�PL[�DQG� IL[HG�
FRVW�PDQDJHPHQW���'LVWULEXWLRQ�FRVW�ZDV�DOVR�EHWWHU�IURP�ORJLVWLFV�HIILFLHQFLHV��LPSURYHG�GHOLYHU\�DQG�
SDFNDJLQJ�PL[HV��7KH�*URXS� LQFXUUHG�KLJKHU� ILQDQFLDO�H[SHQVHV�GXH� WR� LWV�VKRUW�WHUP� ORDQV�XVHG� WR�
ILQDQFH�VWUDWHJLF�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV�DQG� OHDVH� OLDELOLWLHV��1HW� LQFRPH�DIWHU� WD[�VWRRG�DW�3KS����ELR�
UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�RI�3KS�������
�

6RXUFH��3KLOLSSLQH�6WDWLVWLFV�$XWKRULW\�

�
�

.H\�3HUIRUPDQFH�,QGLFDWRUV��³.3,´��
�
7KH� FRPSDUDWLYH� ILQDQFLDO� .3,� IRU� WKH� \HDUV� HQGHG� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� DQG� ����� DUH� DV�

IROORZV��
�

)LQDQFLDO�.3,� 'HILQLWLRQ�
)RU�WKH�&DOHQGDU�<HDU�
HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����
����� �����

�� �� �� ��
3URILWDELOLW\� �� �� ��

� � � �

5HWXUQ�RQ�$VVHWV��52$�� 1HW�,QFRPH� ����� �����
$YH��7RWDO�$VVHWV�

� � � �

5HWXUQ�RQ�(TXLW\��52(�� 1HW�,QFRPH� ������ ������
$YH��7RWDO�(TXLW\�

� � � �

2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$�0DUJLQ� 2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$� ������ ������
1HW�6DOHV�

�� �� � �
/LTXLGLW\� �� � �

���*HDULQJ�5DWLR� 1HW�)LQDQFLDO�'HEW� ����� ������
7RWDO�(TXLW\�

�� �� � �

(%,7'$�1HW�,QWHUHVW�&RYHU��WLPHV��
2SHUDWLQJ�(%,7'$�

����� �����1HW�,QWHUHVW�
�

�� �� �� ��
�
� �
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3URILWDELOLW\�
�

:KLOH� ORZHU�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK� ODVW� \HDU�� WKH�SURILWDELOLW\� LQGLFDWRUV� UHPDLQ� WR�EH�DW�JRRG� OHYHOV�
UHPDLQLQJ�SRVLWLYH��
�
�
/LTXLGLW\�
�
� 7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�OLTXLGLW\�SRVLWLRQ�UHPDLQHG�VWURQJ�DV�HYLGHQFHG�E\�VLJQLILFDQW�FDVK�EDODQFH���
�

6LJQLILFDQW�'LVFORVXUHV��
�

3OHDVH�UHIHU� WR�([KLELW���RI� WKLV� UHSRUW� IRU� WKH�VLJQLILFDQW�GLVFORVXUHV�PDGH�E\� WKH�&RPSDQ\�
GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU���2WKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�PHQWLRQHG�LQ�([KLELW����WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRW�DZDUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ��
�

��� 8QXVXDO�LWHPV�WKDW�PDWHULDOO\�DIIHFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRQVROLGDWHG�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV��HTXLW\��
QHW�LQFRPH�RU�FDVK�IORZV�EHFDXVH�RI�WKHLU�QDWXUH��VL]H�RU�LQFLGHQWV��

�
��� &KDQJHV�LQ�HVWLPDWHV�RI�DPRXQWV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�SULRU�LQWHULP�SHULRGV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�ILQDQFLDO�

\HDU� RU� FKDQJHV� LQ� HVWLPDWHV� RI� DPRXQWV� LQ� SULRU� ILQDQFLDO� \HDUV� WKDW� KDYH� D� PDWHULDO�
HIIHFW�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG��

�
��� ,VVXDQFHV�DQG�UHSXUFKDVH�RI�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV��

�
��� 0DWHULDO� FKDQJHV� LQ� FRQWLQJHQW� OLDELOLWLHV� RU� FRQWLQJHQW� DVVHWV� VLQFH� WKH� ODVW� DQQXDO�

EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��
�

��� ([LVWHQFH�RI�PDWHULDO�FRQWLQJHQFLHV�DQG�RWKHU�HYHQWV�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV�WKDW�DUH�PDWHULDO�WR�
DQ�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG���

�
��� .QRZQ�WUHQGV��GHPDQGV��FRPPLWPHQWV��HYHQWV�DQG�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�RU�OLNHO\�

GHFUHDVH�LWV�OLTXLGLW\� LQ�D�PDWHULDO�ZD\���7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�DQWLFLSDWH�KDYLQJ�ZLWKLQ�
WKH�QH[W����PRQWKV�DQ\�FDVK�IORZ�RU�OLTXLGLW\�SUREOHPV�QRU�GRHV�LW�DQWLFLSDWH�DQ\�GHIDXOW�
RU� EUHDFK� RI� DQ\� RI� LWV� H[LVWLQJ� QRWHV�� ORDQV�� OHDVHV�� RWKHU� LQGHEWHGQHVV� RU� ILQDQFLDO�
DUUDQJHPHQWV� UHTXLULQJ� LW� WR�PDNH�SD\PHQWV�� �:LWK� WKH� LPSURYHPHQW� LQ� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
RSHUDWLQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH��LW�H[SHFWV�WR�PHHW�DOO�ILQDQFLDO�ORDQ�FRYHQDQWV�IRU�WKH�QH[W�LQWHULP�
SHULRG��

�
��� (YHQWV�WKDW�ZLOO�WULJJHU�GLUHFW�RU�FRQWLQJHQW�PDWHULDO�ILQDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��

�
��� 0DWHULDO�RII�EDODQFH�VKHHW� WUDQVDFWLRQV��DUUDQJHPHQWV��REOLJDWLRQV��GLUHFW�RU�FRQWLQJHQW���

DQG� RWKHU� UHODWLRQVKLSV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZLWK� XQFRQVROLGDWHG� HQWLWLHV� RU� RWKHU� SHUVRQV�
FUHDWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��

�
��� 0DWHULDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�IRU�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV��

�
����.QRZQ�WUHQGV��HYHQWV�RU�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�KDYH�KDG�RU� WKDW�DUH�UHDVRQDEO\�H[SHFWHG�WR�

KDYH� D� PDWHULDO� IDYRUDEOH� LPSDFW� RQ� QHW� VDOHV�� UHYHQXHV�� QHW� LQFRPH� IURP� FRQWLQXLQJ�
RSHUDWLRQV��

�
����6LJQLILFDQW�HOHPHQWV�RI� LQFRPH�RU� ORVV�WKDW�GLG�QRW�DULVH�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRQWLQXLQJ�

RSHUDWLRQV��
�

����0DWHULDO�HYHQWV�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�WKDW�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�
WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

� �
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1RWHV�WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
�
$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�DQG�3ULQFLSOHV�
�

7KH� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� ZKLFK� FRPSULVH� WKH� FRQVROLGDWHG�
VWDWHPHQWV�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU����������DQG������DQG�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQWV�
RI�SURILW�RU� ORVV�DQG�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�DQG�
FRQVROLGDWHG� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� FDVK� IORZV� IRU� HDFK� RI� WKH� WKUHH� \HDUV� LQ� WKH� SHULRG� HQGHG��
'HFHPEHU����������KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�3KLOLSSLQH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�
DSSOLHG�RQ�D�FRQVLVWHQW�EDVLV���7KH�GHWDLOHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH���±�6XPPDU\�RI�
6LJQLILFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�LQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
�
6HDVRQDOLW\�$VSHFWV�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV�
�

/LNH� DQ\� RWKHU� FRPSDQ\� LQ� WKH� FRQVWUXFWLRQ� LQGXVWU\�� WKH� RSHUDWLRQV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV�
DIIHFWHG�E\�VHDVRQDOLW\���1HW�VDOHV�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�KLJKHU�LQ�GU\�PRQWKV�IURP�)HEUXDU\�WR�0D\�DQG�ORZHU�
GXULQJ�WKH�UDLQ\�PRQWKV�RI�-XQH�WR�1RYHPEHU��/RZ�VDOHV�DUH�DOVR�H[SHULHQFHG�GXULQJ�'HFHPEHU�GXH�
WR� KROLGD\V� XQWLO� HDUO\� -DQXDU\�� 8QSUHGLFWDEOH� ZHDWKHU� FRXOG� DOVR� VLJQLILFDQWO\� DIIHFW� VDOHV� DQG�
SURILWDELOLW\�FRPSDUHG�WR�SUHYLRXV�SHULRGV�FRXSOHG�ZLWK�DQ\�XQIRUHVHHQ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�OLNH�GLVUXSWLRQV�
LQ�SURGXFWLRQ��
�
)LQDQFLDO�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�2EMHFWLYHV�DQG�3ROLFLHV�
�
*HQHUDO�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�$SSURDFK�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV� H[SRVHG� WR� YDULRXV� ILQDQFLDO� ULVNV��ZKLFK� LQFOXGH� WKH� HIIHFW� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ�
GHEW� VWUXFWXUH�� HTXLW\� PDUNHW� SULFHV�� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� H[FKDQJH� UDWHV� DQG� LQWHUHVW� UDWHV�� � 7KH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�RYHUDOO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SURJUDP�IRFXVHV�RQ�WKH�XQSUHGLFWDELOLW\�RI�ILQDQFLDO�PDUNHWV�DQG�
VHHNV� WR�PLQLPL]H�SRWHQWLDO�DQG�DGYHUVH�HIIHFWV�RQ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�
&RPSDQ\� GRHV� QRW� HQWHU� LQWR� RWKHU� GHULYDWLYH� RU� ILQDQFLDO� WUDQVDFWLRQV� ZKLFK� DUH� XQUHODWHG� WR� LWV�
RSHUDWLQJ�EXVLQHVV�DV�D�ULVN�DYHUVH�DSSURDFK�LV�SXUVXHG��

)LQDQFLDO� ULVN� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV� JRYHUQHG� E\� SROLFLHV� DSSURYHG� E\�
PDQDJHPHQW���,W�SURYLGHV�SULQFLSOHV�IRU�RYHUDOO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��DV�ZHOO�DV�SROLFLHV�FRYHULQJ�VSHFLILF�
ULVN� DUHDV� VXFK� DV� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN�� IRUHLJQ� H[FKDQJH� ULVN�� FRXQWHUSDUW\� ULVN�� XVH� RI� GHULYDWLYH�
ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�LQYHVWLQJ�DVVHWV�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV��

7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� SULQFLSDO� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�� RWKHU� WKDQ� GHULYDWLYHV�� FRQVLVW� RI� FDVK� DQG�
FDVK� HTXLYDOHQWV� DQG� ORDQV� SD\DEOH�� � 7KH�PDLQ� SXUSRVH� RI� WKHVH� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV� LV� WR� UDLVH�
IXQGV� IRU� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� RSHUDWLRQV�� � 7KH� &RPSDQ\� DOVR� KDV� YDULRXV� RWKHU� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG�
OLDELOLWLHV�VXFK�DV�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��DGYDQFHV�WR�HPSOR\HHV��JXDUDQWHH�GHSRVLWV��UHVWULFWHG�
FDVK�DQG�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�ZKLFK�DULVH�GLUHFWO\�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��

7KH� PDLQ� ULVNV� DULVLQJ� IURP� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV� DUH� PDUNHW� ULVNV� �ZKLFK�
LQFOXGH� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� ULVN� DQG� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN��� FUHGLW� ULVN� DQG� OLTXLGLW\� ULVN�� � 7KH� %RDUG� RI�
'LUHFWRUV� �%2'�� UHYLHZV�DQG�DSSURYHV� WKH� SROLFLHV� IRU�PDQDJLQJ� HDFK�RI� WKHVH� ULVNV� DQG� WKH\� DUH�
VXPPDUL]HG�EHORZ���7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�VHW�RXW�
LQ�1RWH���WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

0DUNHW�5LVNV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV�H[SRVHG�WR�PDUNHW�ULVNV��VXFK�DV�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�� LQWHUHVW�UDWH�DQG�HTXLW\�
SULFH� ULVNV�� � 7R�PDQDJH� YRODWLOLW\� UHODWLQJ� WR� WKHVH� H[SRVXUHV�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� HQWHUV� LQWR� GHULYDWLYH�
ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV��ZKHQ� QHFHVVDU\�� � 7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� REMHFWLYH� LV� WR� UHGXFH��ZKHUH� DSSURSULDWH��
IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�HDUQLQJV�DQG�FDVK�IORZV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�FKDQJHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\��LQWHUHVW�UDWH�DQG�
HTXLW\�SULFH��
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)RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�5LVN�
�

)RUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\� ULVN� LV� WKH� ULVN� WKDW� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH� RU� IXWXUH� FDVK� IORZV� RI� D� ILQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�IOXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\� KDV� IRUHLJQ� H[FKDQJH� H[SRVXUHV�� DULVLQJ� SULPDULO\� IURP� SXUFKDVHV� RI� JRRGV�

DQG�VHUYLFHV�DQG�GHEW�VHUYLFLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�FXUUHQFLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�3HVR�WKDW�OHDGV�
WR� FXUUHQF\� WUDQVODWLRQ� HIIHFWV�� � 2I� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� UHYHQXHV�� DSSUR[LPDWHO\� ������ DQG� QLO� ZHUH�
GHQRPLQDWHG�LQ�FXUUHQFLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�3HVR�LQ������DQG�������UHVSHFWLYHO\���

�
'XH�WR�WKH�ORFDO�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�FHPHQW�EXVLQHVV��WUDQVDFWLRQ�ULVN�LV�OLPLWHG���+RZHYHU��LQFRPH�

PD\� SULPDULO\� EH� LQ� ORFDO� FXUUHQF\� ZKHUHDV� GHEW� VHUYLFLQJ� DQG� VLJQLILFDQW� DPRXQW� RI� FDSLWDO�
H[SHQGLWXUHV�PD\�EH�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV���$V�D�FRQVHTXHQFH�WKHUHRI��WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�HQWHU�LQWR�
GHULYDWLYH�FRQWUDFWV�ZKHQHYHU�QHFHVVDU\��ZKLFK�PD\�EH�GHVLJQDWHG�HLWKHU�DV�FDVK�IORZ�KHGJHV�RU�IDLU�
YDOXH�KHGJHV��DV�DSSURSULDWH��
�
� $V�RI�'HFHPEHU�����������WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�PLQLPDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�H[SRVHG�WR�IRUHLJQ�
FXUUHQF\�ULVNV�� �
�
,QWHUHVW�5DWH�5LVN�
�

,QWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN� LV� WKH� ULVN� WKDW� IXWXUH� FDVK� IORZV� IURP� D� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQW� �FDVK� IORZ�
LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN�� RU� LWV� IDLU� YDOXH� �IDLU� YDOXH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� ULVN��ZLOO� IOXFWXDWH� EHFDXVH� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ�
PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�ILQDQFLQJ�FRVWV�DQG�PDUNHW�YDOXH�PRYHPHQWV�RI�LWV�
GHEW�SRUWIROLR� UHODWHG� WR�FKDQJHV� LQ�PDUNHW� LQWHUHVW� UDWHV�� �7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� LQWHUHVW� UDWH�H[SRVXUH� LV�
PDLQO\�DGGUHVVHG�WKURXJK�WKH�VWHHULQJ�RI�WKH�IL[HG�IORDWLQJ�UDWLR�RI�QHW�GHEW���7R�PDQDJH�WKLV�PL[�� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�PD\�HQWHU�LQWR�GHULYDWLYH�WUDQVDFWLRQV��DV�DSSURSULDWH���$V�DW�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�������
WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�PLQLPDO�H[SRVXUH�WR�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN��
�
&UHGLW�5LVN�
�

&UHGLW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�FRXQWHUSDUWLHV�PD\�QRW�EH�DEOH�WR�VHWWOH�WKHLU�REOLJDWLRQV�DV�DJUHHG���
7R�PDQDJH�WKLV�ULVN��WKH�&RPSDQ\�SHULRGLFDOO\�DVVHVVHV�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHOLDELOLW\�RI�FXVWRPHUV��

7KH� &RPSDQ\� FRQVWDQWO\� PRQLWRUV� LWV� FUHGLW� ULVN� H[SRVXUHV�� &RXQWHUSDUWLHV� WR� ILQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQWV�FRQVLVW�RI�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�PDMRU�ILQDQFLDO� LQVWLWXWLRQV���7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�H[SHFW�
DQ\�FRXQWHUSDUWLHV�WR�IDLO� LQ�PHHWLQJ�WKHLU�REOLJDWLRQV��JLYHQ�WKHLU�KLJK�FUHGLW�UDWLQJV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�
&RPSDQ\� KDV� QR� VLJQLILFDQW� FRQFHQWUDWLRQ� RI� FUHGLW� ULVN� ZLWK� DQ\� VLQJOH� FRXQWHUSDUW\� RU� JURXS� RI�
FRXQWHUSDUWLHV��
�

7KH�PD[LPXP�DQG�PLQLPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�UHSUHVHQWHG�E\�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�
HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW��
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\� WUDGHV�RQO\�ZLWK� UHFRJQL]HG�� FUHGLW�ZRUWK\� WKLUG�SDUWLHV�� � ,W� LV� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
SROLF\�WKDW�DOO�WKLUG�SDUW\�FXVWRPHUV�ZKR�ZLVK�WR�WUDGH�RQ�FUHGLW�WHUPV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�FUHGLW�YHULILFDWLRQ�
SURFHGXUHV�� � ,Q� DGGLWLRQ�� UHFHLYDEOH� EDODQFHV� DUH� PRQLWRUHG� RQ� DQ� RQJRLQJ� EDVLV� WR� UHGXFH� WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�H[SRVXUH�WR�EDG�GHEWV�WR�PLQLPDO��
�

:LWK� UHVSHFW� WR� FUHGLW� ULVN� DULVLQJ� IURP� WKH� RWKHU� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� ZKLFK�
FRQVLVW�RI�GXH�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��DGYDQFHV�WR�HPSOR\HHV��DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH��$)6��ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��
DQG� JXDUDQWHH� DQG� UHIXQGDEOH� GHSRVLWV�� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� H[SRVXUHV� DULVH� IURP� GHIDXOW� RI� WKH�
FRXQWHUSDUW\��ZLWK�D�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�HTXDO�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKHVH�LQVWUXPHQWV��

�
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7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVNV�DULVLQJ�IURP�RXWVWDQGLQJ�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�GLVFORVHG�
LQ� 1RWH� ��� ±� )LQDQFLDO� 5LVN� 0DQDJHPHQW� 2EMHFWLYHV� DQG� 3ROLFLHV� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV��
/LTXLGLW\�5LVN�
�

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�HQFRXQWHU�GLIILFXOW\�LQ�UDLVLQJ�IXQGV�WR�PHHW�LWV�
FRQWUDFWXDO� REOLJDWLRQV� DQG� FRPPLWPHQWV�� � 7KH� VHDVRQDOLW\� RI� UHYHQXH� JHQHUDWLRQ� H[SRVHV� WKH�
&RPSDQ\� WR�VKRUWDJH�RI� IXQGV�GXULQJ� VODFN�VHDVRQ�DQG�PD\� UHVXOW� LQ�SD\PHQW�GHIDXOWV�RI� ILQDQFLDO�
FRPPLWPHQWV�� � 7KH�&RPSDQ\�PRQLWRUV� WKLV� ULVN� XVLQJ� D� UHFXUULQJ� OLTXLGLW\� SODQQLQJ� WRRO�� � 7KLV� WRRO�
FRQVLGHUV� WKH�PDWXULW\� RI� ERWK� LWV� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG� SURMHFWHG� FDVK� IORZV� IURP� RSHUDWLRQV�� � 7KH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�EDODQFH�EHWZHHQ�FRQWLQXLW\�RI�IXQGLQJ�DQG�IOH[LELOLW\�WKURXJK�WKH�
XVH�RI�EDQN�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV��ILQDQFH�OHDVHV�DQG�SXUFKDVH�FRQWUDFWV���,W�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�LWV�RZQ�FDVK�
VXUSOXVHV�DQG�WKH�UDLVLQJ�RI�ORDQV�WR�FRYHU�FDVK�GHILFLWV��VXEMHFW�WR�SROLFLHV�DQG�JXLGHOLQHV�DSSURYHG�
E\�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�LQ�FHUWDLQ�FDVHV�DW�WKH�%2'�OHYHO��

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�PDLQWDLQV�VXIILFLHQW� UHVHUYHV�RI� FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��ZKLFK�DUH�VKRUW�

WHUP�LQ�QDWXUH�DQG�XQXVHG�FUHGLW�OLQHV�WR�PHHW�LWV�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DW�DOO�WLPHV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�
VWURQJ�FUHGLW�ZRUWKLQHVV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�DOORZV� LW� WR�PDNH�HIILFLHQW�XVH�RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�PDUNHWV� IRU�
ILQDQFLQJ�SXUSRVHV��$V�DW�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�XQXWLOL]HG�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV�
RI�3K3�����ELOOLRQ�DQG�3K3����ELOOLRQ��UHVSHFWLYHO\��

�
7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� DV� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� DQG� ����� DUH�

GLVFORVHG� LQ� 1RWH� ��� ±� )LQDQFLDO� 5LVN� 0DQDJHPHQW� 2EMHFWLYHV� DQG� 3ROLFLHV� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
�
&DSLWDO�0DQDJHPHQW�3ROLF\�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�FRQVLGHUV�HTXLW\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�DV�LWV�
FDSLWDO�� � 7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� REMHFWLYHV� ZKHQ�PDQDJLQJ� FDSLWDO� DUH� WR� VHFXUH� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� RQJRLQJ�
ILQDQFLDO� QHHGV� WR� FRQWLQXH�DV� D� JRLQJ� FRQFHUQ� DV�ZHOO� DV� WR� FDWHU� WR� LWV� JURZWK� WDUJHWV� WR� SURYLGH�
UHWXUQV�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�EHQHILWV�IRU�RWKHU�VWDNHKROGHUV�DQG�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�FRVW�HIILFLHQW�DQG�ULVN�
RSWLPL]HG�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH��

�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� PDQDJHV� WKH� FDSLWDO� VWUXFWXUH� DQG� PDNHV� DGMXVWPHQWV� WR� LW� LQ� OLJKW� RI� WKH�

FKDQJHV� LQ�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�� LWV�EXVLQHVV�DFWLYLWLHV�� LQYHVWPHQW�DQG�H[SDQVLRQ�SURJUDP�DQG� WKH�
ULVN�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�DVVHWV���7R�PDLQWDLQ�RU�DGMXVW�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH��WKH�&RPSDQ\�
PD\�DGMXVW� WKH�DPRXQW�RI�GLYLGHQGV�SDLG� WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�� UHWXUQ�FDSLWDO� WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�� LVVXH�QHZ�
VKDUHV�RU�VHOO�DVVHWV�WR�UHGXFH�GHEW��

7KH� &RPSDQ\� PRQLWRUV� FDSLWDO�� DPRQJ� RWKHUV�� RQ� WKH� EDVLV� RI� JHDULQJ� UDWLR�� � *HDULQJ� LV�
FDOFXODWHG� DV� QHW� ILQDQFLDO� GHEW� GLYLGHG� E\� WRWDO� HTXLW\� LQ� WKH� SDUHQW� FRPSDQ\� EDODQFH� VKHHWV� DV�
VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�WDEOH�EHORZ��
�

� ����� �����
/RDQV�SD\DEOH���7KLUG�3DUW\� 3 �������������� 3 ����������
/RDQV�SD\DEOH���*URXS� ���������� ����������
&XVWRPHUV¶�GHSRVLWV� �������� ��������
)LQDQFLDO�GHEW� ���������� ����������
/HVV�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� ���������� ����������
1HW�ILQDQFLDO�GHEW��DVVHW�� ���������� ����������
7RWDO�HTXLW\� ����������� �����������
*HDULQJ�UDWLR� ����� ������
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�WDUJHW�LV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�JHDULQJ�LQ�WKH�UDQJH�RI�QR�PRUH�WKDQ�����SHUFHQW���
�
7RWDO�HTXLW\�JUHZ�E\������LQ������DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�LQFUHDVH�LQ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�

WKH�\HDU��
�
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0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�LQ�%DODQFH�6KHHW�$FFRXQWV�
�
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�ZHUH�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�QHW�RI�KLJKHU�FDVK�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�
RSHUDWLRQV��KLJKHU�VSHQGLQJ�LQ�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV�DQG�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKLUG�SDUW\�ORDQV��
�
7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��

�
'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�LPSURYHG�FROOHFWLRQV�GHVSLWH�ORZHU�VDOHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ��
�

,QYHQWRULHV��
�
6LJQLILFDQW� GHFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\� GXH� WR� LPSURYHG� LQYHQWRU\�PDQDJHPHQW� UHVXOWLQJ� WR� ORZHU�

IXHO�DQG�JRRGV�LQ�SURFHVV�LQYHQWRULHV��
�

�
2WKHU�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�

�
,QFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�KLJKHU�LQSXW�9$7�UHFRJQL]HG�IRU�WKH�\HDU���

�
,QYHVWPHQWV�
�
� ,QFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�WKH�GLYLGHQGV�UHFHLYHG�QHW�RI�VKDUH�IURP�XQUHDOL]HG�LQFRPH�IURP�
+0'&�JURXS���
�
3URSHUW\��3ODQW�DQG�(TXLSPHQW���QHW�
�
� 'XH�WR�DGGLWLRQDO�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV��QHW�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�UHFRJQL]HG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��
�
5LJKW�RI�8VH�$VVHWV�
�
� 5HFRJQL]HG�GXH�WR�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�QHZ�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLF\�IRU�OHDVHV��3)56����
�
5HWLUHPHQW�EHQHILW�DVVHWV�±�QHW�

�
7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�UHFRJQL]HG�ORVV�IURP�UH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�UHWLUHPHQW�IXQG�DVVHW���

�
2WKHU�1RQ�&XUUHQW�$VVHWV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH� ZDV� SULPDULO\� GXH� WR� UHFODVVLILFDWLRQ� IURP� ORQJ�WHUP� WR� VKRUW�WHUP� ILQDQFLDO�
UHFHLYDEOH�IURP�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\���
��
,QWDQJLEOHV�DVVHWV�±�QHW�
�
� 1HW�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�UHFRJQL]HG�IRU�WKH�\HDU���
�
/RDQV�3D\DEOH�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�IXOO�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKLUG�SDUW\�ORDQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��
�
7UDGH�DQG�2WKHU�3D\DEOHV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�ZDV�PDLQO\�GULYHQ�E\� ORZHU�WUDGH�SD\DEOHV��DGYDQFHV�
IURP�FXVWRPHUV�DQG�DPRXQWV�RZHG�WR�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��
,QFRPH�7D[�3D\DEOH�
�
� ,QFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�KLJKHU�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU��
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�
3URYLVLRQV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�SURYLVLRQV�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�VWUDQGHG�FRVW��
�
'HIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWLHV�
�

0RYHPHQW�ZDV�GULYHQ�E\�WKH�WD[�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�UHPHDVXUHPHQW�RI�UHWLUHPHQW�IXQG��
�
5H�PHDVXUHPHQW�JDLQ�RQ�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILWV�±�QHW�
�
� 7KH� LQFUHDVH� ZDV� GXH� WR� UHFRJQL]HG� ORVV� IURP� DGGLWLRQDO� UHWLUHPHQW� IXQG� DVVHW�� XSGDWHG�
DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�DQG�DGMXVWPHQWV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�FRQVLGHUHG�LQ�WKH�UHWLUHPHQW�OLDELOLW\�FDOFXODWLRQ��
�
5HWDLQHG�(DUQLQJV�
�
� ,QFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�KLJKHU�QHW�LQFRPH�UHDOL]HG�IRU�WKH�\HDU���
�
1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�ORZHU�SURILW�RI�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�ODVW�\HDU��
�
�

0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�LQ�,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW�$FFRXQWV�
�
5HYHQXHV�
�
� /RZHU� UHYHQXH�HDUQHG� IRU� WKH�\HDU�ZDV�PDLQO\�DWWULEXWDEOH� WR� ORZHU�YROXPH�GXH� WR�GHOD\HG�
JRYHUQPHQW�SURMHFWV�DQG�WHPSRUDU\�FORVXUH�RI�0DELQL�3ODQW��
�
&RVW�RI�6DOHV�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\� GXH� WR� IDYRUDEOH� GLVWULEXWLRQ� FRVWV� IURP� ORZHU� RXWERXQG� FRVWV� GXH� WR�
OHVVHU� GHOLYHUHG� YROXPHV� FRXSOHG�ZLWK� EHWWHU� IL[HG� FRVWV� IURP� LPSURYHG�PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKLUG� SDUW\�
VHUYLFHV��/RZHU�SURGXFWLRQ�FRVW��RQ�WKH�RWKHU�KDQG��ZDV�GULYHQ�E\�IDYRUDEOH�HOHFWULFLW\�DQG�IXHO�PL[��
�
*HQHUDO�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�H[SHQVHV�
�
� 0RYHPHQW� ZDV� PDLQO\� GXH� WR� ORZHU� VRIWZDUH� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� FRVWV�� WKLUG� SDUW\� �� RXWVLGH�
VHUYLFHV�FRVWV�DQG�SHUVRQQHO�H[SHQVHV��
�
6HOOLQJ�([SHQVHV�

�
7KH�GHFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�ORZHU�WKLUG�SDUW\�FRVWV��DGYHUWLVLQJ�H[SHQVHV�DQG�SHUVRQQHO�

H[SHQVHV��
�
,QWHUHVW�DQG�)LQDQFLQJ�&KDUJHV�
�

0DLQO\�GXH�WR�KLJKHU�ILQDQFH�FKDUJHV�UHFRJQL]HG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�IURP�H[LVWLQJ�VKRUW�WHUP�ORDQ�
SD\DEOHV�DQG�OHDVH�LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVH�IURP�WKH�UHFRJQL]HG�OHDVH�OLDELOLWLHV��
�
�
,QWHUHVW�DQG�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�LQFRPH�
�

6LJQLILFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�LQWHUHVW�DQG�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO� LQFRPH�IURP�FDVK�LQ�EDQNV�DQG�UHWLUHPHQW�
IXQG�DVVHWV��
�
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)RUHLJQ�([FKDQJH�*DLQV��/RVVHV��±�QHW�
�
� 'HFUHDVH�ZDV�GXH�WR�GHFUHDVH�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�GHQRPLQDWHG�DVVHWV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�UHYDOXHG�
DW�\HDU�HQG��
�
3URYLVLRQ�IRU�,QFRPH�7D[�
�
� 7KH�LQFUHDVH�ZDV�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�KLJKHU�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU��
�
�
,WHP����)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
� �
7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VXSSOHPHQWDU\�VFKHGXOHV�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�,QGH[�
WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DQG�6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOHV�DUH� ILOHG�DV�SDUW�RI� WKLV�DQQXDO� UHSRUW�XQGHU�
,WHP������DQG������
�
,QIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�,QGHSHQGHQW�$FFRXQWDQW�
�
([WHUQDO�$XGLW�)HHV�
�

7KH�IHHV�ELOOHG�IRU�SURIHVVLRQDO�VHUYLFHV�UHQGHUHG�E\�1DYDUUR�$PSOHU�	�&R���'HORLWWH��LQ������
DQG� �����ZHUH� LQFOXVLYH� RI� RXW�RI�SRFNHW� H[SHQVHV� WR� FRYHU� WKH� VHUYLFHV� UHQGHUHG� E\� WKH�H[WHUQDO�
DXGLWRU� IRU� DXGLW� RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\� DQG� RWKHU� VHUYLFHV� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ� ZLWK�
VWDWXWRU\�DQG�UHJXODWRU\�ILOLQJV�IRU�\HDUV������DQG�������
�
�
7D[�)HHV�	�$OO�2WKHU�)HHV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�GLG�QRW�HQJDJH�'HORLWWH�IRU�WD[�DQG�RWKHU�VHUYLFHV�LQ������DQG�������
�
7KH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH¶V�$SSURYDO�3ROLFLHV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV�IRU�WKH�$ERYH�6HUYLFHV�
�
� 8SRQ� UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ� RI� WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�DSSURYDO� RI� WKH�%RDUG� RI�'LUHFWRUV�� WKH�
DSSRLQWPHQW� RI� WKH� H[WHUQDO� DXGLWRU� LV� SURSRVHG� IRU� FRQILUPDWLRQ� E\� WKH� VKDUHKROGHUV� DW� WKH� DQQXDO�
VWRFNKROGHUV¶�PHHWLQJ��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DQG�HQGRUVHG�
E\�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�EHIRUH�LWV�UHOHDVH��
�
�
,WHP� ��� &KDQJHV� LQ� DQG� 'LVDJUHHPHQWV� ZLWK� $FFRXQWDQWV� RQ� $FFRXQWLQJ� DQG� )LQDQFLDO�
'LVFORVXUH�
�

7KHUH�ZDV�QR�HYHQW� LQ� WKH�SDVW� ILYH�\HDUV�ZKHUH�'HORLWWH�RU� LWV�SUHGHFHVVRU��6*9��DQG� WKH�
&RPSDQ\� KDG� DQ\� GLVDJUHHPHQW� ZLWK� UHJDUG� WR� DQ\� PDWWHU� UHODWLQJ� WR� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� RU�
SUDFWLFHV��ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GLVFORVXUH�RU�DXGLWLQJ�VFRSH�RU�SURFHGXUH��
�

7KH� DXGLW� ILQGLQJV� DUH� SUHVHQWHG� WR� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� $XGLW� &RPPLWWHH�� ZKLFK� UHYLHZV� DQG�
PDNHV�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�WR�WKH�%RDUG�RQ�DFWLRQV�WR�EH�WDNHQ�WKHUHRQ��7KH�%RDUG�SDVVHV�XSRQ�DQG�
DSSURYHV�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH¶V�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV��
�
�

� �
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3$57�,,,���&21752/�$1'�&203(16$7,21�,1)250$7,21�
��
,WHP����'LUHFWRUV�DQG�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�RI�WKH�,VVXHU�
�
��� 7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV� �WKH�%RDUG�� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� WKH�RYHUDOO�PDQDJHPHQW�
DQG� GLUHFWLRQ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� 7KH� %RDUG� PHHWV� UHJXODUO\� HYHU\� TXDUWHU�� RU� DV� RIWHQ� DV� PD\� EH�
QHFHVVDU\�� WR� UHYLHZ� DQG� PRQLWRU� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� SRVLWLRQ� DQG� RSHUDWLRQV�� (DFK� %RDUG�
PHPEHU�VHUYHV�IRU�D�WHUP�RI�RQH�\HDU�RU�XQWLO�KLV�VXFFHVVRU� LV�GXO\�HOHFWHG�DQG�TXDOLILHG��1RQH�RI�
WKH�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RZQ�PRUH�WKDQ����RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV�RI�+3,��

�
$V�RI�'HFHPEHU�����������WKH�IROORZLQJ�DUH�WKH�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG��
�

7DEOH���±�7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
�

2IILFH� 1DPH� 1DWLRQDOLW\�
&KDLUPDQ� 7RPDV�,��$OFDQWDUD� )LOLSLQR�
9LFH�&KDLUPDQ� 0DUWLQ�.ULHJQHU� $XVWULDQ�
'LUHFWRU� -RKQ�6WXOO� $PHULFDQ�
'LUHFWRU� 7DQ�7KHQ�+ZHH� 6LQJDSRUHDQ�
,QGHSHQGHQW�'LUHFWRU� /HDQGUR�-DYLHU�� )LOLSLQR�
,QGHSHQGHQW�'LUHFWRU� 7KRPDV�$TXLQR� )LOLSLQR�
,QGHSHQGHQW�'LUHFWRU� 9$&$17� �

�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
 

�
6HW� IRUWK� EHORZ� DUH� WKH� EXVLQHVV� H[SHULHQFH� RI� WKH� %RDUG� GXULQJ� WKH� ODVW� ILYH�
\HDUV��
�
7RPDV� ,�� $OFDQWDUD�� ���� KROGV� D� %DFKHORU� RI� 6FLHQFH� GHJUHH� LQ� (FRQRPLFV� IURP� $WHQHR�
GH� 0DQLOD� 8QLYHUVLW\�� D� 0DVWHU¶V� LQ� %XVLQHVV� $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ� GHJUHH� IURP� &ROXPELD�
8QLYHUVLW\��86$�DQG�DWWHQGHG�WKH�$GYDQFH�0DQDJHPHQW�3URJUDP�RI�WKH�+DUYDUG�%XVLQHVV�
6FKRRO��+H�LV�SUHVHQWO\�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�3UHVLGHQW�RI�$OVRQV�&RQVROLGDWHG�5HVRXUFHV��,QF���
DQG�RI�VHYHUDO�SRZHU�DQG�SURSHUW\�GHYHORSPHQW�FRPSDQLHV� LQ� WKH�$OFDQWDUD�*URXS�� �+H� LV�
&KDLUPDQ� RI� WKH� (DJOH� 5LGJH� *ROI� 	� &RXQWU\� &OXE�� ,QF�� DQG� 3KLOZHE� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� 0U��
$OFDQWDUD� ZDV� 8QGHUVHFUHWDU\� IRU� WKH� ,QGXVWU\� 	� ,QYHVWPHQW� *URXS� RI� WKH� 'HSDUWPHQW� RI�
7UDGH� DQG� ,QGXVWU\� DQG� WKH� 9LFH� &KDLUPDQ� DQG� 0DQDJLQJ� +HDG� RI� WKH� %RDUG� RI�
,QYHVWPHQWV� IURP� -XO\� ����� WR� 0DUFK������� +H� ZDV�DOVR�6SHFLDO�(QYR\�RI� WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�
3UHVLGHQW�WR�$3(&�LQ�������+H�ZDV�HOHFWHG�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ�-XO\����������
�
0DUWLQ� .ULHJQHU�� ���� KROGV� DQ� 0%$� IURP� WKH� 8QLYHUVLW\� RI� (FRQRPLFV� LQ� 9LHQQD� DQG�
D� 'RFWRUDWH� GHJUHH� IURP� 9LHQQD� 8QLYHUVLW\� /DZ� &HQWUH�� +H� MRLQHG� WKH� /DIDUJH� *URXS� LQ�
������ ,Q� ������ 0U�� .ULHJQHU� ZDV� DSSRLQWHG� DV� &KLHI� )LQDQFLDO� 2IILFHU� RI� /DIDUJH�
3HUOPRRVHU�$*��$XVWULD���+H�VHUYHG�DV�&RXQWU\�&(2�RI�/DIDUJH�$XVWULD�IURP������WR������
DQG�/DIDUJH�,QGLD�IURP������WR������DQG������WR�������0U��.ULHJQHU�ZDV�/DIDUJH�5HJLRQDO�
3UHVLGHQW�� $VLD� DQG� 6RXWK� :HVW� $VLD�� DQG� ZDV� D� PHPEHU� RI� WKH� /DIDUJH� ([HFXWLYH�
&RPPLWWHH� IURP� ����� WR� ������ 0U�� .ULHJQHU� VHUYHG� DV� /DIDUJH+ROFLP� $UHD� 0DQDJHU� IRU�
&HQWUDO� (XURSH� IURP� ����� WR��������+H� LV�SUHVHQWO\�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�*URXS¶V�+HDG� RI� ,QGLD�
DQG�6RXWK�(DVW�$VLD�DQG�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�*URXS�([HFXWLYH�&RPPLWWHH���+H�
ZDV�HOHFWHG�DV�GLUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ�$XJXVW�����������
�
�
�
�
�
�
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-RKQ� :LOOLDP� 6WXOO�� ���� LV� DQ� DFFRPSOLVKHG� OHDGHU� ZLWK� GHHS� NQRZOHGJH� RI� WKH� EXLOGLQJ�
PDWHULDOV�LQGXVWU\��3ULRU�WR�EHLQJ�DVVLJQHG�WR�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��LQ�$SULO�������KH�ZDV�WKH�
&(2�IRU�/DIDUJH+ROFLP¶V�&HPHQW�2SHUDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�IURP�������%HIRUH�WKDW�KH�
VHUYHG� LQ� YDULRXV� SRVLWLRQV� DFURVV� WKH�*URXS� LQFOXGLQJ� UHVSRQVLELOLW\� IRU� WKH�86� DV�ZHOO� DV�
PDUNHWV�LQ�VXE�6DKDUDQ�$IULFD�DQG�/DWLQ�$PHULFD���0U��6WXOO�UHFHLYHG�KLV�%DFKHORU�RI�6FLHQFH�
LQ� FKHPLFDO� HQJLQHHULQJ� IURP� WKH� 8QLYHUVLW\� RI� $NURQ� LQ� 2KLR� DQG� HDUQHG� DQ� $GYDQFH�
0DQDJHPHQW�'HJUHH�IURP�+DUYDUG�8QLYHUVLW\�LQ�0DVVDFKXVHWWV��
�
7DQ� 7KHQ� +ZHH�� ����� KROGV� DQ�0%$� DQG�%%$� LQ�PDUNHWLQJ� IURP�:LFKLWD� 6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\��
.DQVDV� ��86$��6KH�KDV� RYHU� ��� \HDUV� RI� KXPDQ� UHVRXUFHV�PDQDJHPHQW� H[SHULHQFH� LQ� DQ�
LQWHUQDWLRQDO� EXVLQHVV� HQYLURQPHQW� DFURVV�$VLD�3DFLILF�� 6KH� LV� FXUUHQWO\� WKH� 9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�
+5��*OREDO�+HDG�/HDUQLQJ�	�'HYHORSPHQW�RI�/DIDUJHKROFLP�/WG��DQG�FRQFXUUHQWO\�D�GLUHFWRU�
RI�$PEXMD�&HPHQWV�/WG��,QGLD��3ULRU�WR�MRLQLQJ�/DIDUJHKROFLP�LQ�������0V��7DQ�ZDV�WKH�9LFH�
3UHVLGHQW�+5�RI�6LND�$VLD�3DFLILF�IURP�$SULO������WR�0DUFK�������
�
/HDQGUR� '�� -DYLHU������ KDV� ��� \HDUV� RI� H[SHULHQFH� LQ� WKH� FHPHQW� LQGXVWU\��)URP� �����
WR�������0U�� -DYLHU�ZRUNHG� IRU� ,OLJDQ�&HPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ� �,&&��DV�$VVLVWDQW�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�
IRU�)LQDQFH���+H�ZDV�DVVLJQHG�WR��+ROGHUEDQN��6ZLW]HUODQG�WR�UHSUHVHQW�,&&�LQ�WKH�7HFKQLFDO�
&HQWHU� IRU� WKH� GHYHORSPHQW� RI� WHFKQLFDO� DQG� ILQDQFLDO� IHDVLELOLW\� VWXGLHV� LQYROYLQJ� SODQW�
UHKDELOLWDWLRQ� DQG� FDSDFLW\� H[SDQVLRQ� SODQV�� DQG� DVVLVW� �+2),
V� 5HJLRQDO� 0DQDJHU� LQ� WKH�
PDQDJHPHQW�RI�LWV�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�$VLD�� 

 
+H�DVVXPHG�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�([HFXWLYH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�	�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�LQ�������DQG�VHUYHG�
LQ� WKH� VDPH� SRVLWLRQ� LQ� $OVRQV�&HPHQW� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� DIWHU� WKH� DFTXLVLWLRQ� RI� )ORUR�� &HPHQW�
&RUSRUDWLRQ��+H� DOVR� VHUYHG� LQ� VLPLODU� VHQLRU� H[HFXWLYH� SRVLWLRQV� LQ� WKH� YDULRXV� FRPSDQLHV�
HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�UHODWHG�FRPSDQLHV�LQYROYHG�LQ�GRPHVWLF�VKLSSLQJ�DQG�SURGXFW�GLVWULEXWLRQ��EXON�
WHUPLQDOV�� DQG� DJJUHJDWHV� 0U� -DYLHU� OHIW� $OVRQV� &HPHQW� &RUSRUDWLRQ� DQG� LWV� UHODWHG�
FRPSDQLHV�LQ������ 

 
6LQFH�������0U��-DYLHU�LV�D�0DQDJHPHQW�&RQVXOWDQW�RI�5DSLG�)RUPLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ�  
�
7KRPDV�$TXLQR������KROGV�D�'RFWRUDWH�GHJUHH�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�IURP�,(6(�%XVLQHVV�6FKRRO��
8QLYHUVLW\�RI�1DYDUUH��6SDLQ���0DVWHU�RI�6FLHQFH�LQ�,QGXVWULDO�(FRQRPLFV�IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�
RI� $VLD� DQG� WKH� 3DFLILF�� DQG� %DFKHORU� RI� $UWV� LQ� (FRQRPLFV� IURP� WKH� 8QLYHUVLW\� RI� WKH�
3KLOLSSLQHV��,Q�������KH�VHUYHG�DW�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�7UDGH�DQG�,QGXVWU\�DV�DFWLQJ�6HFUHWDU\�
DQG� DV� 6HQLRU� XQGHUVHFUHWDU\� RYHUVHHLQJ� WKH� FRXQWU\¶V� LQWHUQDWLRQDO� WUDGH� SURPRWLRQV� ZLWK�
WUDGLQJ�SDUWQHUV�DQG�SROLF\�QHJRWLDWLRQV�DW� WKH�:RUOG�7UDGH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DQG�LQ� WKH�$6($1�
(FRQRPLF� &RPPXQLW\�� � 'U�� $TXLQR� LV� WKH� UHFLSLHQW� RI� WKH� 3UHVLGHQWLDO� 6HUYLFH� $ZDUG� IRU�
H[WUDRUGLQDU\� FRQWULEXWLRQ� RI� QDWLRQDO� LPSDFW� RQ� SXEOLF� LQWHUHVW�� VHFXULW\� DQG� SDWULPRQ\��
*DZDG�0DELQL�$ZDUG�DQG�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV�-DSDQ�6RFLHW\�0HGDO�RI�+RQRU��
�
'U�� $TXLQR� LV� FXUUHQWO\� WKH� &KDLUPDQ� RI� 12:� &25325$7,21�� 0HPEHU� RI� WKH� %RDUG� RI�
'LUHFWRUV�DQG�3UHVLGHQW�RI�12:�7HOHFRP�&RPSDQ\�� ,QF��IRUPHUO\�1H[W�0RELOH��,QF���DQG�DQ�
,QGHSHQGHQW�'LUHFWRU�RI�$&5�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�$�%URZQ�&RPSDQ\��,QF��� �
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7KH�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�
�
7KH�RIILFHUV�DUH� OLNHZLVH�HOHFWHG�DQQXDOO\�E\�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�VHUYH� IRU�RQH� ���� \HDU�DQG�
XQWLO� WKHLU� UHVSHFWLYH� VXFFHVVRUV� KDYH� EHHQ� HOHFWHG�� 1RQH� RI� WKH� RIILFHUV� RI� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�RZQ�PRUH�WKDQ����RI�WKH�WRWDO�RXWVWDQGLQJ�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV�DV�RI����'HFHPEHU������DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��
�

7DEOH����±�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�
�

2IILFH� 1DPH� 1DWLRQDOLW\�

3UHVLGHQW�&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2IILFHU� -RKQ�:LOOLDP�6WXOO� $PHULFDQ�
693���&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�7UHDVXUHU� -HVXVD�1DWLYLGDG�/��5RMDV� )LOLSLQR�
693�±�+HDG�RI�&HPHQW�,QGXVWULDO�
3HUIRUPDQFH� (XQJ�5DH�.LP� .RUHDQ�

693�±�+HDG�RI�6DOHV� :LOOLDP�&��6XPDOLQRJ� )LOLSLQR�
693���+HDG�RI�0DUNHWLQJ� 5DPDNULVKQD�0DJDQWL� ,QGLDQ�
693���+HDG�RI�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DQG�+XPDQ�

5HVRXUFHV�� %HUQDGHWWH�/��7DQVLQJFR� )LOLSLQR�

693�±�+HDG�RI�/RJLVWLFV� (GZLQ�9LOODV� )LOLSLQR�

93�±�+HDG�RI�3URFXUHPHQW� ,NH�&��7DQ� )LOLSLQR�

93��+HDG�RI�&RUSRUDWH�&RPPXQLFDWLRQV�� $QQH�&ODLUH�5DPLUH]� )LOLSLQR�
93��+HDG�RI�+HDOWK�6DIHW\�	�6HFXULW\� 5LFKDUG�&��&UX]� )LOLSLQR�
93��+HDG�RI�6WUDWHJ\� =RH�9HUQD�0��6LEDOD� )LOLSLQR�
93��*HQHUDO�&RXQVHO�&RUSRUDWH�6HFUHWDU\��

&RPSOLDQFH�2IILFHU� %HOLQGD�(��'XJDQ� )LOLSLQR�

93��+HDG�RI�*HRF\FOH�DQG�+HDG�RI�&$3(;� )UHGHULF�9DOODW� )UHQFK�
93��3ODQW�0DQDJHU�±�%XODFDQ� %REE\�*DU]D� )LOLSLQR�

93�3ODQW�0DQDJHU���'DYDR�� 6DPXHO�2��0DQORVD��-U�� )LOLSLQR�

93�3ODQW�0DQDJHU�±�/D�8QLRQ� (UDxR�6DQWRV� )LOLSLQR�
93�3ODQW�0DQDJHU��/XJDLW� $UQROG�3HSLQR� $XVWUDOLDQ�

93��5HJLRQDO�+HDG�RI�0LQGDQDR�DQG�
2IIVKRUH�5HJLRQ� (UQHVWR�3DXOR�7DQ� )LOLSLQR�

93�±�5HJLRQDO�+HDG�IRU�1RUWKHUQ�DQG�
&HQWUDO�OX]RQ� $OEHUW�/HRYHUDV� )LOLSLQR�

�
�
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7KH� EXVLQHVV� H[SHULHQFH� RI� 0U�� -RKQ� :LOOLDP� 6WXOO� GXULQJ� WKH� ODVW� ILYH� \HDUV� LV� SURYLGHG�
DERYH���6HW�IRUWK�EHORZ�DUH�WKH�EXVLQHVV�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RWKHU�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV�
GXULQJ�WKH�ODVW�ILYH�\HDUV��
�
-HVXVD� 1DWLYLGDG� /�� 5RMDV�� ���� LV� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� &KLHI� )LQDQFLDO� 2IILFHU�� � 6KH� KROGV�
D� GHJUHH� LQ� $FFRXQWLQJ� IURP� ;DYLHU� 8QLYHUVLW\� DQG� REWDLQHG� KHU� 0DVWHU¶V� GHJUHH� LQ�
'HYHORSPHQW� )LQDQFH� DQG� %DQNLQJ� IURP� $PHULFDQ� 8QLYHUVLW\� LQ� :DVKLQJWRQ�� '&� DV� D�
)XOOEULJKW�+XPSKUH\� )HOORZ�� � 0V�� 5RMDV� LV� D� &HUWLILHG� 3XEOLF� $FFRXQWDQW� DQG� D� &HUWLILHG�
0DQDJHPHQW�$FFRXQWDQW���6KH�KHOG�YDULRXV�SRVLWLRQV�LQ�)LQDQFH�LQ�'HO�0RQWH�3DFLILF�/WG�IURP�
����� WR� ������ � 0V�� 5RMDV� WKHQ� VHUYHG� DV� &KLHI� )LQDQFLDO� 2IILFHU� RI� 6	:� )LQH� )RRGV�
,QWHUQDWLRQDO� /WG�� IURP� ����� WR� ������ � 3ULRU� WR� MRLQLQJ� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LQ� 6HSWHPEHU� ������
VKH�DOVR�VHUYHG�DV�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�RI�'HO�0RQWH�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��

�
:LOOLDP�&��6XPDOLQRJ������LV�WKH�6HQLRU�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�6DOHV��0U��6XPDOLQRJ�KROGV�
D�%DFKHORU�RI�6FLHQFH�GHJUHH�LQ� &RPSXWHU� (QJLQHHULQJ� IURP� WKH� 8QLYHUVLW\� RI� &HEX� ZKHUH�
KH� JUDGXDWHG� ZLWK� OHDGHUVKLS�KRQRUV�LQ��������3ULRU� WR�KLV�FXUUHQW�UROH��0U��6XPDOLQRJ�ZDV�
WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� 5HJLRQDO� 2SHUDWLQJ� +HDG� IRU� YDULRXV� DUHDV� LQ� 0LQGDQDR� DQG� 9LVD\DV�� +H�
MRLQHG�$OVRQV�&HPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQ������ZKHUH�KH�RFFXSLHG�YDULRXV�NH\�SRVLWLRQV�LQ�VDOHV��
�
(XQJ�5DH�.LP����, LV�WKH�6HQLRU�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�&HPHQW�,QGXVWULDO�3HUIRUPDQFH��0U��
.LP� KROGV� D� GHJUHH� LQ� (OHFWULFDO� (QJLQHHULQJ� DQG� 0DVWHUDO� LQ� (OHFWULFDO� (QJLQHHULQJ� IURP�
+RVHR�8QLYHUVLW\�LQ�.RUHD��+H�KDV����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�FHPHQW�SODQW�RSHUDWLRQ�KDYLQJ�
MRLQHG� WKH� FHPHQW� LQGXVWU\� VLQFH� ������ +H� KDV� KHOG� YDULRXV� OHDGHUVKLS� UROHV� ZLWKLQ� WKH�
/DIDUJH+ROFLP�*URXS�LQ�6RXWK�.RUHD��0DOD\VLD��5HJLRQDO��,3&�$VLD��DQG�%DQJODGHVK��3ULRU�WR�
MRLQLQJ� +ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� 0U�� .LP� ZDV� WKH� ,QGXVWULDO� 'LUHFWRU� RI� /DIDUJH+ROFLP�
%DQJODGHVK�/WG��6LQFH�2FWREHU���������
��
5DPDNULVKQD�0DJDQWL������ LV� WKH�6HQLRU�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�IRU�0DUNHWLQJ�	� ,QQRYDWLRQ��
+H�KROGV�D�GHJUHH�LQ�0HFKDQLFDO�(QJLQHHULQJ��0%$�LQ�0DUNHWLQJ�IURP�WKH�,QGLDQ�,QVWLWXWH�RI�
0DQDJHPHQW� DQG� D� GHJUHH� LQ� 6WUDWHJLF� 0DUNHWLQJ� 0DQDJHPHQW� IURP� +DUYDUG� %XVLQHVV�
6FKRRO��0U��0DJDQWL�EULQJV�PRUH�WKDQ����\HDUV�RI�FRPELQHG�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�JOREDO�PDUNHWLQJ��
EUDQG�GHYHORSPHQW�� GLJLWDO� WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ��DQG�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�� �3ULRU� WR� MRLQLQJ�+ROFLP�
3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��KH�KHOG�YDULRXV�OHDGHUVKLS�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�SRVLWLRQV�LQ�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�,QGLD��
0DOD\VLD��)UDQFH�DQG�WKH�PRVW�UHFHQWO\�LQ�6LQJDSRUH�DV�+HDG�RI�6DOHV�DQG�0DUNHWLQJ�IRU�$VLD�
3DFLILF�5HJLRQ���0U��0DJDQWL�ZRUNHG�IRU�3KLOLSV�19�D�JOREDO�FRQVXPHU�OLIHVW\OH�DQG�KHDOWKFDUH�
ILUP�EHIRUH�MRLQLQJ�WKH�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�*URXS�LQ�������
�
%HUQDGHWWH�/��7DQVLQJFR������LV�WKH�6HQLRU�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DQG�+XPDQ�
5HVRXUFHV��6KH�KDV����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�KXPDQ�UHVRXUFHV�GLYLVLRQ�ZLWK�
NH\�UROHV�KHDGLQJ�WDOHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�GHYHORSPHQW�� ,Q�������VKH�KHOSHG�LQ�
WUDQVIRUPLQJ� +ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV¶� EXVLQHVV� VXSSRUW� IXQFWLRQV� LQWR� WKH� +ROFLP� (DVW� $VLD�
%XVLQHVV� 6HUYLFH� &HQWUH�� /DIDUJH+ROFLP� $VLD� 3DFLILF
V� VKDUHG� VHUYLFHV� ZKHUH� VKH� ZDV�
DSSRLQWHG�KXPDQ�UHVRXUFH�KHDG���0V��7DQVLQJFR�KROGV�D�3V\FKRORJ\�GHJUHH�IURP�WKH�'H�/D�
6DOOH� 8QLYHUVLW\� DQG� KDV� FRPSOHWHG� OHDGHUVKLS� DQG� PDQDJHPHQW� SURJUDPV� IURP� WKH� ,0'�
%XVLQHVV�6FKRRO�RI�6ZLW]HUODQG��3HQQ�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\� LQ� WKH�86$�DQG� WKH�$VLDQ� ,QVWLWXWH�RI�
0DQDJHPHQW��
�
(GZLQ�9LOODV������LV�WKH�6HQLRU�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�/RJLVWLFV��+H�MRLQHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�
6HSWHPEHU������DV�6WUDWHJLF�6RXUFLQJ�6SHFLDOLVW��+H�VHUYHG�DV�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�3URFXUHPHQW�
0DQDJHU� IURP� 2FWREHU� ����� WR� $XJXVW� ����� DQG� ZDV� ODWHUDOO\� WUDQVIHUUHG� DV� $UHD� 6DOHV�
0DQDJHU� IRU�6RXWK�/X]RQ� LQ�$XJXVW�������3ULRU� WR�KLV�DSSRLQWPHQW�DV�+HDG�RI� ,QVWLWXWLRQDO�
6DOHV�LQ�0D\�������KH�VHUYHG�DV�WKH�+HDG�RI�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�6DOHV�LQ�0D\������DQG�WKHUHDIWHU�
DV�0DQDJHU��1DWLRQDO�6DOHV��%XON�� ,QVWLWXWLRQDO�6DOHV�� �+H� LV�D�FHUWLILHG�,QIRUPDWLRQ�6\VWHPV�
$XGLWRU�DQG�D�FHUWLILHG�3URIHVVLRQDO� IRU�6XSSO\�0DQDJHPHQW��+H�KDV�D�GHJUHH� LQ�&RPSXWHU�
6FLHQFH�IURP�WKH�3KLOLSSLQH�&KULVWLDQ�8QLYHUVLW\��
�
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,NH�&��7DQ������LV�WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�3URFXUHPHQW�MRLQHG�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��+3,��LQ�
����� DV� 6ROLG� DQG� /LTXLG� )XHOV� 0DQDJHU�� +H� KHOG� YDULRXV� SRVLWLRQV� LQ� WKH� 3URFXUHPHQW� ��
6XSSO\�&KDLQ�RI�+3,�SULRU�WR�KLV�DSSRLQWPHQW�DV�+HDG�RI�3URFXUHPHQW�LQ�-DQXDU\�������+LV�
FORVH� WR����\HDUV�RI�SURFXUHPHQW�H[SHULHQFH�VWDUWHG�GXULQJ�KLV�HPSOR\PHQW�ZLWK�3KLOLSSLQH�
$LUOLQHV�ZKLFK�LQFOXGHG�D�VWLQW�DV�WKH�DLUOLQHV
�3URFXUHPHQW�0DQDJHU��$PHULFDV�EDVHG�LQ�6DQ�
)UDQFLVFR��&$��8�6�$��,NH�KROGV�D�GHJUHH�RI�%��6��LQ�$HURQDXWLFDO�(QJLQHHULQJ��SODFHG��WK�LQ�
WKH�%RDUG�DQG�LV�DQ�0%$�FDQGLGDWH�DW�WKH�$WHQHR�*UDGXDWH�6FKRRO��
�
$QQ� &ODLUH� �&DUD�� 0�� 5DPLUH]�� ���� LV� WKH� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW�� +HDG� RI� &RUSRUDWH�
&RPPXQLFDWLRQV��6KH�ZDV�WKH�+HDG�IRU�0DUNHWLQJ�ZKHQ�VKH�MRLQHG�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��LQ�
-DQXDU\��������6KH�ILUVW�MRLQHG�D�ORFDO�IRRG�FRPSDQ\��6$),�8)&��QRZ�NQRZQ�DV�1XWUL$VLD��LQ�
������IRFXVLQJ�RQ�EUDQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�FDWVXS�EUDQGV���3ULRU� WR�MRLQLQJ�+ROFLP��VKH�ZRUNHG�
IRU� (QHUJL]HU� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� ZKHUH� VKH�PDQDJHG� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� 0DUNHWLQJ� 'HSDUWPHQW����
0V��5DPLUH]� KDV� D� GHJUHH� RI� %DFKHORU� RI� 6FLHQFH� LQ�(FRQRPLFV� IURP� WKH�8QLYHUVLW\� RI� WKH�
3KLOLSSLQHV��'LOLPDQ��
�
5LFKDUG�&��&UX]������LV�WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��+HDG�RI�+HDOWK�	�6DIHW\��0U��5LFKDUG�&UX]�MRLQHG�
+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��LQ�0D\������DV�/DERUDWRU\�(QJLQHHU�IRU�$)5��,Q�0DUFK������KH�ZDV�
DSSRLQWHG� DV� 6DIHW\�2IILFHU� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� GHOLYHULQJ� DQG�PDLQWDLQLQJ� VDIHW\� V\VWHPV� DQG�
LQLWLDWLYHV� DFURVV� DOO� SODQWV�� � )URP� ����� XQWLO� KLV� QRPLQDWLRQ� IRU� DSSRLQWPHQW� DV� +HDG� RI�
&RUSRUDWH� 2FFXSDWLRQDO� +HDOWK� DQG� 6DIHW\�� KH� VHUYHG� DV� 6DIHW\� 0DQDJHU� IRU� +3,¶V�
&RPPHUFLDO�DQG�2WKHU�6LWHV���
�
=RH� 9HUQD� 0�� 6LEDOD�� ���� LV� WKH� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW�� +HDG� RI� 6WUDWHJ\�� � 0V�� 6LEDOD� KROGV� D�
PDVWHU¶V� GHJUHH� LQ� %XVLQHVV� $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ� IURP� WKH� *UDGXDWH� 6FKRRO� RI� %XVLQHVV���
'H� OD� 6DOOH� 8QLYHUVLW\� DQG� D� GHJUHH� LQ� (FRQRPLFV� IURP� WKH�8QLYHUVLW\� RI� WKH� 3KLOLSSLQHV��
,Q�-DQXDU\�������VKH�MRLQHG�/DIDUJH�DV�D�)LQDQFH�0DQDJHU�RI�%DWRQJ�$QJRQR�$JJUHJDWHV�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�ODWHU�RQ�EHFDPH�WKH�FRPPHUFLDO�FRQWUROOHU�RI�WKH�/DIDUJH¶V�FHPHQW�SURGXFW�
OLQH�±�/DIDUJH�&HPHQW�6HUYLFH�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��3ULRU�WR�EHLQJ�DSSRLQWHG�DV�+HDG�RI�6WUDWHJ\�
RI� +ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� VKH� VHUYHG� /DIDUJH� 5HSXEOLF� $JJUHJDWHV�� ,QF�� DV� 3URMHFW�
0DQDJHU� IURP� -XO\� ����� WR� 'HFHPEHU� ����� DQG� DV� 6WUDWHJ\� DQG� %XVLQHVV� 'HYHORSPHQW�
0DQDJHU�IURP�-DQXDU\�WR�'HFHPEHU���������
�
%HOLQGD�(��'XJDQ������LV� WKH�*HQHUDO�&RXQVHO��&RUSRUDWH�6HFUHWDU\�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH�2IILFHU�
RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�� �6KH�REWDLQHG�KHU� -XULV�'RFWRU�GHJUHH� IURP�$WHQHR�/DZ�6FKRRO�DQG�KDV�
RYHU����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�ZLWK�YDULRXV�PXOWLQDWLRQDO�ILUPV�DQG�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�FRPSDQ\���3ULRU�
WR�MRLQLQJ�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��,QF��VKH�ZDV�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�IRU�/HJDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6HUYLFHV�RI�
$ERLWL]� (TXLW\� 9HQWXUHV�� ,QF�� �$(9�� IURP� 2FWREHU� ����� WR� 2FWREHU� ������ 6KH� VHUYHG� DV�
$VVLVWDQW�9LFH�SUHVLGHQW� IRU� /HJDO� DQG�&RPSOLDQFH� RI�61�$ERLWL]� 3RZHU� IURP�0D\� ����� WR�
2FWREHU�������

�
)UHGHULF�9DOODW������KDV�YDVW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�EXVLQHVV�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�ZDVWH�PDQDJHPHQW��
+H�MRLQHG�/DIDUJH�&KRQJTLQJ�±�3HRSOH¶V�5HSXEOLF�RI�&KLQD�LQ�-XQH������DQG�VHUYHG�DV�WKH�
&KLQH�-DSDQ�.RUHD� ,QGXVWULDO� (FRORJ\� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW� XQWLO� $SULO� ������ � )URP�$SULO� ����� WR�
'HFHPEHU� ������ KH� VHUYHG� DV� ,QGXVWU\� (FRORJ\� 7HFKQLFDO� 'LUHFWRU� RI� /DIDUJH� 6KXL� 2Q��
3HRSOH¶V� 5HSXEOLF� RI� &KLQD� DQG� DV� :HVW� $VLD� DQG� 6RXWK� (DVW� $VLD� ,QGXVWULDO� (FRORJ\�
7HFKQLFDO�'LUHFWRU�RI�/DIDUJH�$VLD��0DOD\VLD� IURP�-DQXDU\������ WR�2FWREHU������ZKHUH�KH�
VXSSRUWHG� WKH�EXVLQHVV�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�VHYHQ�FRXQWULHV��3ULRU� WR� MRLQLQJ�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV��
,QF��� KH� VHUYHG� DV�*HRF\FOH�$3$&�+HDG� RI� ,QYHVWPHQW� DQG�2SHUDWLRQ� RI� /DIDUJH+ROFLP� ±�
6LQJDSRUH��

�
%REE\�*DU]D������ LV� WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��3ODQW�0DQDJHU�RI�/XJDLW�� �3ULRU� WR�EHLQJ�DSSRLQWHG�
DV� 3ODQW� 0DQDJHU� LQ� ������ KH� SUHYLRXVO\� VHUYHG� DV� SURGXFWLRQ�PDQDJHU� RI� WKH� +ROFLP� /D�
8QLRQ�SODQW� IURP������DQG�$UHD�&RDFK� IRU�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�([FHOOHQFH�RI� WKH�%XODFDQ�SODQW���
+H� MRLQHG� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LQ� ����� DV� 4XDUU\� 0DQDJHU� RI� /D� 8QLRQ� SODQW�� 0U�� *DU]D� LV� D�
UHJLVWHUHG�0LQLQJ�(QJLQHHU�DQG�D�JUDGXDWH�RI�WKH�0DSXD�,QVWLWXWH�RI�7HFKQRORJ\��0DQLOD��
�
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(UDxR� 6DQWRV�� ���� LV� WKH� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW�� 3ODQW� 0DQDJHU� RI� /D� 8QLRQ� 3ODQW�� � 0U�� 6DQWRV�
VHUYHG�LQ�YDULRXV�OHDGHUVKLS�FDSDFLWLHV�DFURVV�VHYHUDO�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�IDFLOLWLHV���+H�MRLQHG�
WKH�&RPSDQ\� LQ�1RYHPEHU������DV�6XSHULQWHQGHQW�(OHFWULFDO�� � ,Q�6HSWHPEHU�������KH�ZDV�
SURPRWHG�DV�D�PDQDJHU�DQG�VHUYHG�DV�VXFK�XQWLO�KLV�SURPRWLRQ�DV�3ODQW�0DQDJHU�RI�WKH�/D�
8QLRQ�3ODQW���

�
6DPXHO�2��0DQORVD��-U������LV�WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��3ODQW�0DQDJHU�RI�'DYDR��0U��0DQORVD�LV�D�
OLFHQVHG� &KHPLFDO� (QJLQHHU� DQG� SODFHG� �WK� LQ� WKH� 1RYHPEHU� ����� &KHPLFDO� (QJLQHHULQJ�
%RDUG�([DPLQDWLRQV��+H� MRLQHG� WKH�&RPSDQ\� LQ�-XQH������DV�6HQLRU�3URFHVV�(QJLQHHU�� ,Q�
-DQXDU\� ������ KH� ZDV� HQJDJHG� DV� 3URFHVV� DQG� $XWRPDWLRQ� ([SHUW� LQ� +ROFLP� 6LQJDSRUH�
ZKHUH� KH� VXSSRUWHG� �� /DIDUJH+ROFLP� SODQWV� LQ� WKH� 6RXWKHDVW� $VLDQ� UHJLRQ� WR� UHVROYH�
RSHUDWLRQDO�DQG�HIILFLHQF\�LVVXHV�LQ�UDZ�PHDQ�DQG�FHPHQW�JULQGLQJ�DQG�WR� LPSOHPHQW�FULWLFDO�
HTXLSPHQW�PRGLILFDWLRQV� WR� GULYH� SURFHVV� LPSURYHPHQWV�� � 3ULRU� WR� EHLQJ� DSSRLQWHG� DV�9LFH�
3UHVLGHQW�� 0U�� 0DQORVD� KHOG� WKH� SRVLWLRQ� RI� ,QGXVWULDO� 7UDQVIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� 2SHUDWLRQDO�
([FHOOHQFH�0DQDJHU�VLQFH�1RYHPEHU��������
�
$UQROG� 3HSLQR�� ���� LV� WKH� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW�� 3ODQW� 0DQDJHU� RI� /XJDLW� 3ODQW�� � 3ULRU� WR� EHLQJ�
DSSRLQWHG�DV�VXFK��0U��3HSLQR�ZDV�WKH�3URGXFWLRQ�0DQDJHU�RI�/XJDLW�3ODQW��+H�LV�ZHOO�YHUVHG�
LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SODQW�RSHUDWLRQV�KDYLQJ�VHUYHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DV�HDUO\�DV�������+H�KHOG�WKH�
SRVLWLRQV�RI�&DGHW�(QJLQHHU��3URGXFWLRQ�(QJLQHHU�,,��6KLIW�2SHUDWLRQV�0DQDJHU��PDQXIDFWXULQJ�
([FHOOHQFH�&RDFK�DQG�3URFHVV�0DQDJHU��$V�3URGXFWLRQ�0DQDJHU�RI�WKH�/XJDLW�3ODQW��KH�KDV�
DFKLHYHG� ��� PRQWKV� NLOQ� UXQ� FDPSDLJQ� ZLWKRXW� VFKHGXOH� SODQW� VKXWGRZQ� WKDW� VDYHG� WKH�
&RPSDQ\� UHIUDFWRU\�FRVW�DPRXQWLQJ� WR�3KS����0LOOLRQ�DQG�SURGXFHG�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�FOLQNHU�RI�
�������WRQV�LQ������DQG��������LQ�������
��
(UQHVWR� 3DXOR� 7DQ�� ���� LV� WKH� 9LFH� 3UHVLGHQW�� 5HJLRQDO� +HDG� RI� 0LQGDQDR� DQG� 2IIVKRUH�
5HJLRQ���+H�MRLQHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�'HFHPEHU������DV�+HDG�5HJLRQDO�&RPPHUFLDO�6DOHV�RI�
1RUWK� /X]RQ�� � +H� VHUYHG� DV� WKH� =RQH� 0DQDJHU� RI� -7� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� ,QF�� IURP�
)HEUXDU\������WR�1RYHPEHU������ZKHUH�KH�ZDV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�RYHUDOO�/X]RQ�JHQHUDO�WUDGH�
SHUIRUPDQFH�� DQG�DV�6DOHV� DQG�0DUNHWLQJ�+HDG�DQG�$FWLQJ�0DUNHW�0DQDJHU� IURP�-DQXDU\�
�����WR�'HFHPEHU�������+H�KROGV�D�%DFKHORU�RI�6FLHQFH�LQ�%XVLQHVV�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�IURP�WKH�
8QLYHUVLW\�RI�WKH�3KLOLSSLQHV���
�
$OEHUW�/HRYHUDV������LV�WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��5HJLRQDO�+HDG�IRXU�1RUWKHUQ�DQG�&HQWUDO�/X]RQ���
+H�KDV����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�6DOHV�7HDP��'LVWULEXWRUV�DQG�NH\�DFFRXQWV�VDOHV���
3ULRU�WR�MRLQLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��KH�ZDV�WKH�)LHOG�2SHUDWLRQV�0DQDJHU�DQG�5HJLRQDO�0DQDJHU�RI�
-DSDQ�7REDFFR�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�IURP������WR�$XJXVW������DQG�6DOHV�'LYLVLRQ�+HDG�RI�WKH�1RQ�
IRRG�'LYLVLRQ�RI�:LOOV�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6DOHV�&RUSRUDWLRQ��

�
��� )DPLO\�5HODWLRQVKLSV����

�
� 1RQH�RI� WKH�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RU�DQ\�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\� LV�
UHODWHG�E\�DIILQLW\�RU�FRQVDQJXLQLW\��
�
��� ,QYROYHPHQW�LQ�&HUWDLQ�/HJDO�3URFHHGLQJV�

�
7R�WKH�NQRZOHGJH�DQG�RU� LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�SUHVHQW�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�

'LUHFWRUV�RU�WKH�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�DUH�QRW��SUHVHQWO\��RU�GXULQJ�WKH�ODVW�ILYH�����\HDUV��LQYROYHG�RU�KDYH�
EHHQ� LQYROYHG� LQ� FULPLQDO�� EDQNUXSWF\� RU� LQVROYHQF\� LQYHVWLJDWLRQV� RU� SURFHHGLQJV� H[FHSW� IRU� WKH�
SHQGLQJ� OHJDO�SURFHHGLQJV� LQYROYLQJ�FHUWDLQ�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG� LWV�
VXEVLGLDULHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�([KLELW���KHUHRI��

�
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,WHP�����([HFXWLYH�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�
�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�ORFDO�DQG�H[SDWULDWH�H[HFXWLYHV��([SDWULDWHV�DUH�KROGLQJ�SRVLWLRQV�WKDW�DUH�
WHFKQLFDO�DQG�DGYLVRU\�LQ�QDWXUH��7KH�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�RI�ORFDO�H[HFXWLYHV�LV�EHQFKPDUNHG�DJDLQVW�WKH�
HVWDEOLVKHG�)RFXV�*URXS��)*
����$W������SHUIRUPDQFH�DWWDLQPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�DQG�
EXVLQHVV�JRDOV��WKH�H[HFXWLYH�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�LV�WDUJHWHG�WR�EH�DW�PHGLDQ��3����RI�WKH�)*�DQG�DW�WKH�
�UG�TXDUWLOH�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�DWWDLQPHQW�RI������DQG�DERYH���([SDWULDWHV�DUH�SDLG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�$VVLJQPHQW�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�JXLGHOLQHV�RI�/DIDUJH+ROFLP����
�

7KH� FRPSHQVDWLRQ� UHFHLYHG� E\� WKH� ([HFXWLYH� 2IILFHUV� UHSUHVHQWV� VDODULHV�� ERQXVHV� DQG�
EHQHILWV��

�

�7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�)RFXV�*URXS��)*��LV�FRPSRVHG�RI�ORFDO�DQG�PXOWL�QDWLRQDO�FRPSDQLHV�ZLWK�DQQXDO�JURVV�UHYHQXHV�RI�3+3�����
���ELOOLRQ�DQG�����WR�������HPSOR\HHV���
�

7DEOH����±�([HFXWLYH�&RPSHQVDWLRQ��LQ�3K3��
�

1DPH�DQG�3ULQFLSDO�3RVLWLRQ� <HDU� 6DODU\� %RQXV� %HQHILWV�

�
�
7KH�&(2�DQG�ILYH�����PRVW�KLJKO\�
FRPSHQVDWHG�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�
�
��� -RKQ�:LOOLDP�6WXOO�±�3UHVLGHQW�DQG�&KLHI�

([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�
��� 1LHOV�/HGLQHN�±�693�±�+HDG��&HPHQW��

,QGXVWULDO�3HUIRUPDQFH��&,3��
��� 5DPDNULVKQD�0DJDQWL�±�693�±�+HDG��

0DUNHWLQJ�	�,QQRYDWLRQV�
��� -HVXVD�1DWLYLGDG�/��5RMDV�±�693�±�

+HDG��&KLHI�)LQDQFH�2IILFHU�
��� :LOOLDP�&��6XPDOLQRJ�±�693�±�+HDG��

6DOHV�
��� )UHGHULF�9DOODW�±�93�±�+HDG��*HRF\FOH�

��������
� ����������� ����������� �����������
��������� ����������� ����������� �����������

�������� ����������� ����������� �����������

�������� ����������� ����������
�

�����������
�

$OO�RWKHU�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�DQG�
'LUHFWRUV�DV�D�JURXS�XQQDPHG�

����
� ����������� ����������� �����������
������� ����������� ����������� �����������
������� ����������� ����������� �����������
������ ����������� ����������� ������������

�
%HQHILWV� RI� WKH� &(2� DQG� ILYH� ���� PRVW� KLJKO\� FRPSHQVDWHG�([HFXWLYH� 2IILFHUV� LQFOXGH� UHWLUHPHQW� VHUYLFH� FRVW� ZLWK� RQH� ����
H[SDWULDWH�UHSDWULDWHG�WR�KRPH�FRXQWU\��
$OO�RWKHU�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�DV�D�JURXS�XQQDPHG�LQ������LQFOXGH�DOO�LQFXPEHQWV�LQ�WKH�/HDGHUVKLS�7HDP�ZLWK�WKH�
UDQN�RI�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��7KLV�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�WKH�SUR�UDWH�VDODULHV��ERQXVHV�DQG�EHQHILWV�RI�RWKHU�UHSDWULDWHG�H[SDWULDWHV��
����
HVWLPDWHG�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�RI�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV�IRU�WKH�HQVXLQJ�\HDU�LV�DVVXPHG�WR�DSSUR[LPDWH�WKH������OHYHO���%RQXVHV�
JLYHQ�DUH�GULYHQ�E\�DFWXDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\��KHQFH��HVWLPDWH�PD\�YDU\�IURP�DFWXDO����
����

�EHQHILWV�RI�$OO�2WKHU�([HFXWLYHV�2IILFHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�LQFOXGH�WZR�����H[SDWULDWHV�UHSDWULDWHG�WR�KRPH�FRXQWU\�
����


�EHQHILWV�RI�$OO�2WKHU�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�LQFOXGH�RQH�����H[SDWULDWH�UHSDWULDWHG�WR�KRPH�FRXQWU\��
����



�EHQHILWV�RI�$OO�2WKHU�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�LQFOXGH�IRXU�����H[SDWULDWH�UHSDWULDWHG�WR�KRPH�FRXQWULHV��
�
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2WKHU�WKDQ�GLUHFWRUV¶�SHU�GLHP��WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�DQ\�RWKHU�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�
IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV���
�

D�� 6WDQGDUG�DUUDQJHPHQW�DQG�DQ\�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�DUUDQJHPHQWV��
E�� (PSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW��EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�QDPHG�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV���
F�� &RPSHQVDWRU\�SODQ�RU�DUUDQJHPHQW��
G�� 2XWVWDQGLQJ�ZDUUDQWV�RU�RSWLRQV��DQG�
H�� $GMXVWPHQWV�RU�DPHQGPHQWV�RQ�WKH�SULFH�RI�VWRFN�ZDUUDQWV�RU�RSWLRQV��

�
:DUUDQWV�DQG�2SWLRQV�2XWVWDQGLQJ�
�
7KHUH�DUH�QR�ZDUUDQWV�RU�RSWLRQV�JUDQWHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�DQ\�RI�LWV�'LUHFWRUV�RU�([HFXWLYH�
2IILFHUV����
�
�
,WHP�����6HFXULW\�2ZQHUVKLS�RI�&HUWDLQ�%HQHILFLDO�2ZQHUV�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�
��

7KH� WDEOH� EHORZ� VKRZV� SHUVRQV� RU� JURXSV� NQRZQ� WR� +3,� DV� RI� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� WR� EH�
GLUHFWO\� RU� LQGLUHFWO\� WKH� UHFRUG� RU� EHQHILFLDO� RZQHU� RI� PRUH� WKDQ� ���RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V�YRWLQJ�
VHFXULWLHV��

�
7DEOH����±�%HQHILFLDO�2ZQHUVKLS�RI�9RWLQJ�6HFXULWLHV�

�
7LWOH�RI�
&ODVV�

1DPH�	�$GGUHVV�RI�5HFRUG�
2ZQHU�	�5HODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�

,VVXHU�

1DPH�RI�%HQHILFLDO�2ZQHU�$QG�
5HODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�5HFRUG�

2ZQHU�
1R�RI�6KDUHV�

+HOG�
��RI�

2ZQHUVKLS�
&RPPRQ� 8QLRQ�&HPHQW�+ROGLQJV�

&RUSRUDWLRQ�
�WK�)ORRU��7ZR�:RUOG�
6TXDUH��0F.LQOH\�+LOO�
)RUW�%RQLIDFLR��7DJXLJ�&LW\�
�)LOLSLQR��
6WRFNKROGHU�

8QLRQ�&HPHQW�+ROGLQJV�&RUS��
�VDPH�DV�UHFRUG�RZQHU��

�
��������������

�
�������

&RPPRQ� +ROGHUILQ�%�9��
'H�/DLUHVVHVWUDDW�
���+V������+-�
$PVWHUGDP�
WKH�
1HWKHUODQGV�
�'XWFK��

+ROGHUILQ�%�9��
�VDPH�DV�UHFRUG�RZQHU��

�
��������������

�
�������

&RPPRQ� 6XPLWRPR�2VDND�&HPHQW�
&R���
/WG��
���.DQGD�
0LWRVKLUR�FKR�
&KL\RGD�NX��7RN\R�
���������
-DSDQ�

6XPLWRPR�2VDND�&HPHQW�
&R���/WG��
�VDPH�DV�UHFRUG�RZQHU��

�
������������

�
������

&RPPRQ� &HPFR�+ROGLQJV��,QF��
��������7RZHU�
2QH�	�([FKDQJH�
3OD]D�
$\DOD�$YHQXH��0DNDWL�
&LW\��)LOLSLQR��
6WRFNKROGHU�

&HPFR�+ROGLQJV��,QF��
�VDPH�DV�UHFRUG�RZQHU��

�
������������

�
������

�
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7KH�UHVSHFWLYH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�HDFK�RI�8&+&��+ROGHUILQ��6XPLWRPR�2VDND�
&HPHQW�&R���/WG��DQG�&HPFR�KDV�WKH�SRZHU�WR�GHFLGH�KRZ�WKHLU�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
DUH�WR�EH�YRWHG��

�
6HFXULW\�2ZQHUVKLS�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�

7KH� WDEOH� EHORZ� VKRZV� WKH� VHFXULWLHV� EHQHILFLDOO\� RZQHG� E\� DOO� GLUHFWRUV�� QRPLQHHV�
DQG�H[HFXWLYH�RIILFHUV�RI�+3,�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU�����������
�

7DEOH����±�6HFXULW\�2ZQHUVKLS�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�
�
�

7LWOH�RI�
&ODVV�

�
1DPH�DQG�$GGUHVV�RI�
%HQHILFLDO�2ZQHU�

�
$PRXQW���
1DWXUH�RI�
2ZQHUVKLS�

5HJLVWHUHG�
�5��RU�

%HQHILFLDO�
�%��

�
��RI�

2ZQHUVKLS�

&RPPRQ� 7RPDV�,��$OFDQWDUD� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� 0DUWLQ�.ULHJQHU� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� -RKQ�:LOOLDP�6WXOO� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� 7DQ�7KHQ�+ZHH� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� /HDQGUR�-DYLHU� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� 7KRPDV�$TXLQR� ��'�� 5� ������
&RPPRQ� %RE\�*DU]D� ������ 5� ������
&RPPRQ� (UDQR�6DQWRV� ������ 5� ������

� 7RWDO� ������ 5� ������
�

'LUHFWRUV�DQG�RIILFHUV�DV�D�JURXS�KROG�D�WRWDO�RI�������FRPPRQ�VKDUHV��HTXLYDOHQW�WR�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�
������RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�LVVXHG�DQG�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FDSLWDO�VWRFN��
�
���� 9RWLQJ�7UXVW�+ROGHUV�RI����RU�PRUH�

1R�SHUVRQ�KROGV�ILYH�SHUFHQW������RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�LVVXHG�DQG�RXWVWDQGLQJ�VKDUHV�RI�VWRFN�RI�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�XQGHU�D�YRWLQJ�WUXVW�RU�VLPLODU�DJUHHPHQW��
�
���� &KDQJHV�LQ�&RQWURO�

7KHUH� ZHUH� QR� PDWHULDO� FKDQJHV� LQ� WKH� FRQWURO� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� VLQFH� WKH� EHJLQQLQJ� RI� WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�ODVW�FDOHQGDU�\HDU���

�
�
,WHP�����&HUWDLQ�5HODWLRQVKLSV�DQG�5HODWHG�7UDQVDFWLRQV�
�

)RU�D�GHWDLOHG�GLVFXVVLRQ�RI�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�UHODWHG�SDUW\�WUDQVDFWLRQV��SOHDVH�VHH�1RWH����
±�5HODWHG�3DUW\�7UDQVDFWLRQV�WR�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�,WHP�������

�
([FHSW� IRU� WKH� WUDQVDFWLRQV� GLVFXVVHG� LQ� 1RWH� ��� ±� 5HODWHG� 3DUW\� 7UDQVDFWLRQV� WR� WKH�

DFFRPSDQ\LQJ� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� LQ� ,WHP� ������ WKHUH� ZHUH� QR� RWKHU� PDWHULDO�
UHODWHG� SDUW\� WUDQVDFWLRQV� GXULQJ� WKH� ODVW� WKUHH� ILQDQFLDO� � \HDUV�� QRU� DUH� WKHUH� DQ\� PDWHULDO�
WUDQVDFWLRQV�FXUUHQWO\�SURSRVHG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�DQ\���L��GLUHFWRU��RIILFHU��GLUHFW�RU�LQGLUHFW�
RZQHU�RI�����RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\���LL��FORVH�IDPLO\�PHPEHU�RI�VXFK�
GLUHFWRU��RIILFHU�RU�RZQHU�� �LLL�� DVVRFLDWHV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� �LY�� HQWHUSULVHV� FRQWUROOLQJ�� FRQWUROOHG�
E\� RU� XQGHU� FRPPRQ� FRQWURO� ZLWK� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� RU� �Y�� HQWHUSULVHV� LQ� ZKLFK� D� VXEVWDQWLDO�
LQWHUHVW� LQ� WKH� YRWLQJ� SRZHU� LV�RZQHG�� GLUHFWO\� RU� LQGLUHFWO\�� E\� DQ\� GLUHFWRU�� RIILFHU� RU� RZQHU� RI�
���� RU� PRUH� RI� WKH� RXWVWDQGLQJ�VKDUHV� LQ� WKH� &RPSDQ\� RU� DQ\� FORVH� IDPLO\� PHPEHU� RI� VXFK�
GLUHFWRU�� NH\� RIILFHU� RU� RZQHU�� RU�FROOHFWLYHO\��WKH�5HODWHG�3DUWLHV��
�

7KHUH� ZDV� QR� RXWVWDQGLQJ� LQGHEWHGQHVV� DW� DQ\� WLPH� GXULQJ� WKH� ODVW� WKUHH� ���� ILQDQFLDO�
\HDUV�WKDW�ZDV�RZHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�RU�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV�E\�DQ\�5HODWHG�3DUW\��
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,WHP�����&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�
�

7KH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� LQ� SODFH� D� UREXVW� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� V\VWHP� ZKLFK� LV� DQ� RYHUDOO� SURFHVV��
HIIHFWHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG��PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�RWKHU�SHUVRQQHO�GHVLJQHG�WR�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�
FRQFHUQLQJ�� �L�� WKH� UHOLDELOLW\�RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ�DQG�VWDWHPHQWV�� �LL�� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK� ODZV�DQG�
UHJXODWLRQV�� �LLL�� SURWHFWLRQ� RI� DVVHWV� DQG� IUDXG� SUHYHQWLRQ�� �LY�� HIIHFWLYHQHVV� DQG� HIILFLHQF\� RI�
SURFHVVHV��$GGLWLRQDOO\��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�0DQXDO��WKH�%RDUG�
LV�DVVLVWHG�E\�D�&RPSOLDQFH�2IILFHU�ZKR� LV� LQ�FKDUJH�RI�HYDOXDWLQJ�DQG�HQVXULQJ�FRPSOLDQFH�E\� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�� WKH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� DQG� RIILFHUV� ZLWK� LWV� 0DQXDO� RI� &RUSRUDWH� *RYHUQDQFH�� &RGH� RI�
&RUSRUDWH� *RYHUQDQFH� IRU� 3XEOLFO\�/LVWHG� &RPSDQLHV� �WKH� �&*� &RGH��� DQG� DOO� UHOHYDQW� ODZV�� UXOHV�
DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�

�
7KH�%RDUG�KDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�D�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�&RPPLWWHH�ZKLFK�HQVXUHV�WKDW�WKH�%RDUG�

DQG� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� DV� D� ZKROH�� LV� VXIILFLHQWO\� FRQYHUVDQW� DQG� FRPSOLDQW� ZLWK� WKH� DGRSWHG� OHDGLQJ�
SUDFWLFHV� LQ�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH��7KLV�FRPPLWWHH� LV� UHTXLUHG� WR�EH�FRPSRVHG�RI�DW� OHDVW� WKUHH� ����
LQGHSHQGHQW�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�RQH�����QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�QRQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�GLUHFWRU���

�
7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�QR�NQRZQ�GHYLDWLRQ�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�0DQXDO�RI�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH��
�
7KH� %RDUG� DOZD\V� VHHNV� WR� LPSURYH� FRUSRUDWH� JRYHUQDQFH� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� E\� LPSURYLQJ�

H[LVWLQJ� SROLFLHV�� GHYHORSLQJ� DQG� HVWDEOLVKLQJ� QHZ� SROLFLHV� UHTXLUHG� E\� WKH� &RPSDQ\
V� &RUSRUDWH�
*RYHUQDQFH�0DQXDO�DQG�XQGHUWDNLQJ�PHDVXUHV�WR�LPSOHPHQW�VXFK�SROLFLHV���

�
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3$57�9���(;+,%,76�$1'�6&+('8/(6�

�
,WHP�����([KLELWV�DQG�5HSRUWV�RQ�6(&�)RUP����&�
�

����� &RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
�
7KH�DXGLWHG�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU�
���������DQG������DUH�DWWDFKHG�DV�([KLELW����
�
x� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�0DQDJHPHQW¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
x� ,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRUV
�5HSRUW�
x� &RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU����������

DQG������
x� &RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�3URILW�RU�/RVV�DQG�2WKHU�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�

,QFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������������DQG�������
x� &RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�HQGHG�

'HFHPEHU����������������DQG������
x� &RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&DVK�)ORZV�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU�

���������������DQG������
x� 1RWHV�WR�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

�
����� 6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOHV�

�
x� 6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOH�RI�5HWDLQHG�(DUQLQJV�$YDLODEOH�IRU�'LYLGHQG�

'HFODUDWLRQ�
x� ,OOXVWUDWLRQ�RI�UHODWLRQVKLSV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\����

LWV�8OWLPDWH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\��0LGGOH�3DUHQW��DQG�LWV�6XEVLGLDULHV�
x� 3KLOLSSLQH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�DQG�,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV�(IIHFWLYH�DV�

RI�'HFHPEHU����������
x� 6FKHGXOH�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6RXQGQHVV�,QGLFDWRUV�
x� 7KH�VXSSOHPHQWDU\�VFKHGXOHV�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������DUH�DWWDFKHG�DV�([KLELW����
�

����� 6(&�)RUP����±�4�
�

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�ILOHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�6(&�TXDUWHUO\�
UHSRUWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ����RI�65&�5XOH���������E��KHUHWR�DWWDFKHG�DV��
([KLELW����
�

'DWH�RI�)LOLQJ� 4XDUWHU�(QGLQJ�
$SULO���������� 0DUFK����������
-XO\���������� -XQH����������

2FWREHU���������� 6HSWHPEHU����������
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
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�
����� /HJDO�3URFHHGLQJV�DQG�3HQGLQJ�&DVHV��6HH�([KLELW����

�
����� 5HSRUWV�RQ�6(&�)RUP����&��

�
5HSRUWV� RQ� 6(&� )RUP� ���&� ILOHG� GXULQJ� WKH� \HDU� HQGHG� 'HFHPEHU� ����

�����DUH�DWWDFKHG�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKLV�UHSRUW�DV�([KLELW����
�

�
�

'DWH�)LOHG��'LVFORVHG� 6XEMHFW�

-DQXDU\��������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�%RDUG¶V�DSSRLQWPHQW�RI�0U��6DPXHO�2��
0DQORVD��-U��DV�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�±�3ODQW�0DQDJHU�RI�'DYDR�
3ODQW��

0DUFK��������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�%RDUG¶V�DSSURYDO�WR�SRVWSRQH�WKH�$QQXDO�
6WRFNKROGHU¶V�0HHWLQJ�IURP��QG�7KXUVGD\�RI�0D\�HDFK�\HDU�DV�
VWDWHG�LQ�LWV�%\�/DZV�WR�-XQH�����������

0DUFK���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�LQ�UHVSRQVH�WR�WKH�6(&�1RWLFH�LVVXHG�RQ�0DUFK�
���������UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�&29,'����SDQGHPLF��

0DUFK���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V�FRQWDFW�GHWDLOV��

0D\���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�ODSVH�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�IRU�WKH�VDOH�DQG�
SXUFKDVH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VKDUHV�DPRQJ�+ROGHUILQ��)LUVW�
6WURQJKROG�&HPHQW�,QGXVWULHV��,QF���6DQ�0LJXHO�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
DQG�/DIDUJH+ROFLP�/WG���HIIHFWLYH�0D\�����������

0D\���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�SRVWSRQHPHQW�RI�WKH�$QQXDO�6WRFNKROGHUV¶�
0HHWLQJ�WR�-XO\����������WR�EH�FRQGXFWHG�YLD�YLGHR�
FRQIHUHQFLQJ��

0D\���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�UHVXPSWLRQ�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�LQ�/X]RQ�DQG�
'DYDR�&LW\��

-XO\���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�$QQXDO�6WRFNKROGHUV�0HHWLQJ�
DQG�2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ�KHOG�RQ�-XO\�����������

$XJXVW����������
�

$Q� DGYLVRU\� RQ� WKH� FKDQJH� LQ� GHVLJQDWLRQ� RI� WKH� IROORZLQJ�
RIILFHUV��
�D��0U�� ,NH�7DQ�� IURP�+HDG�RI�3URFXUHPHQW� WR�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��
+HDG�RI�3URFXUHPHQW��DQG�
�E��0V��9LFWRULD�7��7RPHOGHQ��IURP�&KLHI�$XGLW�([HFXWLYH�WR�9LFH�
3UHVLGHQW��&KLHI�$XGLW�([HFXWLYH�

6HSWHPEHU����������
�

$Q�DGYLVRU\�XSGDWH�RQ�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�PDGH�RQ�
2FWREHU����������UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�GLVSXWH�ZLWK�6HDVLD�1HFWDU�3RUW�
6HUYLFHV��,QF��

6HSWHPEHU���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�UHVLJQDWLRQ�RI�0V��5DMDQL�.HVDUL�DV�PHPEHU�
RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\��HIIHFWLYH�LPPHGLDWHO\��

6HSWHPEHU����������
�

$Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�6SHFLDO�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ�KHOG�RQ�
���6HSWHPEHU�������ZKHUH�0V��7DQ�7KHQ�+ZHH�ZDV�HOHFWHG�DV�
GLUHFWRU�DQG�DSSRLQWHG�DV�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�RI�
WKH�&RPSDQ\��WR�VHUYH�IRU�WKH�XQH[SLUHG�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�WHUP�RI�
0V��5DMDQL�.HVDUL��
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1RYHPEHU���������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ� WKH� IROORZLQJ� UHVXOWV�RI� WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV¶�
0HHWLQJ�KHOG�RQ�1RYHPEHU�����������

D�� $SSURYDO�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�PHUJHU�RI�+ROFLP�3KLOLSSLQHV�
0DQXIDFWXULQJ� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� 0DELQL� *ULQGLQJ� 0LOO�
&RUSRUDWLRQ� DQG� %XONFHP� 3KLOLSSLQHV�� LQF�� LQWR� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�

E�� $SSURYDO�RI�WKH�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VXEVLGLDULHV�
RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� ���� +X%%� 6WRUHV� DQG� 6HUYLFHV�� ,QF���
���� +ROFLP� 3KLOLSSLQHV� %XVLQHVV� 6HUYLFH� &HQWHU�� ,QF���
DQG�����:HOOERUQH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�*URXS�/LPLWHG���

F�� $SSURYDO�RI�WKH�KROGLQJ�RI�WKH�6SHFLDO�6WRFNKROGHUV¶�
0HHWLQJ�RQ�-DQXDU\����������YLD�UHPRWH�
FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�DQG�GHOHJDWLRQ�WR�WKH�&RUSRUDWH�
6HFUHWDU\�RI�WKH�DXWKRULW\�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�
GHWHUPLQH�DQG�ILQDOL]H�WKH�DJHQGD��WLPH��YHQXH�DQG�
RWKHU�GHWDLOV�RI�WKH�PHHWLQJ��

'HFHPEHU��������� $Q�DGYLVRU\�RQ�WKH�UHWLUHPHQW�RI�0V��9LFWRULD�7RPHOGHQ�DV�9LFH�
3UHVLGHQW��&KLHI�$XGLW�([HFXWLYH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��HIIHFWLYH�
-DQXDU\����������





&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV ([KLELW��

6WDWHPHQW�RI�0DQDJHPHQW
V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRUV
�5HSRUW

&RQVROLGDWHG�%DODQFH�6KHHWV�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�����

6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOHV ([KLELW��

,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRUV
�5HSRUW�RQ�6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOHV
6XSSOHPHQWDU\�6FKHGXOH�RI�5HWDLQHG�(DUQLQJV�$YDLODEOH�IRU�'LYLGHQG�'HFODUDWLRQ

3KLOLSSLQH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�DQG�,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV�(IIHFWLYH�DV�RI�'HFHPEHU���������
1�$

1�$
1�$

6FKHGXOH�)��*XDUDQWHHV�RI�6HFXULWLHV�RI�2WKHU�,VVXHUV 1�$
6FKHGXOH�*��&DSLWDO�6WRFN

6FKHGXOH�&��$PRXQWV�5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�5HODWHG�3DUWLHV�ZKLFK�DUH�(OLPLQDWHG�
6FKHGXOH�'��/RQJ�7HUP�'HEW
6FKHGXOH�(��,QGHEWHGQHVV�WR�5HODWHG�3DUWLHV

,OOXVWUDWLRQ�RI�UHODWLRQVKLSV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�LWV�8OWLPDWH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\��
������0LGGOH�3DUHQW��DQG�LWV�6XEVLGLDULHV

6FKHGXOH�%��$PRXQWV�5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�'LUHFWRUV��2IILFHUV��(PSOR\HHV��

+2/&,0�3+,/,33,1(6��,1&��$1'�68%6,',$5,(6

,1'(;�72�7+(�&2162/,'$7('�),1$1&,$/�67$7(0(176�$1'�6833/(0(17$5<�6&+('8/(6

)250����$

&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�,QFRPH�
������IRU�HDFK�RI�WKH�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

6FKHGXOH�$��)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV

&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH�
������IRU�HDFK�RI�WKH�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�
������IRU�HDFK�RI�WKH�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&DVK�)ORZV�
������IRU�HDFK�RI�WKH�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

1RWHV�WR�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV
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